We’re on Twitter:
@SCCdemocracy

Agenda and Reports
for the Annual meeting of
THE COUNTY COUNCIL
to be held on

24 MAY 2022

(i)

(ii)
Woodhatch Place
Reigate
Surrey
Friday, 13 May 2022
TO THE MEMBERS OF SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
SUMMONS TO MEETING
You are hereby summoned to attend the meeting of the Council to be held at Woodhatch
Place, 11 Cockshot Hill, Reigate, Surrey, RH2 8EF, on Tuesday, 24 May 2022, beginning at
10.00 am, for the purpose of transacting the business specified in the Agenda set out
overleaf.
JOANNA KILLIAN
Chief Executive
Note 1: For those Members wishing to participate, Prayers will be said at 9.50am. The
Venerable Moira Astin, Archdeacon of Reigate, has kindly consented to officiate. If any
Members wish to take time for reflection, meditation, alternative worship or other such
practice prior to the start of the meeting, alternative space can be arranged on request by
contacting Democratic Services.
There will be a very short interval between the conclusion of Prayers and the start of the
meeting to enable those Members and Officers who do not wish to take part in Prayers to
enter the Council Chamber and join the meeting.
Note 2: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's
internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is
being filmed. The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the
Council.
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by entering the meeting room
and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use
of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and
Democratic Services at the meeting.

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in another
format, e.g. large print or braille, or another language please either call
Democratic Services on 020 8541 9122, or write to Democratic Serv ices, Surrey
County Council at Woodhatch Place, 11 Cockshot Hill, Reigate, Surrey, RH2
8EF, Minicom 020 8541 9698, fax 020 8541 9009, or email
amelia.christopher@surreycc.gov.uk
This meeting will be held in public. If you would like to attend and you have any
special requirements, please contact Amelia Christopher on 07929 725663 or via the
email address above.

(iii)

1

CHAIR
1. To elect a Chair for the Council Year 2022/23.
2. The Chair to make the statutory declaration of acceptance of office.

2

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
The Chair to report apologies for absence.

3

MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 22 March
2022.

4

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or
as soon as possible thereafter
(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any
item(s) of business being considered at this meeting
NOTES:
 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest

5



As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of
which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or
civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a
spouse or civil partner)



Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the
discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be
reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
Welcome
Welcome everyone to today’s Annual General Meeting (AGM). I find it
hard to believe that a whole year has passed since we were either
elected or re-elected as County Councillors of our great county – and
what a year it has been. We and our residents have all faced many
challenges over the past twelve months and we have more challenging
times ahead of us. From the terrific work I have seen over the past year, I
am confident that we can meet these challenges head on and continue to
provide excellent service to our residents and our county. I look forward
immensely to continuing to work with each and every one of you.
Queen’s Platinum Jubilee ‘Thank You’ Party
On the topic of service, at the end of June I am hosting a Queen’s
Platinum Jubilee ‘Thank You’ Party for the extraordinary volunteers of
Surrey who worked so tirelessly – often at great personal risk – to provide
invaluable service and support to some of our most vulnerable residents
throughout the pandemic.

(Pages 9
- 44)

(iv)

Earlier this month you all received an email from my office kindly
requesting that you nominate the phenomenal volunteers in your areas. I
do hope you have all taken the time to nominate your residents who did –
and continue to do – so much to help others in less fortunate positions.
If you have not yet nominated but wish to do so, please drop my office a
line with the details. All nominations must be received by 10am tomorrow
morning so please get nominating!
Ukraine
Of course, the terrible, terrible situation in Ukraine continues at
devastating cost. We remain shoulder to shoulder with our friends in
Ukraine and will continue to do all that we can to support them. I am
greatly heartened that so many Surrey residents have stepped forward
and opened their homes to displaced Ukrainians who have suffered so
enormously. I am very proud of our residents who have done so and
invite everyone to consider whether they too could offer their home to
help someone very much in need.
I am also exceptionally proud to say that Surrey County Council has
played its part with Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) donating
essential equipment and our firefighters volunteering to help with the
National Fire Chiefs Council (NFCC) distribution of equipment in Ukraine.
Of the many firefighters who volunteered, six were selected to help
deliver this equipment to Ukraine:







Rory Coulter – Logistics Lead
Robert Clark – Firefighter – Training & Development
Chris Clinnick – Crew Commander – Haslemere Alpha Watch
Tom Westcott – Crew Commander – Dorking Red Watch
Karl Jones – Firefighter – Egham Alpha Watch
Matt Oakley – Fire investigation
Among others, I waved them off from Woodhatch earlier this month and
was relieved and delighted to hear of their safe return. I am sure you join
with me in offering them our grateful thanks and respect.
Sad News – Cllr John Carruthers
It is my sad duty to inform you of the death of a former County Councillor
- Cllr John Carruthers. John was a Surrey County Councillor for Ashford
West for several terms in the 1990s to 2000s. I am sure you join me in
sending condolences to his family.
Surrey Fire & Rescue Services – Pass Off & Platinum Jubilee
Celebration
It was an enormous privilege and my absolute pleasure to attend the
SFRS Pass Off and Platinum Jubilee Celebration at their Wray Park
Training Centre here in Reigate. It was a wonderfully happy occasion,
celebrating the graduates of the Wholetime Course from 2021 who were
unable to Pass Off due to Covid restrictions, alongside graduates from
Wholetime and On Call Courses in 2022. Last but by no means least,
Suki, our Fire Investigation Dog, also received her much-deserved
recognition at this fantastic event. I offer my heartfelt congratulations and
thanks to you all for keeping our residents safe.

(v)
Thank You
As ever, I would like to say a big ‘thank you’ to Surrey County Council’s
officers who do such a first-rate job of serving and protecting our
residents. You are truly appreciated and valued – thank you for all that
you do. Please do keep it up!

6

VICE-CHAIR
1. To elect a Vice-Chair for the Council Year 2022/23.
2. The Vice-Chair to make the statutory declaration of acceptance of
office.

7

LEADER'S STATEMENT
The Leader to make a statement.
There will be an opportunity for Members to ask questions and/or make
comments.

8

CHANGES TO CABINET PORTFOLIOS

(Pages
45 - 52)

Recommendation:
Council is asked to note the updated Cabinet Portfolios (Annexes 1 and 2).

9

ANNUAL REVIEW OF POLITICAL PROPORTIONALITY

(Pages
53 - 54)

To formally review the proportional political allocation of places on
committees and to adopt a scheme of proportionality for the Council Year
2022/23.

10

APPROVAL OF COUNTY COUNCILLOR ABSENCE
The purpose of this report is to request that the County Council considers
whether to agree that County Councillor Alison Todd may continue to be
absent from Council meetings by reason of ill health.

11

APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES
To appoint Members of the various Boards / Committees of the Council for
the Council Year 2022/23 subject to any changes of membership to be
reported to the meeting by Group Leaders.
(Note: report to follow).

12

ELECTION OF COMMITTEE CHAIRMEN AND VICE-CHAIRMEN
To elect Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees for the Council Year
2022/23.
(Note: report to follow).

(Pages
55 - 56)

(vi)

13

AMENDMENTS TO THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION
It is the Council’s responsibility to approve changes to the Council’s
Constitution. This includes the Scheme of Delegation regarding nonexecutive functions, while amendments to executive functions are the
responsibility of the Leader and are brought to County Council to note.

(Pages
57 - 190)

This report sets out proposed changes to the Constitution’s Standing
Orders and also includes executive and non-executive functions set out in
the Scheme of Delegation and these are brought to Council for information
and formal approval.

14

MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME
The Leader of the Council or the appropriate Member of the Cabinet or
the Chairman of a Committee to answer any questions on any matter
relating to the powers and duties of the County Council, or which affects
the county.
(Note: Notice of questions in respect of the above item on the
agenda must be given in writing, preferably by e-mail, to Democratic
Services by 12 noon on Wednesday 18 May 2022).

15

STATEMENTS BY MEMBERS
Any Member may make a statement at the meeting on a local issue of
current or future concern.
(Note: Notice of statements must be given in writing, preferably by email, to Democratic Services by 12 noon on Monday 23 May 2022)

16

REPORT OF THE CABINET
To receive the report of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 29 March
2022 and 26 April 2022.

17

MINUTES OF CABINET MEETINGS
Any matters within the minutes of the Cabinet’s meetings, and not
otherwise brought to the Council’s attention in the Cabinet’s report, may be
the subject of questions and statements by Members upon notice being
given to Democratic Services by 12 noon on Monday 23 May 2022.

(Pages
191 196)
(Pages
197 218)

(vii)
MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE
Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of
the meeting. To support this, Woodhatch Place has wifi available for visitors – please ask at
reception for details.
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please liaise with
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems,
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chair may ask for mobile devices to be
switched off in these circumstances.
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems.
Thank you for your co-operation

Item 3
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL HELD AT
WOODHATCH PLACE, 11 COCKSHOT HILL, REIGATE, SURREY,
RH2 8EF, ON 22 MARCH 2022 COMMENCING AT 10.00 AM, THE
COUNCIL BEING CONSTITUTED AS FOLLOWS:
Helyn Clack (Chair)
Saj Hussain (Vice-Chair)

*
r
*

*
r
r

r

*

*

Maureen Attewell
Ayesha Azad
Catherine Baart
Steve Bax
John Beckett
Jordan Beech
Luke Bennett
Amanda Boote
Liz Bowes
Natalie Bramhall
Stephen Cooksey
Colin Cross
Clare Curran
Nick Darby
Fiona Davidson
Paul Deach
Kevin Deanus
Jonathan Essex
Robert Evans
Chris Farr
Paul Follows
Will Forster
John Furey
Matt Furniss
Angela Goodwin
Jeffrey Gray
Tim Hall
David Harmer
Nick Harrison
Edward Hawkins
Marisa Heath
Trefor Hogg
Robert Hughes
Jonathan Hulley
Rebecca Jennings-Evans
Frank Kelly
Riasat Khan
Robert King
Eber Kington

*
r
*

r
*
*

*
*
r
r
*

*absent
r = Remote Attendance

561

Page 9

Rachael Lake
Victor Lewanski
David Lewis (Cobham)
David Lewis (Camberley West)
Scott Lewis
Andy Lynch
Andy MacLeod
Ernest Mallett MBE
Michaela Martin
Jan Mason
Steven McCormick
Cameron McIntosh
Julia McShane
Sinead Mooney
Carla Morson
Bernie Muir
Mark Nuti
John O’Reilly
Tim Oliver
Rebecca Paul
George Potter
Catherine Powell
Penny Rivers
John Robini
Becky Rush
Tony Samuels
Joanne Sexton
Lance Spencer
Lesley Steeds
Mark Sugden
Richard Tear
Alison Todd
Chris Townsend
Liz Townsend
Denise Turner-Stewart
Hazel Watson
Jeremy Webster
Buddhi Weerasinghe
Fiona White
Keith Witham

Before moving to the first agenda item the Chair noted that regarding the minutes of
item 3: Statements by Members for the Council - Informal meeting on 18 January
2022, Eber Kington had requested that an informative note be added to the minutes
of that meeting to correct a comment that he made in his statement concerning the
Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure. Eber Kington had also issued an
apology to the Cabinet Member and the Chair confirmed that she would ensure that
an informative note would be added to the minutes for that item. The Chair reminded
Members to ensure the accuracy of statements made at Council.
17/22

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE [Item 1]
Apologies for absence were received from John Beckett, Stephen Cooksey, Paul
Deach, Nick Harrison, Eber Kington, Michaela Martin, Julia McShane, George Potter,
John Robini, Richard Tear, Alison Todd, Fiona White.
Members who attended remotely and had no voting rights were Amanda Boote, Kevin
Deanus, Robert Evans, Matt Furniss, Jan Mason, John O’Reilly, Denise TurnerStewart, Buddhi Weerasinghe.

18/22

MINUTES [Item 2]
The minutes of the meeting of the County Council held on 8 February 2022 were
submitted, confirmed and signed.

19/22

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
There were none.

20/22

CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS [Item 4]
The Chair noted:
 That her full announcements could be found in the Council agenda front sheet
and led the Council in a one-minute silence in solidarity for Ukraine.

21/22

LEADER'S STATEMENT [Item 5]
The Leader made a detailed statement. A copy of the statement is attached as
Appendix A.
Members raised the following topics:
 That the war in Ukraine was a humanitarian crisis, millions faced daily horrors
and sought sanctuary.
 Welcomed the change in rating from Inadequate to Good overall for Youth
Offending Service and noted that three areas were rated Outstanding.
 Welcomed the change in Ofsted rating in Children’s Services from Inadequate
to Requires Improvement overall.
 That the problems raised in the Ofsted inspection report needed to be
acknowledged and that greater progress needed to be made at pace.
 That whilst Surrey Corporate Parenting Board meetings had strong
engagement, Surrey’s Corporate Parenting Strategy was outdated.

562

Page 10

 That the decision to remove the highway functions of the Local and Joint
Committees was conducted with little consultation and questions remained
unanswered.
 That regarding the decision to close eight care homes, repairs should have
been made earlier and sought reassurance that redevelopment would be
considered imminently.
 Agreed that the Ukraine conflict put local political disagreements into context
and welcomed the cross-party motions and support.
 Hoped that the administration would continue to listen to the suggestions of the
opposition, noting the positive engagement with the Liberal Democrat Group
regarding flying the Ukrainian flag, to offer support to refugees and for the
Surrey Pension Fund Committee to review its investments in Russia.
 Praised the efforts of staff in the change of Ofsted rating in Children’s Services
and hoped that the original motion 8 (ii) would help progress to be made.
 That the Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee robustly
reviewed Your Fund Surrey and hoped that the Cabinet would agree the
recommendations made and all recommendations from the Select Committees
going forward.
 That with the improved rating, the Council was on its way to rating of Good
which was a testament to the work of the late Executive Director of Children,
Lifelong Learning and Culture, the current Executive Director and staff.
 Shared the frustration of many that little was being done to simplify the process
in the UK of offering sanctuary to Ukrainian refugees.
 That the economic sanctions on Russia and Belarus remained inadequate.
 That more could be done in Surrey such as relinquishing stocks of Russian
investments in the pension funds.
 That a recent report by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change said
that scientific evidence was unequivocal that climate change was a threat to
human wellbeing and the planet, imminent action was needed.
 The tripling in the forecast rise in household energy bills by October, yet
geopolitics was dominated by the dependence on fossil fuels and their rising
prices were driving the UK’s cost of living crisis.
 That the Council must lead by example in an invest to save scheme and energy
advice services for all, home insulation would cut winter fuel bills and Your Fund
Surrey could be used to transform the energy efficiency of Surrey’s community
buildings.
 That the Council could renegotiate Surrey’s bus fares and services with bus
companies and the Government to provide free bus fares for journeys to school
and for key workers; increasing demand and reducing pollution.
 Asked the Leader to consider an emergency response for Surrey - expanding
on that for Ukraine - to deal with the cost of living and the climate crisis.
 Echoed the comments made on the brutality of Putin’s regime and the kindness
of Surrey’s residents towards Ukraine.
 That the Ofsted report on Children’s Services highlighted that homeless children
were being failed, there were risks around children being subjected to female
genital mutilation, there was a lack of support to vulnerable children and
permanent staffing was vital.
 Looked forward to rapid improvements to the highways in relation to pothole
repairs and poor surface dressings on footpaths.
 That Surrey failed to offer cradle to grave services, the closure of the eight
remaining care homes was an appalling record.
 Asked the Leader to review the Mayor of Greater Manchester’s work on bus
contracts, Surrey could offer better services and fares for residents through
franchising.
563

Page 11

 That the Government’s restrictions around offering sanctuary to Ukrainian
refugees were appalling.
 Questioned why the Local and Joint Committees were being destroyed as they
connected with residents and gave powers to non-executive Members.
 That tackling the war in the Ukraine was a cross-party issue.
 That Farnham Town Council was working alongside volunteers to host
Ukrainian families from Kharkiv, welcomed the document circulated by the
Leader to Members which would help answer some of the logistical questions.
22/22

MEMBERS’ QUESTION TIME [Item 6]
Questions:
Notice of twenty questions had been received. The questions and replies were
published in the supplementary agenda (items 6 and 8) on 21 March 2022.
A number of supplementary questions were asked and a summary of the main points
is set out below:
(Q4) Lance Spencer highlighted the table on the number of referrals to children’s
social care provided in the written response which showed a drop of nearly 2%
nationally compared to an increase of just over 4% regionally between 2017/18 and
2019/20. In Surrey the decrease was around 38% or just over 5,000 children that had
disappeared from the system annually, he noted the concern when the Sure Start
centres closed that many children without high needs would fall through the system.
He asked whether the Cabinet Member for Children and Families had observed that
to be the case and whether there were plans to recover those 5,000 children.
In response, the Cabinet Member for Children and Families disagreed with the
Member’s interpretation of the figures, children were not disappearing. She explained
that the table detailed referrals as opposed to contact made and when children
entered the social care system referrals were made by professionals and families.
She was happy to follow up with the Member on the matter.
(Q6) Hazel Watson asked whether the Cabinet Member for Transport and
Infrastructure agreed that the Council should publicise the fact that residents should
not trail electric vehicle (EV) charging cables across pavements and should deter
residents from doing that as they cause a safety hazard.
In response, the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure agreed with the
Member noting that as per the written response, the Council published advice on its
website on not trailing EV charging cables. He would liaise with the Council’s
Communications team to see what more could be done via social media.
(Q9) Nick Darby expressed delight that there were defibrillators at Woodhatch Place
and the reception staff had been trained on how to use those. He asked whether it
would be useful to have clear signage so that Members and staff know their location.
The Chair suggested that it would be good to have a training session for Members on
how to use the defibrillators.
In response, the Cabinet Member for Property and Waste agreed that signage and
possibly a map of their location should be in place and should be sent to Members.
She would look into a training session and the appropriate team to deliver it.
564

Page 12

(Q11) Lance Spencer highlighted the Council’s ambitious plan to attract £120 million
funding under the Bus Back Better scheme but noted disappointment that the Council
would get only £18 million. He noted that it was necessary to invest in zero emission
buses. He asked how the Council would encourage greater use of buses going
forward, noting the increased fares and reduced frequency of buses.
In response, the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure noted
disappointment that the bus sector was continuing to struggle particularly around the
recruitment of drivers. Stagecoach had committed to getting back to previous levels
from their temporary reduction in services. Bus and travel operators were at 70%
capacity compared to pre-Covid and the continued provision by the Government of
the recovery grant to October was positive. The Council’s own investment of £9
million annually was vital to encourage greater bus use - to ease congestion and
benefit the environment - with forthcoming plans for half price bus travel for all those
aged under twenty years old. He noted that encouraging the greater use of buses
would be achieved through a combination of ways.
(Q12) Stephen Cooksey was not present to ask a supplementary question.
Lance Spencer highlighted a recent meeting of the EV Member Reference Group
where debate was had about how officers would deal with the distribution of 10,000
EV charging points around Surrey over the next seven years. The conclusion was that
in the absence of the highway functions from the Local and Joint Committees, each
Member would need to look at each application individually and liaise with the
relevant Borough and District Council. He asked the Cabinet Member for Transport
and Infrastructure to explain how the Council would deal with the distribution.
In response, the Cabinet Member for Communities emphasised that nothing had
changed in respect of the community engagement through the Local and Joint
Committees. The communities’ teams were increasing their engagement with
residents and a Member seminar would be run in May or June setting out how
Members would be helped with engaging with their communities and how partners
would engage with Members.
In response, the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure explained that a
few pilots were underway on EV charging points. The Council was awaiting the next
Government grant announcement about EV charging points. He noted that the
Council would shortly be given a direct award with a private operator which would see
the rapid increase on EV charging points in the county over the next few years. He
would update Members on the matter in due course.
(Q14) Jonathan Essex asked the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure to
confirm when the new grass cutting contracts on highway verges would be let and in
the meantime what the Council would do to encourage those eight Borough and
District Councils to reduce their grass cuts.
Rachael Lake asked that when the grass cutting contracts for highway verges expire,
could consideration be given to local conservation groups to wildflower them as that
would make a huge difference to the biodiversity and give residents a choice.
In response, the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure noted that as per
the written response the Council was offering a one-year extension to April 2023 to
the existing agency agreements with the Borough and District Councils until the final
changes to contracts were made. He explained that the Council paid for a set number
565

Page 13

of cuts which was four in urban areas and two in rural areas annually as well as one
weed spray. The Council was encouraging the Borough and District Councils not to
cut, the frequency varied between six to eleven across the county.
The Cabinet Member explained that the Council was actively encouraging residents
to get in touch with the Highways team, he highlighted that the Council supported the
Blue Campaign to reduce mowing and increase the planting of wildflowers. He noted
that Elmbridge Borough Council would be moving into the county programme.
(Q17) Jonathan Essex looked forward to hearing the results of the pilot in Elmbridge
on the use of the Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards (MEES) used as
enforcement, which could be rolled out further. He asked the Cabinet Member for
Environment to indicate how many households the Sustainable Warmth funding
would support. He also asked how many low income and off-gas homes there were in
Surrey, in order to understand the scale of the challenge and funding required.
Robert King referred to the pilot in Elmbridge to identify private rental properties in
breach of the MEES and asked whether it would be an opportunity for the Council to
explore a licensing scheme to the private rental sector, to be promoted in the
Boroughs and Districts.
Lance Spencer expressed concern that in the Green Futures Climate Change
Delivery Plan the target was to deliver improvements to insulation and heating to over
32,000 properties by 2025 and to date such improvements had been made to only
547 homes. He asked whether the Cabinet Member thought there was a chance that
the targeted number could be achieved.
In response, the Cabinet Member for Environment welcomed the question and the
matters raised were important for the Council in reaching its goals. She noted that she
would provide the figures requested on Sustainable Warmth funding in due course.
The Cabinet Member noted that licensing was broadly done at Government level and
welcomed an elaboration on the suggestions around licensing. She was happy to
follow up on the matter with the Member.
The Cabinet Member noted that pilots were underway and that the Council was
awaiting an update on Government funding. The targets were in place to be met and
the Council would carry on with its objectives, working with its partners.
(Q18) Lance Spencer asked that if the Your Fund Surrey plan was delivered in that
£100 million would be spent by 2025, could the Cabinet Member for Communities
confirm that would cost £3 million per year for the next fifty years.
Edward Hawkins welcomed that written response that noted that officers continued
to listen to feedback and made further refinements to Your Fund Surrey, and that
Members were encouraged to speak with their communities. He asked whether the
Cabinet Member could re-examine the issue in his division of taking a local road out
of highways thereby making it available for a bid through Your Fund Surrey.
In response, the Cabinet Member for Communities stressed that the Council did not
stipulate that it would spend £20 million annually for five years, that figure was an
even breakdown out of the £100 million which had no time limit to be spent. To date
£1.5 million had been awarded via Your Fund Surrey despite Covid-19 and work
ceasing during last year’s County Council elections. It was a scheme that was not
seen elsewhere in the country and momentum in awarding funding was increasing.
566

Page 14

The Cabinet Member noted that he would follow up the matter with the Member
around the issue of the local road as a highway. He explained that fundamental to
Your Fund Surrey was for communities and residents to come forward with projects
and to directly bring them into fruition, which excluded highways.
In response, the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources
noted that £3 to £4 million for every £100 million borrowed covered the cost of the
Council’s interest payable and the cost of repaying that borrowing. The Council
borrowed on an asset-by-asset basis and therefore the time spent to pay that back
differed. An affordable level of borrowing was built into the Council’s Medium-Term
Financial Strategy and the Council used its our cash balances to minimise borrowing.
(Q20) Jonathan Essex noted concern in the negative consequences of drinking
alcohol during pregnancy on the foetus and child later in life. He referred to ‘already
drinking dependently’ in the written response which highlighted the need for more
early and preventative action to reduce the consequences. He asked the Cabinet
Member for Adults and Health what additional funding or Government support the
Council needed to minimise substance abuse and the occurrence of Foetal Alcohol
Syndrome (FAS).
In response, the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health thanked the Member for
raising the profile of the condition which has potentially catastrophic outcomes. She
provided reassurance of the focus on prevention and early intervention across Adult
Social Care and Public Health. She noted that there needed to be early messaging of
the impact of even social drinking during pregnancy, so women can make informed
decisions. She explained that Surrey’s Substance Misuse Strategy was being
reviewed this year and focused on early intervention and prevention. She would bring
the Strategy to Members’ attention when consultation started. She would look into the
comment made with the Director of Public Health on the funding needed to address
the issue.
Cabinet Member Briefings:
These were also published in the supplementary agenda (items 6 and 8) on 21 March
2022.
There were no questions asked by Members.
23/22

STATEMENTS BY MEMBERS [Item 7]
Mark Sugden (Hinchley Wood, Claygate and Oxshott) made a statement on the
recent approval of a Your Fund Surrey application for the Claygate Community Pool
project at Claygate Primary School. He thanked all those involved and noted that the
project would provide a significant long-term sustainable benefit for the community.
Rachael Lake (Walton) made a statement on the recent work which had started on a
new free school: Heathside Walton. Whilst welcome, it was being built near the
roundabout off Terrace Road which would mean four schools and leisure facilities in
close proximity. The Council was running feasibility studies for two of those schools to follow - the plots identified were on Green Belt sites with one on a flood plain and
landlocked. She hoped that her concerns would be looked at.

567

Page 15

24/22

ORIGINAL MOTIONS [Item 8]
The Chair explained that regarding original motion 8 (v) standing in the name of Tim
Oliver which was published in a supplementary agenda (item 8) on 17 March 2022,
she had agreed with Group Leaders that as Chair she would be proposing the motion.
This fifth motion - agreed cross-party - was received after the fourteen-day deadline,
in accordance with Standing Order 11.8 ‘An original motion may be considered
without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is urgent’. The Chair noted that
due to the subject matter she had decided to take the motion first.
Item 8 (v)
Under Standing Order 12.3 the Council agreed to debate this motion.
Under Standing Order 12.1 Helyn Clack (Chair) moved:
This Council notes:
That the Russian attack on Ukraine is not just an invasion of a sovereign state, it is an
attack on everything we believe in and stand for. It is an attack on freedom,
democracy and self-determination.
That the terrible experiences of the people of Ukraine cannot be ignored and warrant
the strongest possible action on simple humanitarian grounds as well as in support of
freedom, democracy and self-determination.
This Council:


Deplores the situation in Ukraine brought about by the unwarranted,
unprovoked and unprecedented Russian leadership’s aggression and invasion
of the country.



Stands in solidarity with Ukraine and the Ukrainian people.

This Council resolves to:
I.

Fully engage in and support national schemes for Ukrainian refugees, to identify
accommodation and homes for those arriving in Surrey, (provided by public
agencies as well as Surrey householders), to assist those fleeing the country to
find a safe haven here for as long as is necessary, and to facilitate their return
to Ukraine as and when it is safe to do so.

II.

Review and work to immediately relinquish any connections that the Council’s
energy supplies, and general investments have to Russian interests.

III.

Support the decision of the Surrey Pension Fund Committee to immediately
suspend making any further pension investments in Russia and Belarus and
continue to review existing investments with a view to exiting. This Council
urges the Committee to do so as soon as possible.

IV.

Promote as widely as possible the mechanisms by which Surrey residents can
donate and support Ukraine and the Ukrainian people.

568

Page 16

V.

Continue to fly the Ukrainian flag as a gesture of support at our Council
Headquarters in Woodhatch Place and other buildings, until such time as
hostilities cease.

Helyn Clack made the following points:






That it was a motion of solidarity with the Ukrainian people following an
unprovoked and continuing war initiated by Russia.
That there had been wide news coverage and heartfelt descriptions of the
situation.
That the invasion was an attack on freedom, democracy and self-determination,
rights enjoyed in Surrey through democratic accountability.
That her heart went out to the Ukrainian people with many fleeing and some
staying behind, led by their brave President.
Had been moved by correspondence from residents offering to open their
homes to the refugees, noting the Council’s cross-local authority immigration
group working with partners to house refugees from around the world, recently
from Afghanistan and now Ukraine.

Tony Samuels arrived at 11.24 am.






That the Council must review and relinquish any connections that its energy
suppliers and general investments have to Russian interests, the Surrey
Pension Fund had made its position clear on investments in Russia and
Belarus.
That the Council’s Communications team must disseminate information on how
Members and residents can support and donate to the Ukrainian cause.
That the Council had raised the Ukrainian flag alongside its flag, she
encouraged Members to raise awareness across their social media.
Called on the Council to support the motion and show solidarity.

The motion was formally seconded by Nick Darby, who made the following
comments:







Noted the terrible chain of events which had unfolded suddenly.
That whatever political disagreements there were locally, there were democratic
processes in place permitting differences of opinion.
That the Council offered its unequivocal support to Ukraine, it was harrowing
that many were homeless and separated from loved ones.
Noted confidence that Surrey’s residents would play their part and that the
Council would be thinking about how it can offer support through
accommodation.
That at some stage the war would end and many would wish to return, urged
the Government to look at how it could support a rebuilding project.
Emphasised the Council’s support and solidarity to Ukraine.

Eleven Members made the following comments:



That all were horrified by the misery and loss of life suffered and the events
demonstrated that the Council’s responsible investment policy must consider
the financial risks of Governments who do not believe in democracy.
That the Surrey Pension Fund Committee acted as a trustee to the Surrey
Pension Fund’s assets and the committee had taken the views of the Fund’s
569

Page 17
























members and employers, and the Council into account with £6 million of
Russian equity investments having exited. To be followed by the exiting of £6
million of Russian bond assets in due course.
That the committee was working to identify any indirect investment exposure to
Russia and Belarus, such as through BP and Shell.
That without any movement by Russia and Belarus to comply with the UN
Sustainable Development Goals there would be no future prospect to have
direct or indirect investment in Russia or Belarus, or end to their sanctions.
That by Thursday it would have been one month since Russia invaded Ukraine,
noting the tyranny of Russia’s President against the courage shown by
Ukraine’s President.
That the invasion was an illegal and barbaric attack on democracy, noting the
recent air strikes on a maternity hospital.
Welcomed the international support in standing up to Russia’s President, yet
more needed to be done for example Surrey must stand up to Russian
oligarchs in the county.
Welcomed the Council’s response including the flying of the Ukrainian flag and
response concerning investments.
That the Government needed to redouble its efforts in its support for Ukrainian
refugees - so far five million in Europe - and to remove the barriers faced,
hoped that the Council and the Borough and District Councils would work
together to show support for the refugees.
Praised the many thousands in Surrey who had offered their homes up to
Ukrainian refugees and had organised collections to support them.
Noted an example of a Ukrainian individual who was running supplies down to
Folkestone with goods transported into the heart of the war zone.
Noted support for the Homes for Ukraine visa scheme whereby Ukrainians
coming to the UK would have the same rights as settled persons, yet the private
visa process remained overcomplicated with no way of matching Ukrainian
families to a sponsor.
That the Ukrainian individual highlighted was keen to join up efforts and
welcomed ideas for further support such as the use of Council buildings to
enable Ukrainian refugees to meet together.
Stressed that it was important that the Council recognises those Russians in
Surrey who were appalled at their President’s actions.
Noted concern on the visa scheme which in one local case a child might be
offered a visa and the mother not as they shared different surnames, noting that
it would be helpful for additional information to be included on the Council’s
website to reflect such cases.
That the Nationality and Borders Bill would make refugees travelling
independently second-class citizens.
Highlighted the issue of those with settled status offering refugee cards being
denied free transport on public transport that they are entitled to for six months,
asked the Chair to discuss the matter with the Cabinet Member for Transport
and Infrastructure.
That it was important to learn from the skills and opportunities found throughout
Covid-19 and for the Council and the Borough and District Councils to continue
to empower its communities.
Noted that it was important to recognise the evolving list of how the Council
would offer its support therefore the Council should resolve ‘at least to’.
That the Council must empower the Leader through various forums such as the
County Councils Network to show that solidarity with the Ukrainians sits at all
levels of government.
570

Page 18

























That the Government needed to extend, elaborate on, and simplify the visa
scheme process.
That through relinquishing connections immediately with Russia in energy
supply, the Council was committed to take swift action and so too in the case of
the Surrey Pension Fund and its investments.
Hoped that the motion provided an opportunity for collaborative working and
that Surrey’s voice would join those nationally who had agreed similar motions.
Stressed that words must be coupled with action, urged Surrey’s residents if
able to take in Ukrainian refugees.
That whilst immense solidarity was rightly shown to Ukraine, it was important
not to forget the impact on other eastern European countries such as Poland
and to support them.
Looked forward to Chelsea Football Club’s removal of any Russian connections
through its sale.
That residents were showing solidarity for Ukraine, noting that seventy-five
Ukrainian flags would be flown in Cobham High Street alternating with the
Union Jack, welcomed the flying of the Ukrainian flag at Woodhatch Place and
hoped that Members and their divisions would encourage similar shows of
support.
The Vice-Chair thanked Surrey’s residents for their generosity in providing
sanctuary, donations and storage space for supplies, and welcomed officers’
support.
Noted the view that the properties and wealth of Russian oligarchs should be
used to help the refugees and to rebuild Ukraine once the war is over.
Noted issues with the visa scheme were being resolved, noting a positive story
of a Surrey resident to shortly be reunited with their family.
Highlighted the brave Russian citizens who were standing up to their President
and stood in solidarity with them.
The Leader recognised the difficult time faced by Ukraine and was heartened to
see the Council and country come together, noting a divisional example of a
rally held in support for Ukrainian refugees and the arrival of one of the first
Ukrainian families in Cobham.
The Leader noted the need to simplify the visa scheme and that the Council
would continue to work with the Government to address the practical issues,
lobbying was happening via the County Councils Network.
The Leader noted that regarding the second resolution for the Council to
relinquish any connections with companies that have Russian interests, clarified
that the Council had terminated its contract with Gazprom in 2020 used for the
eight care homes earmarked for closure and noted that the Council now bought
all its energy through the Crown Commercial Service (CCS) framework.
The Leader noted that many schools in Surrey bought their utilities through the
CCS framework but were not obliged to so could potentially be buying gas from
Gazprom and noted that schools should contact the Council.
The Leader noted that the Council had adopted the guidance notes produced
by lawyers for the Local Government Association in relation to contracting with
Russian organisations and there would be further internal guidance issued as
necessary.
The Leader noted that local authorities were awaiting confirmation of the
funding of £10,500 per Ukrainian refugee, the Council was working with the
Borough and District Councils on the practicalities.
The Leader urged residents to do whatever they can to show support for
Ukrainians.
The Leader noted that it was an attack on world democracy and all must stand
together and oppose dictators.
571

Page 19



The Leader emphasised that the motion was just the start of the work that the
Council would do to support Ukrainian and other refugees.

Helyn Clack (Chair) as proposer of the motion, concluded the debate:




Welcomed the moving comments made which would be followed up.
Noted that it was a long road ahead before a solution would be found.
That standing together with Ukraine, it was vital to ensure that democracy
prevails and that all can be done in Surrey to make sure that happens.

The motion was put to the vote and received unanimous support.
Therefore, it was RESOLVED that:
This Council notes:
That the Russian attack on Ukraine is not just an invasion of a sovereign state, it is an
attack on everything we believe in and stand for. It is an attack on freedom,
democracy and self-determination.
That the terrible experiences of the people of Ukraine cannot be ignored and warrant
the strongest possible action on simple humanitarian grounds as well as in support of
freedom, democracy and self-determination.
This Council:


Deplores the situation in Ukraine brought about by the unwarranted,
unprovoked and unprecedented Russian leadership’s aggression and invasion
of the country.



Stands in solidarity with Ukraine and the Ukrainian people.

This Council resolves to:
I.

Fully engage in and support national schemes for Ukrainian refugees, to identify
accommodation and homes for those arriving in Surrey, (provided by public
agencies as well as Surrey householders), to assist those fleeing the country to
find a safe haven here for as long as is necessary, and to facilitate their return
to Ukraine as and when it is safe to do so.

II.

Review and work to immediately relinquish any connections that the Council’s
energy supplies, and general investments have to Russian interests.

III.

Support the decision of the Surrey Pension Fund Committee to immediately
suspend making any further pension investments in Russia and Belarus and
continue to review existing investments with a view to exiting. This Council
urges the Committee to do so as soon as possible.

IV.

Promote as widely as possible the mechanisms by which Surrey residents can
donate and support Ukraine and the Ukrainian people.

V.

Continue to fly the Ukrainian flag as a gesture of support at our Council
Headquarters in Woodhatch Place and other buildings, until such time as
hostilities cease.
572

Page 20

Item 8 (i)
Under Standing Order 12.3 the Council agreed to debate this motion.
Under Standing Order 20.3 (a) Catherine Powell moved a proposed alteration to the
original motion standing in her own name, which had been published in the
supplementary agenda (items 6 and 8) on 21 March 2022.
The proposed alteration to the motion was as follows (with additional words in
bold/underlined and deletions crossed through):
This Council notes that:
Surrey Highways devotes a great deal of time and resource working with utility
companies to identify unmarked assets requiring repair. Surrey Highways is
committed to making sure that assets are kept temporarily safe until the utility
company makes a permanent repair to their asset.
Currently, Surrey Highways has access to a limited number of asset maps for utility
companies which are very useful and allow rapid identification of asset owners.
However, Surrey Highways have no information at all for the majority of utility
companies which makes identifying unmarked assets time consuming, resulting in
adverse impacts on the travelling public for longer periods than necessary.
The six month grace period granted to utility companies to leave in place temporary
repairs before making permanent repairs can often have an adverse and
unreasonable impact on residents and businesses.
Therefore, this Council requests the Cabinet Member for Transport and
Infrastructure to lobby Government to:
I.

II.

III.
IV.
V.

Introduce a statutory requirement on utility companies to share any electronic
asset maps with Local Authorities, updated at least annually, to support the
Local Authorities in identifying the ownership of unmarked assets for repair
work.
Introduce a statutory requirement for utility companies to introduce an easy
identification system of assets to to support work with Local Authorities in
identifying third party assets using technology which is compatible with
Local Authority systems such as passive RFID (radio-frequency identification)
tags to support easy identification of assets owners starting with areas of:
a. Significant number of assets owned by different organisations where
maps are less effective;
b. Regular damage to assets by vehicles or vandalism.
Reduce the interim reinstatement period from 6 months to 1 month.
Extend the 2-year guarantee period of utility repairs undertaken by utility
companies to 5 years.
Introduce a timescale for repairs for ‘Section 81’ (of NRSWA) for Defective
Apparatus, so that utilities must complete repairs in a short time period once
reported of no more than 3 months.

Under Standing Order 20.3, the proposed alteration to the original motion was put to
the vote and Council agreed to the proposed alteration and it was therefore open for
debate.

573

Page 21

Catherine Powell made the following points:






Welcomed the collaboration with the Cabinet Member for Transport and
Infrastructure on the motion.
Recognised the challenging experiences Members may have had with assets
owned by utility companies causing problems in their division, such as in
relation to identifying the relevant utility company and ensuring repairs.
That as all utility companies increased their use of modern technologies such as
electronic data asset maps and asset identification systems, it was right that
such data was made available data to aid the Council.
Outlined the resolutions requesting the Cabinet Member for Transport and
Infrastructure to lobby the Government.
Hoped that Members would support the motion which would place an increased
responsibility on the utility companies and make the work of the Council easier,
more efficient and reduce its costs.

The motion was formally seconded by Matt Furniss, who made the following
comments:







Supported the motion and highlighted the importance of protecting the Council’s
increased investment as a highway authority on its roads.
Noted that 70% of all interventions on Surrey Highways concerned utility
companies and the Council reported over 2,500 Section 81 defect apparatus
reports annually - improved response times from the Government were needed.
That 25% of all utility repairs by utility companies - which were reported
following the Council’s inspections - failed their safety code within the two years.
That the Council was putting £100 million a year into the highway network and
its structures to ensure that Surrey keeps moving and the Council must ensure
that its partners do the same.
That by getting those longer periods for which utility companies are bound, it
was hoped that would make their reinstatements and asset repairs right the first
time.
That continued Government support was vital to ensure that the utility
companies take responsibility for their actions on the highway network.

Six Members made the following comments:








Highlighted an example of a local road in Send village which underwent slot
cutting at night followed by work on the water mains and on the gas
infrastructure; stressed that utility companies must show a duty of care to
residents and should notify the Council on the intended timings.
That the Council would work to facilitate the work of the utility companies and
vice versa, to be made easier through the new technology outlined in the
motion.
Noted an example of an extreme case in the past whereby contractors were
killed during digging trenches to lay assets as the maps were inadequate.
Technology had since developed and it was essential that anyone working on
the highways should have access to accurate maps.
Supported the simplification of the processes set out in the motion.
Shared those frustrations felt by residents when utility assets on the highways
are not reinstated properly, therefore supported the reduction in the interim
reinstatement period and the extension of the guarantee period.

574

Page 22










That the Council had made significant changes and progress in how it engages
with utility companies - notably the Lane Rental Scheme - and the motion would
provide more control and greater collaboration.
That the motion would make a large difference and supported the Cabinet
Member for Transport and Infrastructure in writing to the Secretary of State for
Transport to set out a strong case for the reforms needed.
That the Council needed to do more towards the utility works and to improve the
relationship with the utility companies, noting an example of a local road which
after having undergone costly resurfacing by the Council, the utility companies
renewed the pipes constantly month after month.
Noted a current local issue of two sewerage leaks yet the service operator had
said that they had no pipes in that area, stressed that the issue would have
knock-on effects to nearby areas including Green Belt land.
Welcomed the motion which would benefit residents.
That the infrastructure providers needed to be encouraged to work with the
Council such as through regular high-level meetings to address any difficulties.
Requested that the results of the lobbying outlined in the resolutions are
provided to Members in due course.

The Chair asked Catherine Powell, as proposer of the motion to conclude the
debate, she made the following comments:



Thanked Members for their supportive comments and noted that it was
interesting to hear the number of negative experiences faced.
Expressed sympathy in response to the issue of the sewerage leaks raised,
having faced a similar incident in Farnham Park recently.

The motion was put to the vote and received unanimous support.
Therefore, it was RESOLVED that:
This Council notes that:
Surrey Highways devotes a great deal of time and resource working with utility
companies to identify unmarked assets requiring repair. Surrey Highways is
committed to making sure that assets are kept temporarily safe until the utility
company makes a permanent repair to their asset.
Currently, Surrey Highways has access to a limited number of asset maps for utility
companies which are very useful and allow rapid identification of asset owners.
However, Surrey Highways have no information at all for the majority of utility
companies which makes identifying unmarked assets time consuming, resulting in
adverse impacts on the travelling public for longer periods than necessary.
The six month grace period granted to utility companies to leave in place temporary
repairs before making permanent repairs can often have an adverse and
unreasonable impact on residents and businesses.
Therefore, this Council requests the Cabinet Member for Transport and
Infrastructure to lobby Government to:
I. Introduce a statutory requirement on utility companies to share any electronic
asset maps with Local Authorities, updated at least annually, to support the

575

Page 23

Local Authorities in identifying the ownership of unmarked assets for repair
work.
II. Introduce a statutory requirement for utility companies to introduce an easy
identification system of assets to support Local Authorities in identifying third
party assets using technology which is compatible with Local Authority systems
such as passive RFID (radio-frequency identification) tags starting with areas of:
a. Significant number of assets owned by different organisations where
maps are less effective;
b. Regular damage to assets by vehicles or vandalism.
III. Reduce the interim reinstatement period from 6 months to 1 month.
IV. Extend the 2-year guarantee period of utility repairs undertaken by utility
companies to 5 years.
V. Introduce a timescale for repairs for ‘Section 81’ (of NRSWA) for Defective
Apparatus, so that utilities must complete repairs in a short time period once
reported of no more than 3 months.
Item 8 (ii)
Under Standing Order 12.3 the Council agreed to debate this motion.
Under Standing Order 12.1 Jeremy Webster moved:
This Council notes:


The Ofsted inspection report on children’s services in Surrey published on 9
March 2022.



That the overall effectiveness of our services is judged to have improved since
the last inspection in 2018, and acknowledges that Surrey’s leaders have
achieved significant change in that time and that they are implementing a clear
and comprehensive improvement programme.

This Council further notes:


That this improvement is described as “…a strong foundation to strive for
excellence.”; but that this programme of improvement needs to continue in
order for our services to be seen as good. The findings of the inspectors are
entirely consistent with the self-assessment audits and the inspection team
confirmed they had confidence that the current improvement plan was not only
the right one but that it was being appropriately implemented.



In particular that:

“Children and their families benefit from effective early help services.”
“The children’s single point of access service responds effectively to most contacts
and referrals,” and “Most assessments are thorough…”
“The implementation of the local authority’s practice model has significantly
strengthened work to tackle domestic and substance abuse…”
“Many children are successfully diverted from care, as social workers work effectively
with parents and risks to children are reduced” and “When children go missing from

576

Page 24

home, they receive timely return home interviews which lead to insightful
assessments of vulnerability…”
“Senior managers have expanded the capacity of the inclusion team to respond to the
increased number of children who are missing education or moving to elective home
education. These children and young people are supported appropriately and
according to their individual circumstances.”
In light of the positive progress made as outlined above, this
Council resolves to:
I.

Re-affirm its commitment to implementing the further improvements
recommended in the report as our highest priority, and that the Children’s
Services improvement journey will continue until Surrey has achieved a level of
provision that can be seen as being outstanding in every area of children’s
services.

II.

Extend its thanks to the children’s services workforce, who carry out their roles
with pride, and seek to do their best for children and families in Surrey,
particularly over the difficult period of the pandemic; and asks members of the
Council to reflect upon their own role in future improvement work through
scrutiny and challenge and by developing our community leadership of the
wider children’s system in Surrey.

Jeremy Webster made the following points:






That having worked for Children’s Services in Surrey from 2014 for a number of
years, saw first-hand the impact of the Ofsted reports and what the inspectors
were looking for.
Witnessed the efforts made to make the service more child-centred, focused on
early help and prevention, and to create sustainable improvements for children.
Emphasised the complexity and volume of the work that social workers do.
Had been responsible for an average of forty plus children in 2017, was pleased
to report that had since halved for current social workers.
Outlined the resolutions.

The motion was formally seconded by Liz Bowes, who made the following
comments:





That the Council must thank its current and past senior officers for making sure
that Children’s Services was now on the right path.
That it was reassuring that the strengths and areas requiring development were
recognised in the Ofsted report, ensuring that the service could accurately selfevaluate and could make the necessary improvements.
That bringing about change is never easy and the Council has fostered many
new initiatives and ways of working to get to its current position.
That it was vital that the Council paid tribute to its workforce who provide daily
care despite the challenges and that the Council fully supports them on the path
to further improvements.

Jonathan Essex moved an amendment which had been published in the
supplementary agenda (items 6 and 8) on 21 March 2022, which was formally
seconded by Nick Darby.

577

Page 25

The amendment was as follows (with additional words in bold/underlined and
deletions crossed through):
This Council notes:


The Ofsted inspection report on children’s services in Surrey published on 9
March 2022.



That the overall effectiveness of our services is judged to have improved since
the last inspection in 2018 and acknowledges that Surrey’s leaders have
achieved significant change in that time and that they are implementing a clear
and comprehensive improvement programme.

This Council further notes:


That this improvement is described as “…a strong foundation to strive for
excellence.”; but that this programme of improvement needs to continue in
order for our services to be seen as good. The findings of the inspectors are
entirely consistent with the self-assessment audits and the inspection team
confirmed they had confidence that the current improvement plan was not only
the right one but that it was being appropriately implemented.



In particular that:

“Children and their families benefit from effective early help services.”
“The children’s single point of access service responds effectively to most contacts
and referrals,” and “Most assessments are thorough…”
“The implementation of the local authority’s practice model has significantly
strengthened work to tackle domestic and substance abuse…”
“Many children are successfully diverted from care, as social workers work effectively
with parents and risks to children are reduced” and “When children go missing from
home, they receive timely return home interviews which lead to insightful
assessments of vulnerability…”
“Senior managers have expanded the capacity of the inclusion team to respond to the
increased number of children who are missing education or moving to elective home
education. These children and young people are supported appropriately and
according to their individual circumstances.”
In light of the positive progress made as outlined above, this
Council resolves to:
I.

Re-affirm its commitment to implementing the further improvements
recommended in the report as our highest priority, and that the
Children’s Services improvement journey targets will continue until
Surrey to has achieved a level of provision that is classed can be seen
as Outstanding by Ofsted outstanding in every area of children’s
services.

II.

Extend its thanks to the children’s services workforce, who carry out
their roles with pride, and seek to do their best for children and families
578

Page 26

in Surrey, particularly over the difficult period of the pandemic; and asks
members of the Council to reflect upon their own role in future
improvement work through scrutiny and challenge and by developing
our community leadership of the wider children’s system in Surrey.
Jonathan Essex spoke to his amendment, making the following points:





That the amendment to the first resolution was intended to be forward looking.
Achieved by clarifying that the Council aims to be outstanding not just in how it
is seen, but as it is judged externally by families and through Ofsted’s
Outstanding rating.
That it was important that the Council moves from its current plan of getting to
an Ofsted Good rating, towards a new plan of getting to an Outstanding rating
and having that reflected in its culture.
That by shifting its ambition the Council must strengthen its plans and practices
as well as continuing the excellent pathway in which the Council had now set
itself on.

The amendment was formally seconded by Nick Darby, who made the following
comments:



Reiterated that the main changes proposed sought for the Council to head for
an Ofsted rating of Outstanding rather than simply being outstanding.
Hoped that the amendment could be supported.

Jeremy Webster accepted the amendment and therefore it became the
substantive motion.
Seven Members spoke on the motion and made the following comments:










That the public had been made more aware of the importance of Children’s
Services as a result of the recent national trials for the murders of two young
children.
Supported the motion but noted that the inclusion of selected positive quotes of
the Ofsted report was unnecessary.
Supported the motion as the Council must be forward looking, that after four
years for the Council to now be rated as Requires Improvement meant that the
Council was not good enough.
That the Council had issues in staffing, with foster carers and the carers’
performance and around the transition of its children and young people out of
care and into education or work.
That children's education and family services are not to be politicised.
That there remained a number of ‘buts’ as for example ‘overall effectiveness’
needed improvement and the Council must continue to work hard to reach an
Outstanding rating.
That whilst not being able to support the motion, would not vote against it out of
respect for the many officers in Children’s Services who were working diligently
to improve the Council’s performance.
Applauded the progress made however a rating of Requires Improvement was
not adequate for Surrey’s children, as corporate parents the Council should not
be happy with that rating.
That Surrey was an affluent county yet had been independently rated as failing
its Looked After Children since 2015, in six years the Council had moved one
rating from Inadequate to Requires Improvement.
579

Page 27





















Comparatively less affluent local authorities have an Outstanding rating as do
some of Surrey’s neighbours.
That the Ofsted report notes that services were no longer inadequate which was
positive, however overall progress had been slow since 2015.
Offered support to the administration to help in any way possible and would
continue to actively participate in future improvement work through scrutiny and
challenge.
Highlighted that Ofsted had recognised that the Council was implementing a
clear and comprehensive improvement programme and that the Council had
made good progress.
That the Ofsted report highlighted that children were safer and they and their
families benefitted from effective early years services, and that Surrey leaders
had achieved significant change and were determined to continue.
That findings from the recent inspection of the Council’s Youth Offending
Service were that the Council had a well-motivated and knowledgeable service
backed up by targeted training opportunities and a well-resourced specialist
hub, the quality of casework was impressive, and the management team and
practitioners knew the children well and addressed their needs through a wide
range of services.
That it was vital that staff in Children’s Services feel supported by the Council to
maintain the improvements made and to make further improvements and
support them to ensure that no one is left behind.
That to deliver true transformation it was important to work in partnership to
understand the issues and causes, the Ofsted report identifies clear areas
where improvement is required.
Highlighted an area of improvement in the Ofsted report around the continued
significant shortage of local foster carers, the removal of transport to contact
provided by the Council had negative effects on foster carers as reported via a
survey undertaken by the Surrey Foster Care Association, such as feeling
unsafe to travel and considering leaving the service.
Invited Members to meet the Surrey Foster Care Association executive and
members to understand the challenges they face and how to work together to
resolve them.
That foster carers worked tirelessly to provide a vital service and to get to a
rating of Outstanding the Council needed their help.
Highlighted another area of improvement in the Ofsted report, that for a small
number of disabled children there was insufficient attention to the capacity of
their parents, noted a letter on the matter from a resident.
That the Council must acknowledge and encourage the good work by the
Surrey Corporate Parenting Board, to ensure that as many of Surrey’s children
as possible were looked after in the county and to ensure that Surrey’s foster
carers were supported such as through a cross-party group working with foster
carers to ensure that they have a voice.
Called for a Member briefing so that all Members as corporate parents could
understand the full implications of the Ofsted report and encourage the creation
of a revised Surrey Corporate Parenting Strategy.
That the Council would work to address the areas highlighted in the Ofsted
report which need improvements such as around staff turnover, as the quicker
the Council could improve its rating the better.
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families hoped that despite some of the
comments made, Members could agree that the continued improvement of
Children’s Services was the Council’s highest priority in order to improve the
lives of its vulnerable children through transformational social work.

580

Page 28















The Cabinet Member for Children and Families noted that the Ofsted report said
that the senior leadership team and Council leaders had a credible commitment
and a drive to improve services.
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families thanked the current Executive
Director for Children, Families and Lifelong Learning, for her work and that of
her team, all members of staff in the service who worked tirelessly despite the
challenges of the pandemic, and the guidance provided by the previous portfolio
holder for children.
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families asked Members to reflect on
their role through the appropriate committees in supporting the improvement of
Children’s Services through scrutiny and challenge.
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families noted that common to local
authorities with a Good or Outstanding rating in Children’s Services was the
involvement of Members in all matters relating to children and young people.
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families responded to the criticisms
around the slow progress made, noting that the Ofsted report stated that
progress had accelerated since 2018 which was in line with the Council’s clear
improvement plan, thanked the late Executive Director for his work.
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families noted that recounting previous
Ofsted rating on Inadequate in reports back to 2008, the Council had a long
history of inadequacy and it was a difficult journey back.
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families noted that the 2018 Ofsted
report stated that the likelihood of improvement gaining momentum was more
realistic than at any time since 2015, comparatively to similar local authorities
the Council’s improvement journey was consistent.
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families noted that the Council was not
complacent with its improved rating, Surrey was a large county and it would
take time to embed change and further improvements in the consistency and
delivery of its services.
The Cabinet Member for Children and Families noted that the Council
recognised that more progress needed to be made and was striving for
excellence for Surrey’s children and young people.

The Chair asked Jeremy Webster, as proposer of the motion to conclude the
debate, he made the following comments:





Highlighted some positives of the Ofsted report which were that the Children's
Single Point of Access (C-SPA) was working which provided targeted support
and meant that caseloads were more manageable, the Council was becoming
more child-centred, new assessment tools were becoming more embedded, the
work with family courts was becoming more effective, the Council understood
the health needs of children better, and the mental health services were highly
effective.
Recognised that challenges remained such as regarding the transition of
children into adulthood, where to find more foster carers and how to reduce staff
turnover in social workers.
That Surrey’s Corporate Parenting Strategy requires updating and Members
should be involved in that process.

The motion was put to the vote with 51 Members voting For, 1 voting Against and
9 Abstentions.

581

Page 29

Therefore, it was RESOLVED that:
This Council notes:


The Ofsted inspection report on children’s services in Surrey published on 9
March 2022.



That the overall effectiveness of our services is judged to have improved since
the last inspection in 2018 and acknowledges that Surrey’s leaders have
achieved significant change in that time and that they are implementing a clear
and comprehensive improvement programme.

This Council further notes:


That this improvement is described as “…a strong foundation to strive for
excellence.”; but that this programme of improvement needs to continue in
order for our services to be seen as good. The findings of the inspectors are
entirely consistent with the self-assessment audits and the inspection team
confirmed they had confidence that the current improvement plan was not only
the right one but that it was being appropriately implemented.



In particular that:

“Children and their families benefit from effective early help services.”
“The children’s single point of access service responds effectively to most contacts
and referrals,” and “Most assessments are thorough…”
“The implementation of the local authority’s practice model has significantly
strengthened work to tackle domestic and substance abuse…”
“Many children are successfully diverted from care, as social workers work effectively
with parents and risks to children are reduced” and “When children go missing from
home, they receive timely return home interviews which lead to insightful
assessments of vulnerability…”
“Senior managers have expanded the capacity of the inclusion team to respond to the
increased number of children who are missing education or moving to elective home
education. These children and young people are supported appropriately and
according to their individual circumstances.”
In light of the positive progress made as outlined above, this
Council resolves to:
I.

Re-affirm its commitment to implementing the further improvements
recommended in the report as our highest priority, and that the Children’s
Services improvement journey targets Surrey to achieve a level of provision that
is classed as Outstanding by Ofsted in every area of children’s services.

II.

Extend its thanks to the children’s services workforce, who carry out their roles
with pride, and seek to do their best for children and families in Surrey,
particularly over the difficult period of the pandemic; and asks members of the
Council to reflect upon their own role in future improvement work through

582

Page 30

scrutiny and challenge and by developing our community leadership of the
wider children’s system in Surrey.
Item 8 (iii)
Under Standing Order 12.3 the Council agreed to debate this motion.
Under Standing Order 12.1 Will Forster moved:
This Council notes:



That the Government are scrapping free coronavirus tests for most people as
part of the ‘Living with Covid’ plan.
Concern that stopping providing free tests for all will make it harder to fight
coronavirus. Charging for essential tests would hit those who can least afford it
hardest, at a time when families are already being clobbered by soaring energy
bills.

This Council resolves to:
I.
II.

Call on the Government to continue with free PCR and lateral flow tests for
those residents in critical groups, such as front-line workers and those who are
eligible for free prescriptions.
Agree to explore the option of providing free asymptomatic testing for staff
working in health and social care, vulnerable residents in care homes and other
similar groups for up to one year.

Will Forster made the following points:








That having recently recovered from Covid-19, noted the importance of
providing free asymptomatic tests especially whilst cases were high.
That as part of the Government’s ‘Living with COVID-19’ plan, free Covid-19
testing would be stopped for most people in the country and there was concern
that the move was premature, as it could lead to local outbreaks and add to the
cost-of-living crisis.
That the motion called on the Council to lobby the Government to continue to
provide free Covid-19 testing for critical groups like frontline workers in health
and social care, as well as vulnerable individuals.
That the Council needed to send a strong message to the Government against
removing the provision of free testing and in the absence of national change the
Council must step up and provide free Covid-19 testing to critical groups that
the Council has a duty of care for.
Hoped that the Leader would write to the Government calling on them to
reverse its decision and to extend free Covid-19 testing and that the Cabinet
Member for Adults and Health would work with officers to deliver a local testing
programme in Surrey as soon as possible.

The motion was formally seconded by Sinead Mooney, who made the following
comments:




Welcomed the collaboration on drafting the original motion.
Noted that the Council had continuously followed national policy on Covid-19.
That whilst awaiting further national policy guidance on the ‘Living with COVID19’ plan, welcomed the motion and the opportunity to explore further the option
583

Page 31

for free asymptomatic testing for Surrey’s most vulnerable residents and
frontline workers.
Two Members spoke on the motion and made the following comments:















That the situation regarding free Covid-19 testing should be reconsidered.
That currently the Council followed national policy on Covid-19, including testing
and awaited further guidance on the asymptomatic testing policy at the end of
March, as well as the offer to specific settings and testing in response to
outbreaks.
That once that guidance was published the Council’s Public Health team would
be considering how best to implement it locally.
That testing should continue for health and social care workers who look after
vulnerable individuals such as those in care homes often requiring constant
contact, many with dementia, co-morbidities or were immunosuppressed living
in close proximity which meant an increased chance of transmission especially
with the Omicron variant.
That as a result of Omicron the Government was offering Covid-19 boosters for
those aged over 75 years, residents in care homes, and those over 12 years old
who were immunosuppressed.
That health and social care workers were no longer required to have Covid-19
vaccinations, and neither were residents or visitors and given the nature of the
work it was vital to encourage regular testing.
That the Council should lobby the Government for free testing and it should
continue to support the vulnerable groups outlined in the motion.
That Covid-19 had not gone away so all should be vigilant.
Thanked all in Surrey for following public health guidance throughout the
pandemic and all should continue to follow key precautions to help stop the
spread such as getting vaccinated, wearing a face covering in crowded settings,
letting fresh air in, washing hands regularly and staying at home if unwell.
That vaccination statistics showed that the vaccine remained the best form of
protection for Covid-19, noting that it was never too late for those eligible to
book a vaccine.
That as one those groups being eligible to still get free testing, supported the
motion to protect vulnerable people as the country was in a state of transition
concerning Covid-19.

The Chair asked Will Forster, as proposer of the motion to conclude the debate,
he made the following comments:


Thanked Members for their comments.

The motion was put to the vote and received unanimous support.
Therefore, it was RESOLVED that:
This Council notes:



That the Government are scrapping free coronavirus tests for most people as
part of the ‘Living with Covid’ plan.
Concern that stopping providing free tests for all will make it harder to fight
coronavirus. Charging for essential tests would hit those who can least afford it
hardest, at a time when families are already being clobbered by soaring energy
bills.
584

Page 32

This Council resolves to:
I.
II.

Call on the Government to continue with free PCR and lateral flow tests for
those residents in critical groups, such as front-line workers and those who are
eligible for free prescriptions.
Agree to explore the option of providing free asymptomatic testing for staff
working in health and social care, vulnerable residents in care homes and other
similar groups for up to one year.

Item 8 (iv)
Under Standing Order 13.1 the time limit for debating motions had been reached,
therefore Council did not debate this original motion.
25/22

SELECT COMMITTEES' REPORT TO COUNCIL [Item 9]
The Chair welcomed the report which was the first of its kind presented to Council.
The Chair of the Select Committee Chairs and Vice-Chairs’ Group introduced the
report and highlighted that the newly introduced update report would be provided to
Council three times a year in addition to the Scrutiny Annual Report. He thanked the
Select Committees’ Chairs, Vice-Chairs, Members and Scrutiny Officers. He
welcomed feedback from Members.
RESOLVED:
1.
2.

26/22

That Council reviewed the work summarised in the report providing feedback to
Scrutiny Chairs as appropriate.
That the Select Committees report to Council three times a year.

REPORT OF THE CABINET [Item 10]
The Leader presented the report of the Cabinet meetings held on 22 February 2022
and 7 March 2022.
Recommendations on Policy Framework Documents:
There were no reports with recommendations for Council.
Reports for Information/Discussion:
22 February 2022:
A. Working with the Big Fostering Partnership
B. Local and Joint Committee Highway Functions
C. Accelerating the Introduction of Ultra-Low and Zero Emission Vehicles Approval to Procure 34 Hydrogen Fuel Cell Buses
7 March 2022:
D. Department for Education Safety Valve Agreement
E. Quarterly Report on Decisions Taken Under Special Urgency Arrangements: 01
February 2022 – 14 March 2022
585

Page 33

RESOLVED:
1. That Council noted that there had been one urgent decision in the last month.
2. That the report of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 22 February 2022 and 7
March 2022 be adopted.
27/22

MINUTES OF CABINET MEETINGS [Item 11]
No notification had been received by the deadline from Members wishing to raise a
question or make a statement on any matters in the minutes.
[Meeting ended at: 12.54 pm]

______________________________________
Chair

586

Page 34

Appendix A

Leader's Statement – County Council, 22 March 2022

Madam Chair, Members, once again we meet in the midst of yet another global crisis,
with the despicable attack on Ukraine, dominating the world agenda.
Firstly, our collective thoughts are with the Ukrainian people and their government at
this time. Our support and solidarity with them as they fiercely defend their country is
unequivocal.
For those Ukrainians who have had their homes and livelihoods destroyed by Putin’s
senseless and illegitimate violence, we stand ready to help you in every way we
possibly can.
Our communities – as ever – have already sprung into action, with donations,
messages, and offers of all kinds of support flooding in.
The people of Surrey are generous, welcoming, and passionate about helping those
in need – making sure that no one is left behind, and that includes people they may
have never met, from countries they may have never visited.
We are here as residents of Surrey, and we are here as Surrey County Council.
Members, I and officers here have held several calls with central government about
the routes through which we can help, and we expect to see the first Ukrainians arriving
here within days.
We will continue those calls with government colleagues, and partners here in Surrey,
including Districts and Boroughs and the voluntary sector, to ensure that the right
support can be provided, the right safeguarding in place and the right funding provided
to make sure refugees – from all countries – can arrive here safely and sustainably.

587

Page 35

Madam Chair, I know you have spoken on this issue in recent days also, expressing
your support and that of the Council, and Members I am sure you will echo those
sentiments both here today and in your communities.
We have set up dedicated webpages on our website with all the latest information –
about government schemes, charitable appeals, how people can help and the support
available. We will continue to promote this information to try to ensure those who want
to help, can, and those who need help can access it.
As we see those brave people stand up and defend their land, and their belief in
democracy so passionately in Ukraine, let us all reflect here that we, as Elected
Members, have those fundamental beliefs in common.
I am certain that all of us in this room are here for the right reasons, with a shared
passion for fairness, freedom, and a desire to do right by the people we represent.
Let us remember that commonality, which often gets lost in the cut and thrust of political
debate in this country.

Madam Chair, away from the brutality and heartbreak of war, this last month has seen
some incredibly important developments here in Surrey.
As all Members will no doubt be aware, we finally received the outcome of Ofsted’s
inspection of our Children’s Services – something we had been waiting for, for quite
some time.
To put the importance of this report into context – our Children’s Services had been
deemed inadequate by Ofsted on the last two inspections. We had commissioners
appointed and ultimately had not been trusted to deliver that service without
government oversight for at least eight years.
587

Page 36

For a local authority that is one of the ultimate challenges. And turning around a failing
service is not an easy thing to do, or something that can be done with soundbites or
simple political will.
But Madam Chair, I am pleased to say that the service has been turned around, with
all the might, all the expertise, all the sheer hard work of both the leadership and the
staff of this organisation.
And it’s been done while facing numerous storms including a 2 year pandemic.
It is official.
Ofsted do now have confidence in our Children’s Services, and its leadership.
We are no longer ‘inadequate’. We are trusted.
The inspectors noted ‘significant change’, that our leadership is already implementing
a “clear and comprehensive” improvement programme, with a “strong foundation” to
strive for excellence.
We have achieved that very difficult first rung on the ladder, and while yes, we do still
require further improvement, it is clear that we are on the right path, making progress
and picking up speed.
This report will help us accelerate further, especially in the area of recruitment of more
permanent staff, breeding further confidence in what we’re doing.
I must pay tribute to Rachael Wardell and her team, and to the late Dave Hill before
her - for their dedication and expertise in turning that service around. I would very much
hope that this Council will recognise the huge amount of progress that has been made
right across the board and indeed pay tribute to the fantastic staff that have made this
possible. I know that we are not there yet and there is more to do over the coming

587

Page 37

months to ensure that the good practice we are seeing is replicated and deeply
embedded across all areas of Children’s Services.
I know the team will have taken the briefest of deep breaths, before cracking on again
- implementing that further improvement, and we look forward to OFSTED capturing
that continued progress on their future visits.
Supporting, caring for, and keeping our young people safe is central to our role as a
County Council, it is paramount in making sure no one in Surrey is left behind.
I care deeply about that - rooting children and families in our hearts and minds - and I
am heartened by the fact that we’re in a much better place.

Another huge milestone in terms of the progress this organisation is making was also
achieved this month – with our Youth Offending Service rated as Good by Her
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation.
Again, this service was rated inadequate just three years ago.
The improvement and transformation is remarkable, and further proof that this Council
is well on the way to delivering a brighter future for everyone in Surrey.
Here, I must simply echo HMIP’s Chief Inspector:
“To go from an ‘Inadequate’ to ‘Good’ rating, in just a few years, is quite an
achievement. Surrey’s Youth Offending Service is now an organised and focused
service that understands the children under their supervision. They have an impressive
range of innovative services for each child, which look to deter them from further
offending at the earliest opportunity.

587

Page 38

“I commend the staff at Surrey YOS – they have shown a commitment to improvement
and a dedication to a once-struggling service. They faced the challenge and have
succeeded to become a developed, well-motivated and knowledgeable service.”
Not my words Members, but the words of an independent inspector.

This month has also seen independent auditors produce their report following
inspection of our financial management and value for money.
Their detailed report was very positive outlining our ability to ‘maintain an improved
financial position’, despite the challenges of COVID-19 and the short-term nature of
government funding settlements.
There are no areas of significant weakness identified across financial sustainability, or
our improving economy, efficiency, and effectiveness.
As with our Children’s Services, and our Youth Offending Service, our financial
management has been transformed.
We are seen as an industry leader, with our finance academy model and expertise
already guiding other local authorities through financial challenges.

Madam Chair, these official, independent, detailed reports into this Council are
evidence of the massive improvement undertaken over the last few years.
And this is just what’s been published in the last few weeks.
Add to this, three years’ worth of balanced budgets, increased satisfaction from
residents, an improved report from HMICFRS into our Fire Service- and yes Members,
while still filling potholes and repairing roads.
587

Page 39

I have said it many times, I have recognised poor practice and areas of failings, but I
have also outlined a vision for a brighter future, I’ve defended our services and our
staff from political point scoring.
But here we have it in black and white.
This Council has made huge strides across the board. This is not just talking about
what we are going to do – it is absolutely about delivering that improvement.
And we’ve done it while guiding this county through the biggest challenge it’s faced in
a generation in the form of Covid-19.

Rest assured however, we’re not celebrating, we’re not complacent and we’re not
going to slow down on our efforts to get this Council to where we want it to be.
We’re accelerating this improvement even further and we will not let up in our effort to
deliver the very best for our residents.
We’ve got so much more we can do, with detailed plans already in place to deliver.

Madam Chair, you will have noticed being here in Woodhatch, that there is a buzz
around the place.
Here we are in our Surrey HQ – another promise delivered I might add – working hard,
with more of our staff now able, and more confident to come to into the office after two
years of remote working.
We know that this transition into the new normal of proper agile working will take some
time to settle, and we will continue to look to improve the practicalities and experience
for staff.
587

Page 40

But there is no doubting our workforce’s enthusiasm and passion for what they do.
We’re cracking on in delivering for the people of Surrey.

Our Climate Change Delivery Plan is in place, our budget has identified hundreds of
millions of pounds to help deliver it, and work is underway with partners, with schools
and residents to make sure we are a net-zero Council by 2030, and a net-zero County
by 2050.
More trees are being planted – hundreds handed out to residents at libraries this month
– and more electric vehicle charging points are going live all the time.
Investment is secured and committed for electric and hydrogen buses, there has been
huge engagement in our local cycling and walking plans, with more cycle routes going
in and our roads being made safer for active travel with more traffic enforcement
cameras being rolled out.
We will press ahead in tackling the Climate Emergency, I know many Members here
are equally passionate in this endeavour, and we will hold ourselves to account as we
do it.
We all have a role to play.

Madam Chair, another key area of delivery that is picking up momentum is Your Fund
Surrey.
Now into its second year, there are tens of millions of pounds worth of projects logged
on the system, with applications underway at various stages, and our excellent project
team working through to support them.
587

Page 41

This is a Fund designed to harness the positive visions from our communities, to help
deliver their ambitions both big and small, to include more residents, to generate
conversations and improve wellbeing for every local area and every group in Surrey.
We have had to find the right balance of being prudent and responsible with public
money, while stimulating big ideas and making the process as simple as possible within
that responsibility.
We’re just over one year in, and funding has already been granted to several projects
that are going to make a real difference in their communities. However, I do
acknowledge that members want to see funding being released for many more
schemes and now that we are up and running we will be picking up pace.
I know all members will be looking to support their communities in finding suitable
opportunities to make their local area a better place, and having been out to visit
some of these projects myself, it is wonderful to see the energy and positivity from
communities who are actually making it happen.

Plenty of other projects and improvements are underway too.
With funding approved last year for the River Thames Scheme, detailed design has
begun, and public engagement will start in the next couple of months to share the plans
for the biggest flood alleviation scheme this county has ever seen.
Huge progress has been made in Farnham on their town centre masterplan working
with local partners and the community.
Similar town centre infrastructure

improvements are making good progress in

Weybridge alongside our NHS partners, with plans to be presented to the public in
May.
587

Page 42

Spades are in the ground on further modern accommodation for adults and children
with complex needs who need tailored support.
More Special Educational Needs places are being provided – on top of the extra
already delivered – to make sure children can go to school near to where they live.
Our new highways contract begins in a matter of days, and residents will see even
more road improvements – Members, those potholes are being fixed and our roads
and being made safer.

Madam Chair, as I’ve outlined, this Council is making huge progress.
For some years we’ve talked about transformation, doing things differently and wanting
to be the very best we can be for the residents of Surrey.
Over the last few weeks, there is proof that we really are delivering.
We have our eyes wide open – we know we need to continue – but there is no doubt
whatsoever that this organisation, our leadership, and our staff, are all heading in the
right direction.
We will keep going, we will accelerate, and we will do everything in our power to ensure
that no one is left behind. That is our vision, that is our ambition, and that is what we
will deliver. Thank you.

587

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 8

Version: May 2022

Cabinet Member and Deputy Cabinet Member Portfolios

Cabinet Member
Becky Rush
Matt Furniss
Marisa Heath
Natalie Bramhall
Mark Nuti
Kevin Deanus
Clare Curran
Denise Turner-Stewart
Sinead Mooney

Portfolio
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Finance and Resources
Cabinet Member for Transport,
Infrastructure and Economy
Cabinet Member for Environment
Cabinet Member for Property and
Waste
Cabinet Member for Communities
Cabinet Member for Community
Protection
Cabinet Member for Children and
Families
Cabinet Member for Education and
Learning
Cabinet Member for Adults and Health

*Leader not included in the above

Deputy Cabinet Member
Maureen Attewell
Steve Bax
Jordan Beech
Rebecca Paul

Portfolio
Deputy Cabinet Member for Children
and Families
Deputy Cabinet Member for
Environment
Deputy Cabinet Member for Highways
Deputy Cabinet Member for Levelling
Up

Page 45

Annex 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 2

Version: May 2022

Cabinet Portfolio Updates















Leader of the Council
Overall vision and strategic direction
Major government and national representation
District and Borough partnerships
Regional and Strategic partnerships
Communications
Engagement and Consultation
Corporate governance
Business relationships
Place-based work e.g. Thinking Place work
HR and OD
LEP relationships
Health and Wellbeing including mental health
Major projects

Key Officers:
 Chief Executive
 Deputy Chief Executive
 Executive Director for Partnerships, Prosperity and Growth
 Joint Executive Director for Public Service Reform
 Chief of Staff to Chief Executive and Leader
 Strategic Director, Communications and Engagement
 Strategic Director of People and Change
Select Committee:
 Resources and Performance Select Committee
 Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee

Page 47









Deputy Cabinet Member for Levelling Up – Rebecca Paul
Levelling Up fund opportunities
Communications strategy for Levelling Up agenda (cross-portfolio)
Strengthening Families (e.g. family hub)
Infrastructure for opportunity
Social infrastructure development (e.g. youth centres)
Data and SODA
EDI (joint)

Key Officers:
 Executive Director for Children Families and Lifelong Learning
 Executive Director for Partnerships, Prosperity and Growth
 Executive Director for Environment, Transport, and Infrastructure
 Executive Director for Customer and Communities
 Chief of Staff to Chief Executive and Leader
Select Committee:
 Children, Families, Lifelong Learning and Culture Select Committee
 Adults and Health Select Committee
 Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee

Page 48

Cabinet Member for
Cabinet Member for
Cabinet Member for
Children and
Education and
Adults and Health –
Families – Clare
Learning – Denise
Sinead Mooney
Curran
Turner-Stewart
 Children’s
 Adult Social Care
 Education
services
 Safeguarding
 Special
 Children’s
 Accommodation
Education
integrated
for vulnerable and
Needs and/or
commissioning
elderly adults
Disabilities
 Corporate
 Learning
(SEND),
parenting
Disabilities
including
(including
 Transitions
Transport
fostering and
 Local Outbreak
 Schools adoption)
Engagement
relationships
 Children with
Board
 Place planning
Disabilities

Local Outbreak
 Admissions
(CwD)
Plan Advisory
 Skills and
 Safeguarding
Board
apprenticeships
 Accommodation
 Health and Social
 Adult learning
for vulnerable
Care Integration
children
 Public Health
Key Officers:
 Integrated
 Executive
commissioning
Director for
Key Officer:
 EDI (joint)
Children,
 Executive
 Housing
Families and
Director for
Lifelong
Key Officers:
Children,
Learning
Families and
 Executive Director
 Executive
Lifelong
for Adult Social
Director for
Learning
Care and Health
Partnerships,
Integration
Prosperity and
Select Committee:
 Executive Director
Growth
 Children,
for Partnerships,
Families,
Prosperity and
Lifelong
Growth
Select Committee:
Learning and
 Executive Director
 Children,
Culture Select
for Public Service
Families,
Committee
Reform
Lifelong
 Chief of Staff to
Learning and
Chief Executive
Culture Select
and Leader
Committee
Select Committee:
 Children, Families,
Lifelong Learning
and Culture Select
Committee
 Adults and Health
Select Committee

Page 49

Cabinet Member for
Property and Waste
– Natalie Bramhall








Property
portfolio
Waste
contract
Capital
Programme
Delivery
Strategic
Investment
Board
Weybridge
delivery Board

Key Officers:
 Executive
Director for
Resources
 Executive
Director for
Environment,
Transport and
Infrastructure

Select Committee:
 Resources
and
Performance
Select
Committee
 Communities,
Environment
and Highways
Select
Committee

Deputy Cabinet
Member for Children
and Families –
Maureen Attewell
 Youth Services
 Domestic
Abuse
 Family
Resilience
 Other
Children’s
Commissioning
Key Officer:
 Executive
Director for
Children,
Families and
Lifelong
Learning
Select Committee:
 Children,
Families,
Lifelong
Learning and
Culture Select
Committee

Page 50

Cabinet Member
for Transport,
Infrastructure and
Economy – Matt
Furniss
 Highways
and
operational
delivery
including
procurement
 Road Safety
 Parking
 Transport
 Air and Rail
 Infrastructure
 5G Rollout
 Economic
Growth
 Planning
 Growth
Board

Key Officers:
 Executive
Director for
Environment,
Transport
and
Infrastructure
 Executive
Director for
Partnerships,
Prosperity
and Growth
Select Committee:
 Communities,
Environment
and
Highways
Select
Committee

Cabinet Member
for Environment –
Marisa Heath









Greener
Futures
Programme
Climate
Change
Air Quality
Countryside
Waste
(greener
futures
oversight)
Trees
Greener
Futures
Board

Key Officer:
 Executive
Director for
Environment,
Transport
and
Infrastructure
Select Committee:
 Communities,
Environment
and
Highways
Select
Committee

Deputy Leader and
Cabinet Member
for Finance and
Resources –
Becky Rush
 FinanceRevenue &
Capital
 Digital,
Business and
Insights
Programme
 Internal
control/audit
 Commercial
investment and
capital
programme
financial
oversight
 Procurement
 Orbis
 Legal and
Democratic
 IT
 Digital
 Contract
management
 SCC
companies
 Performance
Management
and Reporting
 Transformation
 Transformation
Assurance
Board
Key Officer:
 Executive
Director for
Resources
Select Committee:
 Resources and
Performance
Select
Committee

Page 51

Cabinet Member
for Communities
– Mark Nuti













Local
democracy
and
engagement
design
Local & Joint
Committees
Community
Foundation
Surrey
relationship
Customer
Services
Libraries, Arts
and Culture
Registration
Services
Your Fund
Surrey
VCFS
Town and
Parishes
Empowering
and Thriving
Communities
Board

Key Officer:
 Executive
Director for
Customer and
Communities
Select
Committee:
 Communities,
Environment
and Highways
Select
Committee
 Resources
and
Performance
Select
Committee

Cabinet
Member for
Community
Protection –
Kevin Deanus
 Flooding
 Fire and
Rescue
 Community
Safety
 Trading
Standards
 Corporate
Health and
Safety
 Coroners
 Emergency
planning
 Community
Resilience
 Military
Covenant

Key Officer:
 Chief Fire
Officer
Select
Committee:
 Communiti
es,
Environme
nt and
Highways
Select
Committee
 Resources
and
Performanc
e Select
Committee



Deputy Cabinet
Member for
Highways – Jordan
Beech







Highways
and
operational
delivery
Street works
Asset
Planning
Road Safety
Parking and
Enforcement

Deputy Cabinet
Member for
Environment –
Steve Bax






Key Officer:
 Executive
Director for
Environment,
Transport
and
Infrastructure

Select Committee:
 Communities,
Environment
and
Highways
Select
Committee

Greener
Futures
Communicati
on
Norbury Park
- resident
liaison and
general
overview
Greener
Futures
Steering
Group
support for
MH and
developing
connections
with D&B
political
members
Attendance
at SEP
meetings
alongside MH

Page 52

Children,
Families,
Lifelong
Learning and
Culture Select
Committee

Item 9

County Council Meeting – 24 May 2022

ANNUAL REVIEW OF POLITICAL PROPORTIONALITY – 2022/23
Report of the Monitoring Officer
1.

The Council is asked to formally review the proportional political allocation of
places on committees and to adopt a scheme of proportionality for the Council
year 2022/23.

2.

The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires local authorities to
review committee membership and political representation annually.

3.

By law, seats on committees must be allocated in proportion to the political
composition of the Council. An authority can only decide that it wishes to
adopt an arrangement other than a proportional one if no Member votes
against it.

4.

The number of seats of each group on the Council and the resulting number
of seats on committees and percentages are as follows:
Liberal
Democrats

Labour

Green

47

Residents’
Association
&
Independent
16

14

2

2

53

18

16

2

2

58%

18%

20%

2%

2%

Conservative

Number of
Council
seats
Number of
seats on
committees
Percentage

N.B The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations
1990 require a constituted political group to be two or more members.
5.

In determining the allocation of seats on ordinary committees, the proportion
that each political group forms of the total membership of the Council is
applied to the total number of elected Member seats on each committee.
Generally, fractional entitlements of less than one half are rounded down and
entitlements of one half or more are rounded up. So that this process of
rounding does not result in advantage to one political group, the aggregate
membership of all the ordinary committees must also be in line with the
proportions on the County Council.

6.

A scheme of proportionality for 2022/23 is attached at Annex 1.

RECOMMENDATION
That the committee sizes and scheme of proportionality as set out in Annex 1 be
adopted for 2022/23.
CONTACT
TEL NO:
BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Paul Evans
Director of Law & Governance
020 8213 2584
Local Government and Housing Act 1989
Proportional Representation Table
Constitution of the Council

Page 53

ANNEX 1
SCHEME OF PROPORTIONALITY 2022/23
CON

RA &
IND

LIB DEM

LAB

GREEN

Tot
al

7

3

2

1

0

13*

13

7

3

2

1

13*

13

7

3

2

1

13

13

Resources & Performance

7

2

3

1

0

13

13

PLANNING &
REGULATORY
COMMITTEE

7

2

2

0

0

11

11

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

4

1

1

0

6*

PEOPLE,
PERFORMANCE &
DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

4

1

1

0

6

6

SURREY PENSION
FUND COMMITTEE

4

1

1

0

6*

6

81

81

0

10

10

2

91

91

Figs last
year^

SELECT COMMITTEES
Adults & Health
Children, Families,
Lifelong Learning &
Culture
Communities,
Environment & Highways

MEMBER CONDUCT
PANEL

TOTAL

0

6

2

2

53

18

16

0

0

0

0

0

2

* additional co-opted members are appointed to these committees

Note:

Local and Joint Area Committees comprise the County
Councillors for the electoral divisions within each
Borough/District area and are not therefore required to be
politically proportional.

Page 54

6

County Council Meeting – 24 May 2022

Item 10

OFFICER REPORT TO COUNCIL
APPROVAL OF COUNTY COUNCILLOR ABSENCE

KEY ISSUE/DECISION:
The purpose of this report is to request that the County Council considers
whether to agree that County Councillor Alison Todd may continue to be
absent from Council meetings by reason of ill health.
BACKGROUND:
Under section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972, a Member ceases to
hold that office if he/she has not attended a meeting for a period of six
consecutive months, unless the failure to attend is due to a reason approved
by the authority during that six months. The last meeting that Alison Todd
attended was a meeting of the County Council in October 2021 and she has
unfortunately not been able to attend any formal meetings since then while
she receives treatment for a serious health condition.
For that reason the County Council is requested to agree that she may
continue to be absent from meetings while maintaining membership of the
Council during her period of ill health. This decision will be reviewed at the
County Council meeting in December 2022.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That Alison Todd may continue to be absent from meetings until December
2022 by reason of ill health. The Council looks forward to welcoming her back
in due course.

Lead/Contact Officers:
Vicky Hibbert
Governance Lead Manager
Vicky.hibbert@surreycc.gov.uk
Sources/background papers:
None

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

County Council Meeting – 24 May 2022

Item 13

OFFICER REPORT TO COUNCIL
AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION

KEY ISSUE/DECISION:
It is the Council’s responsibility to approve changes to the Council’s
Constitution. This includes the Scheme of Delegation regarding non-executive
functions, while amendments to executive functions are the responsibility of
the Leader and are brought to County Council to note.
This report sets out proposed changes to the Constitution’s Standing Orders
and also includes executive and non-executive functions set out in the
Scheme of Delegation and these are brought to Council for information and
formal approval.
These changes are brought to Council in accordance with Articles 4.10, 5.02
and 11.02 of the Council’s Constitution.
BACKGROUND:
1.

The Leader is responsible for maintaining a list in Part 3 of the
Constitution setting out who will exercise executive functions. Any
changes to this list are required to be reported to the next appropriate
meeting of the County Council. Such changes, which have already been
agreed by the Leader, are set out in paragraphs 5 and 6 of this report.

2.

In addition, changes to any non-executive functions require approval by
Council. There are no proposed changes to the Members Allowances
Scheme other than the annual CPI uplift as set out in paragraphs 9-14,
and there is a proposed change to Standing Orders in relation to the
authentication of documents and digital sealing as set out in paragraphs
16-18.

TRANSFER OF HIGHWAYS FUNCTIONS FROM LOCAL AND JOINT
COMMITTEES
3. At its meeting on 22 February 2022, the Cabinet agreed to transfer the
Surrey County Council highways functions from the remit of the Local and
Joint Committees.

Page 57

4. Cabinet approved changes to the way that executive highway functions
decisions are taken, transferring them from Local and Joint Committees
(LC/JCs) to enable officers to take such decisions in more direct
consultation with the relevant members. These changes took effect from
April 2022 and sit alongside the development of new engagement methods
and tools to enable members and officers to reach out more effectively to
residents.
FUNCTIONS FOR REPORT TO COUNCIL
Transfer of Executive Functions – Local and Joint Committees
5. As a result of the Cabinet decision, the Officer Scheme of Delegation has
been updated to ensure that the Scheme of Delegation is correct and that
the necessary delegations are in place to allow officers to take decisions
from 1 April 2022.
6. The Leader approved these changes on 30 March 2022 and an extract of
the scheme of delegation showing the changes is set out in Annex 1.
Council is asked to note the Leader’s approved changes to the Officer
Scheme of Delegation.
Terms of Reference for Local and Joint Committees in SCC Constitution
and Functions within the Constitutions for Guildford, Runnymede,
Spelthorne and Woking Joint Committees
7. As a result of the approved changes to the remits of the Local and Joint
Committees, the Local and Joint Committee Terms of Reference within the
Surrey County Council Constitution have also been updated to reflect the
transfer of the executive highways functions.
8. These consequential changes are set out in Annex 2 and Council is asked
to note these changes.
9. The Constitutions of the four Joint Committees (Guildford, Runnymede,
Spelthorne and Woking) also required updating and the consequential
changes to these can be found in Annexes 3-6 and Council is also asked
to note these.
FUNCTIONS FOR COUNCIL TO APPROVE
Members Allowances Scheme
10. At its meeting on 7 July 2020, the Council amended its Members’
Allowances Scheme in accordance with recommendations presented in
the report of the Independent Remuneration Panel.
11. The new scheme made provision for an annual adjustment of allowances
on 1 April, with reference to the previous September’s Consumer Price

Page 58

Index. This is in accordance with Regulation 10(4) of The Local
Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003.
12. In September 2021, the CPI increase was 2.9%. This year’s index will
increase the Members Allowances budget by c.£30.5K to c.£1,538,000.
13. When the only change made to a scheme in any year is an annual
adjustment in accordance with such index, the scheme shall be deemed
not to have been amended.
14. An updated guide to Members Allowances and Expenses will be published
on the SCC external website and circulated to Members.
15. Council is asked to approve the Member Allowances Scheme as at Annex
7.
Authentication of documents - Digital sealing
16. The Council’s Constitution sets out how documents should be
authenticated. Standing Orders 156-159 details information on the County
Seal and how documents should be sealed and witnessed by Legal
Services staff.
17. It is proposed that going forward the use of digital sealing is included and
referenced within these standing orders to enable this procedure to be
used where appropriate. A digital seal is an encrypted seal which can be
securely affixed to an electronic document and stored in an electronic
sealing register to form a permanent and secure record of documents
sealed by the Council. Digital seals are accepted as evidence of executing
a document in contractual documentation and in qualified circumstances
by the Land Registry.
18. Council is asked to approve the following change to Standing Order 157:
157.

All documents which require to be sealed by the Council shall be
witnessed by the Head of Legal or such of his/her senior officers
as he/she shall formally nominate for the purposes of this
Standing Order. Any document sealed and so witnessed shall
be deemed to have been duly and validly executed on behalf of
the Council. The sealing of documents can be both in hard
copy or digitally.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
A. That the executive function changes to the Officer Scheme of Delegation
in relation to highways functions approved by the Leader in March 2022 be
noted (Annex 1).

Page 59

B. It is recommended that the consequential amendments to the Terms of
Reference for Local and Joint Committees as set out in Section 2 –
Responsibility of Function and Scheme of Delegation be noted (Annex 2).
C. That the consequential amendments to the Joint Committee Constitutions
for Guildford, Runnymede, Spelthorne and Woking Joint Committees be
noted (Annexes 3-6).
D. That the Members Allowances Scheme be approved (Annex 7).
E. That the changes to the Council’s Constitution in relation to digital sealing
be approved (as set out in paragraph 18).

Lead/Contact Officer:
Vicky Hibbert
Governance Lead Manager
Tel: 020 8541 9229
Annexes:
Annex 1 – Part 3, Section 3, Part 3A Officer Scheme of Delegation – extract
to show changes to highways functions
Annex 2 – Part 3, Sections 1 and 1 – Responsibility of Function and Scheme
of Delegation – extract of local and joint committee terms of reference
Annex 3 – Guildford Joint Committee Constitution
Annex 4 – Runnymede Joint Committee Constitution
Annex 5 – Spelthorne Joint Committee Constitution
Annex 6 – Woking Joint Committee Constitution
Annex 7 – Part 7 Members Allowances Scheme
Sources/background papers:
The Council’s Constitution
Guildford Joint Committee Constitution
Runnymede Joint Committee Constitution
Spelthorne Joint Committee Constitution
Woking Joint Committee Constitution

Page 60

Annex 1

Section 3, Part 3A Specific Delegation to Officers

The specific functions of the County Council (executive and non-executive) set out in column 3 below are delegated to the corresponding
officers listed in column 4 (or any temporary replacement post holder nominated in accordance with paragraph 2.3 of the Scheme) subject to
the requirements and limits of this Scheme of Delegation.
ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT AND INFRASTRUCTURE
No

Service area

FUNCTIONS DELEGATED

TITLE OF POSTHOLDER

Page 61

Where a highways decision is delegated to an officer in consultation with the divisional member and there is disagreement on the
proposed outcome this will be escalated to the Cabinet Member for decision
EAI15

Highways and
Transport

EAI16

Highways and
Transport

To consider Compulsory Purchase Orders
affecting the highway and other Orders made
by the Secretary of State and, subject to prior
consultation with the Director of Law &
Governance, to inform the Secretary of State
that the County Council have no objection to
the Order. NB In the event that the County
Council wishes to object to the Order where
timescales permit a report will be submitted
to the Local Committee. Where the
consultation period does not allow for a
report to be considered by the Local
Committee the Cabinet Member for
Transport and Infrastructure and Local
Member will be consulted
To authorise the construction of schemes (other
than bridge maintenance or strengthening)

Director Highways & Transport
Director Infrastructure, Planning & Major Projects
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group Manager
Highways Information Team Manager

Director Highways & Transport
Director Infrastructure, Planning & Major Projects

No

Service area

FUNCTIONS DELEGATED

TITLE OF POSTHOLDER

Where a highways decision is delegated to an officer in consultation with the divisional member and there is disagreement on the
proposed outcome this will be escalated to the Cabinet Member for decision

Page 62

approved by officers, the Cabinet Member or Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group Manager
the Local Committee or the Cabinet.
Network & Asset Management Group Manager
Infrastructure Schemes Team Manager
Transport Infrastructure Manager
Highway Maintenance Manager
Highway Improvement Construction Manager
Highways Scheme Design Manager
Technical Support & Communication Manager
Engagement & Commissioning Manager
Parking & Traffic Enforcement Manager
To approve or consent to action which a District Director Highways & Transport
Council proposes to take in those cases where
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group Manager
prior approval or consent of the County Council Engagement & Commissioning Manager
is required, and report to the Local
Parking & Traffic Enforcement Manager
Committee.

EAI18

Highways and
Transport

EAI19

Highways and
Transport

To instruct the invitation and acceptance of
tenders in respect of new modifications to
existing traffic signals, pelican and toucan
crossing installations as part of schemes
approved by officers, the Cabinet Member or
Cabinet. approved by the Local Committees.

Director Highways & Transport
Network & Asset Management Group Manager
Traffic and Streetworks Manager
Traffic Operations Team Leader
Design Programme Manager

EAI22

Highways and
Transport

To make

Director Highways & Transport

Environment

(1) Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders under
s14 (1), 15(2) and 15(8) of the Road Traffic

Network & Asset Management Group Manager
Traffic and Streetworks Manager
Part 3 Scheme of Delegation
April 2022

No

Service area

FUNCTIONS DELEGATED

TITLE OF POSTHOLDER

Where a highways decision is delegated to an officer in consultation with the divisional member and there is disagreement on the
proposed outcome this will be escalated to the Cabinet Member for decision
Regulation Act 1984, including temporary
orders for waiting/ parking restriction which
would attract penalty charge notices for
contraventions and
(2) ‘special events’ orders under s16(a), (b) or
(c) of the Road Traffic Act 1984

Page 63

subject to informing the local Members.
Chairman of the Local Committee (local
Members also informed).
EAI23

Highways and
Transport

Where significant objections are received to
an advertised Traffic Regulation Order to
Environment decide, in consultation with the divisional
member, appropriate1 borough councillor
on the joint committee where the local
committee is a joint committee and the
Local Committee Chairman/ Vice Chairman,
whether the Traffic Regulation Order may be
made.

Traffic Operations Team Leader
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group Manager
Parking & Traffic Enforcement Manager
Engagement & Commissioning Manager Natural
Capital Group Manager
Access Team Manager
Senior Countryside Access Officer, Legal Definition
Streetworks Policy & Tech Support Team Leader
Network Coordination Team Leader
Streetworks Compliance Team Leader
Director Highways & Transport
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group
Manager
Parking & Traffic Enforcement Manager
Engagement & Commissioning Manager
Natural Capital Group Manager
Access Team Manager
Senior Countryside Access Officer, Legal
Definition

The Parking & Traffic Enforcement Manager
or Engagement & Commissioning Manager,
in consultation with the Divisional Member,
appropriate borough councillor on the joint

Part 3 Scheme of Delegation
April 2022

No

Service area

FUNCTIONS DELEGATED

TITLE OF POSTHOLDER

Where a highways decision is delegated to an officer in consultation with the divisional member and there is disagreement on the
proposed outcome this will be escalated to the Cabinet Member for decision

Page 64

committee where the local committee is a
joint committee and the relevant Local
Committee Chairman or Vice-Chairman, will
decide whether or not to accede to any
unresolved objections received in relation to
an advertised TRO, and whether the TRO
may be made, either with or without
modifications, with due regard to the
provisions of regulation 14 of the Local
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure)
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996.
Where a TRO has been advertised and a
substantial number of objections have been
received or significant modifications are
proposed to be made, the Parking Strategy
and Implementation Team Manager or Area
Team Manager, in consultation with the
Divisional Member, appropriate borough
councillor on the joint committee where the
local committee is a joint committee and the
relevant Local Committee Chairman or ViceChairman, may refer the decision on
whether the TRO may be made to the Local
Committee.

Part 3 Scheme of Delegation
April 2022

No

Service area

FUNCTIONS DELEGATED

TITLE OF POSTHOLDER

Where a highways decision is delegated to an officer in consultation with the divisional member and there is disagreement on the
proposed outcome this will be escalated to the Cabinet Member for decision
Highways and
Transport

To progress and implement proposals for
changes in waiting and parking restrictions,
following agreement by the Local
Committee, including the placing of traffic
signs.

Director Highways & Transport
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group
Manager
Parking & Traffic Enforcement Manager

EAI42

Highways and
Transport

To authorise, in consultation with the relevant
divisional Members, Member highways funding
allocations where Members wish to combine
their allocation to be spent in one or more
divisions.

Director Highways & Transport
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group Manager
Engagement & Commissioning Manager
Highways Maintenance Manager

EAI46

Highways and
Transport

In consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Highways, Transport and Flooding to determine
the final programme of roads included in the
Council’s part-night lighting policy and to vary
the road categories and future timings of partnight lighting where assessed to be safe to do
so

Director of Highways & Transport
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group
Manager

Page 65

EAI26

Part 3 Scheme of Delegation
April 2022

No

Service area

FUNCTIONS DELEGATED

TITLE OF POSTHOLDER

Where a highways decision is delegated to an officer in consultation with the divisional member and there is disagreement on the
proposed outcome this will be escalated to the Cabinet Member for decision
EAI113 Highways &
Transport

To make decisions on approval of the
Members’ Local Highway Fund in
consultation with individual members or the
relevant local committee Chairman where it
is not possible to obtain the individual
Member’s views.

Director Highways & Transport
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group
Manager
Engagement & Commissioning Manager

Page 66

No

Service area

FUNCTIONS DELEGATED

TITLE OF POSTHOLDER

EAI128

Highways and
Transport

The allocation and management of highway
capital and revenue budgets assigned to a
Divisional member for minor highway
improvements and highways maintenance,
including the scope to use a proportion of
either budget to facilitate local initiatives in
consultation with the divisional member

Director Highways & Transport
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group Manager
Engagement & Commissioning Manager
Highways Maintenance Manager

EAI129

Highways and
Transport

Reviewing on-street parking management,
including local parking charges where
appropriate and to approve the statutory
advertisement of Traffic Regulation Orders
relating to on-street parking controls and
consideration of any objections, in
consultation with the Divisional Member

Director Highways & Transport
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group Manager
Engagement & Commissioning Manager

EAI130

Highways and
Transport

To agree local speed limits on County Council Director Highways & Transport
roads within their area and to approve the
Part 3 Scheme of Delegation
April 2022

No

EAI131

Service area

Highways and
Transport

FUNCTIONS DELEGATED

TITLE OF POSTHOLDER

statutory advertisement of speed limit orders
and consideration of objections taking into
account the advice of Surrey Police and with
regard to the County Council speed limit
policy in consultation with the Divisional
Member

Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group Manager
Engagement & Commissioning Manager

To approve the statutory advertisement of all
legal orders or appropriate notifications
relating to highway schemes and
consideration of objections in consultation
with the Divisional Member

Director Highways & Transport
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group Manager
Engagement & Commissioning Manager
Transport Development Planning Manager

Page 67

Natural Capital Group Manager
Access Team Manager
Senior Countryside Access Officer, Legal Definition
EAI132

Highways and
Transport

Consider applications for stopping up a
highway under section 116 of the Highways
Act 1980 when, following consent of any
relevant borough/district/parish council,
unresolved objections have been received
during the period of statutory public
advertisement, and to decide whether the
application should proceed to the
Magistrates’ Court in consultation with the
Divisional Member and in line with the
“Removal of Public Rights over Roads and
Highways Land” policy (2010)

Director Highways & Transport
Highway Operations & Infrastructure Group Manager
Engagement & Commissioning Manager
Highways Technical Support & Communication
Manager
Highways Information Team Manager

Part 3 Scheme of Delegation
April 2022

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 2

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE COUNCIL
PART 3
SECTION 1
RESPONSIBILITY FOR FUNCTIONS
INTRODUCTION
The County Council is required by the Local Government Act 2000 and
Regulations made under it to indicate how it has arranged for its functions to
be carried out. The Scheme of Delegation (“the Scheme”) sets out details of
who is responsible for which functions in the Authority and the extent to which
any functions have been delegated.

7

LOCAL COMMITTEES 1

7.1

Membership
Between 5 and 10 county councillors depending upon the number of
electoral divisions within each district/borough area and an equal
number of co-opted district/borough councillors with voting rights in
relation to all matters, with the exception of Education, Youth and
Members’ Allocations.

7.2

Executive Functions of Local Committees
Local committees will be responsible for the following:
a) Decisions relating to general power of competence
The County Council members of local committees may take
decisions in response to local needs, within the County Council’s
general power of competence and in accordance with the financial
framework and policies of the County Council.
b) Decisions on local services and budgets
In relation to the District or Borough they serve each local
committee will take decisions delegated to them by the Leader
and/or Cabinet on the following local services and budgets, to be
taken in accordance with the financial framework and policies of the

1

Apart from Woking, Spelthorne, Guildford and Woking Joint Committees the arrangements
for which are set out at section 7A, 7B, 7C and 7D
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 69

County Council, within a framework of agreed performance and
resources:
(i)

Changes which amount to more than 15% in the hours of
opening for local libraries (whether managed directly by Surrey
County Council or under a community partnership agreement.)

(ii)

Community safety funding that is delegated to the Local
Committee.

(iii) Decisions in relation to highways & infrastructure:
a. The allocation of the highway capital budget and
highway revenue budget which are devolved to the
Local Committee for minor highway improvements,
and highway maintenance, within the committee’s
area including the scope to use a proportion of either
budget to facilitate local initiatives.
b. To allocate funds to review on-street parking
management, including local parking charges where
appropriate and to approve the statutory
advertisement of Traffic Regulation Orders relating to
on-street parking controls.
c. To agree local speed limits on County Council roads,
within their area and to approve the statutory
advertisement of speed limit orders, taking into
account the advice of the Surrey Police road safety
and traffic management team and with regard to the
County Council Speed Limit Policy.
d. To approve the statutory advertisement of all legal
orders or appropriate notifications relating to highway
schemes within the delegated powers of the Local
Committee.
e. Where, under delegated powers, the Parking Strategy
and Implementation Team Manager or Area Team
Manager has chosen to refer the decision on whether
a Traffic Regulation Order should be made to the
Local Committee, the committee will make that
decision.
f.

To consider applications for stopping up a highway
under section 116 of the Highways Act 1980 when,
following consent of any relevant
borough/district/parish council, unresolved
objections have been received during the period of
statutory public advertisement, and to decide whether
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 70

the application should proceed to the Magistrates’
Court.
(iii)

In relation to youth services:
a. The approval of prevention priorities for Young People for
the relevant borough or district area after consideration of
any local needs assessment.
b. To apportion the delegated funding for young people
between the Local Prevention Grants and Individual
Prevention Grants categories of funding, in accordance
with the allocated budget.

c) Approve the award of the Local Prevention funding agreements for
the provision of local prevention services for the relevant borough or
district in accordance with the allocated budget.
This power to be exercised by the Portfolio Holder in the event that
the relevant local committee is unable to award a funding
agreement(s) (due to the presence of conflicts of interest which
result in the body being inquorate).
d) To approve Youth Task Group advice on the allocation of
Community Youth Work and Surrey Outdoor Learning and
Development Local Offer resources to meet local priorities for young
people in the area.
7.3

Service Monitoring, Scrutiny & Issues of Local Concern
The Local Committees may:
i) In relation to the exercise of executive functions relating to
Members allocations, the Local Committee will receive a report on
all projects approved under delegated authority of the Community
Partnership Manager or Team Leader.
ii) In relation to Community Highway Enhancement allocations,
receive a report on all projects approved by Individual
Members of the authority under delegated authority, or by the
Area Team Manager where Members have requested that their
allocations be combined to be spent in one or more divisions.
iii) Monitor the formal decisions taken by officers under delegated
powers and provide feedback to improve service standards.
iv) Engage in issues of concern to local people and seek to influence
the County Council, the Leader and Cabinet in relation to
countywide services and plans in the light of local needs.
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 71

v) Consider priorities for collaborative work undertaken within the
committee’s area by county services and partners.
vi) Monitor the quality of services provided locally, and recommend
action as appropriate.
vii) Be informed of the Borough/District based community strategies
and related local plans within their area.
viii)Be informed in relation to the prioritisation of proposed and planned
infrastructure schemes, or developer funded highway improvements
within their area.
ix) Be informed of and receive appropriate reports on highway
initiatives and/or improvements either wholly or partly in their
area.
x) Monitor local initiatives agreed and funded by Local
Committees.
xi) Oversee and monitor on street parking enforcement including
financials in its area subject to terms of reference, agreed by
the committee, which best suit its particular local
circumstances.
xii) Scrutinise the impact of the Local Prevention, Community Youth
Work and Surrey Outdoor Learning and Development Local Offer in
accordance with prevention priorities for Young People in the local
area.
xiii)Guildford Local Committee may be consulted by the borough
council in relation to proposed borough plans and make
recommendations to the borough council on those proposals
which will include parking and infrastructure matters.
7.4

Non-Executive Functions
Local Committees will deal with all those non-executive functions
relating to public rights of way set out in the Local Authorities
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, as
amended, except for those separately referred to in the Scheme of
Delegation (or within the terms of reference of other Committees).
(Note: A local committee may not make any decision which will have an
adverse effect on a part of the county for which it does not have
functions).

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 72

7A

WOKING JOINT COMMITTEE

7.5

Membership
All County Councillors with an electoral division in Woking, one Surrey
County Council Cabinet Member (who can also be a County Councillor
with an electoral division in Woking), and an equivalent number of
Borough Councillors who should be politically proportionate to the
Borough Council. At least one Borough Councillor should be a
member of that Council’s executive. All Borough and County
Ccouncillors on the Joint Committee will have equal voting rights on all
issues being considered.

7.6

Executive Functions of Woking Joint Committee (delegated by
Surrey County Council (SCC) and Woking Borough Council (WBC))
The Joint Committee will be responsible for the following decisions on
local services and budgets:
a) In relation to the Borough of Woking the Joint Committee will take
decisions delegated to it by the SCC Leader and/or Cabinet and/or
the WBC Leader and/or Executive on the following local services
and budgets, to be taken in accordance with the financial framework
and policies of the respective Councils within a framework of agreed
performance and resources:
(i)

Changes which amount to more than 15% in the hours of
opening for local libraries (whether managed directly by
Surrey County Council or under a community partnership
agreement.) (SCC)

(ii)

Community safety funding that is delegated to the Joint
Committee. The Joint Committee will act as the Community
Safety Partnership (Note: Domestic Homicide Reviews will be
chaired by such person as the Chairman of the Joint
Committee shall nominate) (SCC/WBC).

(iii) Decisions in relation to highways and infrastructure:
a.

The allocation of the Surrey County Council highway
capital budget and highway revenue budget which
are devolved to the Joint Committee for minor
highway improvements and highway maintenance
within the committee’s area, including the scope to
use a proportion of either budget to facilitate local
highways initiatives (SCC).

b.

To allocate funds to review on-street parking
management, including local parking charges where
appropriate, and to approve the statutory
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 73

advertisement of Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs)
relating to on-street parking controls (SCC).
c.

To agree local speed limits on County Council roads
within its area, and to approve the statutory
advertisement of speed limit orders, taking into
account the advice of the Surrey Police Road Safety
and Traffic Management Team and with regard to the
County Council Speed Limit Policy (SCC).

d.

To approve the statutory advertisement of all legal
orders or appropriate notifications relating to
highway schemes within the delegated powers of the
Joint Committee (SCC).

e.

Where, under delegated powers, the Parking Strategy
and Implementation Team Manager or Area Team
Manager has chosen to refer the decision on whether
a TRO should be made to the Joint Committee, the
Committee will make that decision (SCC).

f. Oversee and determine priorities for the Woking Town
Centre Management Agreement. (WBC)
g. To consider applications for stopping up a highway

under section 116 of the Highways Act 1980 when,
following consent of any relevant
borough/district/parish council, unresolved objections
have been received during the period of statutory
public advertisement, and to decide whether the
application should proceed to the Magistrates’ Court
(SCC).
(iv) Consider how Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) receipts
will be expended in Woking, taking into account the approved
Infrastructure Capacity Study and Delivery Plan (IDP) for
Woking. (WBC)
(v)

In relation to services for young people, with the aim of
achieving an integrated approach from Surrey County Council
and Woking Borough Council (SCC/WBC):
a)

To agree joint priorities for commissioning by the County
Council and the Borough Council in Woking for provision
of:
i)

youth work and

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 74

ii)

other preventative work with young people who are
at risk of becoming not in education, training or
employment (NEET).

b)

To apportion delegated funding for young people,
specifically the distribution between Local Prevention and
Individual Prevention categories of funding, in accordance
with the allocated budget and small grants (youth) as
allocated by the Borough Council.

c)

To approve the award of the Local Prevention for the
provision of local prevention services for Woking Borough
in accordance with the allocated budget and to qualified
providers. This power to be exercised by the County
Council Portfolio Holder in the event that the Joint
Committee is unable to award funding agreement(s) (due
to the presence of conflicts of interest which result in the
body being inquorate).

d)

To approve the award of youth service related
commission(s) as delegated to the Joint Committee by
Woking Borough Council.

e) To oversee and determine priorities for the Full
Participation Programme and make appropriate linkages
into the work of Services for Young People and Woking
Borough Council.
f)

To approve Youth Task Group advice on the allocation of
Community Youth Work and Surrey Outdoor Learning and
Development Local Offer resources to meet local priorities
for young people in the local area.

(vi) Oversee and influence priorities for the Family Support
Programme in Woking and monitor its performance.
(SCC/WBC)
(vii) Determine priorities for collaborative work undertaken within
the committee’s area by the Councils and other partners.
(SCC/WBC).
(viii)
7.7

Decisions on any funding when a budget is allocated to the
Joint Committee by either of the Councils (SCC/WBC).

Non-Executive Functions
The Joint Committee will deal with all those non-executive functions
relating to public rights of way set out in the Local Authorities
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, as
amended, except for those separately referred to in the County
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 75

Council’s Scheme of Delegation (or within the terms of reference of
other Committees).
7.8

Service Monitoring, Scrutiny and Issues of Local Concern
The Joint Committee may:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)
(x)

(xi)

(xii)
(xiii)

In relation to the exercise of County Council Executive
functions relating to Members allocations, receive a report on
all projects approved under delegated authority of the
Community Partnership Manager or Team Leader. (SCC)
In relation to Community Highway Enhancement
allocations, receive a report on all projects approved by
Individual Members of the County Council under
delegated authority, or by the Area Team Manager where
Members have requested that their allocations be
combined to be spent in one or more divisions. (SCC)
Monitor formal decisions taken by officers under delegated
powers and provide feedback to improve service standards.
(SCC/WBC)
Engage in issues of concern to local people and seek to
influence the respective Councils in the light of local needs.
(SCC/WBC)
Monitor the quality of services provided locally, and
recommend action as appropriate. (SCC)
Support Surrey Schools, strengthening links with
Headteachers and Governing Bodies to promote the
outcomes of increased investment for safer, better schools
focused on raising the standards of education for all children
in Woking.
Be informed in relation to the prioritisation of proposed and
planned infrastructure schemes, or developer funded highway
improvements within Woking. (SCC)
Be informed of and receive appropriate reports on
highway initiatives and/or improvements either wholly or
partly in Woking. (SCC)
Oversee local initiatives agreed and funded by the Joint
Committee. (SCC/WBC)
Oversee on-street parking enforcement including
financials in its area subject to terms of reference agreed
by the Committee, which best suit its particular local
circumstances. (SCC)
Oversee and scrutinise the impact of the Local Prevention,
Community Youth Work and Surrey Outdoor Learning and
Development Local Offer in accordance with prevention
priorities for young people in the local area. (SCC)
Be advised of the Joint Youth Estates Strategy for Woking
Borough. (SCC/WBC)
Provide political oversight and advice on the Community
Safety functions of the Borough. (SCC/WBC)
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 76

(xiv) Act as the local Health and Wellbeing Board for Woking and
oversee and set priorities for general health and wellbeing
matters within the framework of Surrey’s Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy. (SCC/WBC)
(xv) Be consulted on any issues referred to it by either Council and
produce responses as appropriate. (SCC/WBC)
(Note: A joint committee may not make any decision which will have an
adverse effect on a part of the county for which it does not have
functions).
7B SPELTHORNE JOINT COMMITTEE
7.9 Membership
Membership of the Spelthorne Joint Committee shall be all county councillors
with electoral divisions in Spelthorne, one Surrey County Council Cabinet
Member (who may also be a county councillor with an electoral division in
Spelthorne), and an equivalent number of borough councillors who should be
politically proportionate to the Borough Council. At least one borough
councillor shall be a member of that Council’s Cabinet. If there is no Surrey
County Council Cabinet Member with an electoral division in Spelthorne for
the Leader of the County Council to appoint a specific Cabinet member to the
Spelthorne Joint Committee at the Council AGM. No substitutes will be
permitted for the members on the Joint Committee. Members will be
appointed to the committee at the first business meeting of the respective
Council, at the start of each municipal year. All borough and county
councillors on the Joint Committee will have equal voting rights on all issues
being considered.
7.10 Executive Functions (delegated by Surrey County Council and
Spelthorne Borough Council)
The Joint Committee will be responsible for the following decisions on local
services and budgets:
a) In relation to the Borough of Spelthorne the Joint Committee will take
decisions delegated to it by the SCC Leader and/or Cabinet and/or the
SBC Leader and/or Cabinet on the following local services and
budgets, to be taken in accordance with the financial framework and
policies of the respective Councils within a framework of agreed
performance and resources:
(i)

Changes which amount to more than 15% in the hours of opening
for local libraries (whether managed directly by Surrey County
Council or under a community partnership agreement.) (SCC)

(ii)

Community safety funding that is delegated to the Joint Committee
(SCC/SBC).
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 77

(iii) Decisions in relation to highways and infrastructure:
a.

The allocation of the Surrey County Council highway
capital budget and highway revenue budget which are
devolved to the Joint Committee for minor highway
improvements and highway maintenance within the
Committee’s area including the scope to use a
proportion of either budget to facilitate local highways
initiatives (SCC).

b.

To allocate funds to review on-street parking
management, including local parking charges where
appropriate and to approve the statutory advertisement
of Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) relating to on-street
parking controls (SCC).

c.

To agree local speed limits on County Council roads
within its area, and to approve the statutory
advertisement of speed limit orders, taking into account
the advice of the Surrey Police Road Safety and Traffic
Management Team and with regard to the County
Council Speed Limit Policy (SCC).

d.

To approve the statutory advertisement of all legal
orders or appropriate notifications relating to highway
schemes within the delegated powers of the Joint
Committee (SCC).

e.

Where, under delegated powers, the Parking Strategy
and Implementation Team Manager or Highways Area
Team Manager has chosen to refer the decision on
whether a TRO should be made to the Joint Committee,
the Committee will make that decision (SCC).

f.

To consider applications for stopping up a highway
under section 116 of the Highways Act 1980 when,
following the consent of SBC and any relevant Parish
Council, unresolved objections have been received
during the period of statutory public advertisement, and
to decide whether the application should proceed to the
Magistrates’ Court

(iii) Determine priorities and agree how Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL) receipts will be expended (SBC).
(iv) In relation to services for young people, with the aim of achieving
an integrated approach from Surrey County Council and Spelthorne
Borough Council (SCC/SBC):
a)

To agree joint priorities for commissioning by the County
Council and the Borough Council in Spelthorne for provision
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 78

of preventative work with young people who are at risk of
becoming not in education, training or employment (NEET).

(v)

b)

To apportion delegated funding for young people,
specifically the distribution between Local Prevention and
Individual Prevention categories of funding, in accordance
with the allocated budget and any youth grants as allocated
by the Borough Council.

c)

Approve the awards for the provision of Local Prevention
services for Spelthorne Borough in accordance with the
allocated budget and to qualified providers. This power to be
exercised by the County Council Portfolio Holder in the event
that the Joint Committee is unable to award grant(s) (due to
the presence of conflicts of interest which result in the body
being inquorate).

d)

To approve youth task group advice on the allocation of
Community Youth Work and Surrey Outdoor Learning &
Development (S.O.L.D) Local Offer resources to meet local
priorities for young people in the local area.

Decisions on any funding when a budget is allocated to the Joint
Committee by either of the Councils (SCC/SBC).

7.11 Non-Executive Functions (delegated by Surrey County Council)
The Joint Committee will deal with all those non-executive functions relating to
public rights of way set out in the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, as amended, except for those
separately referred to in the County Council’s Scheme of Delegation (or within
the terms of reference of other Committees).
7.12 Service Monitoring and Community Leadership- advisory functions
The Joint Committee may:
(i)

In relation to the exercise of County Council Executive functions relating
to members’ allocations, receive a report on all projects approved under
the delegated authority of the Community Partnership Manager or Team
Leader. (SCC)

(ii)

In relation to Community Highway Enhancement allocations,
receive a report on all projects approved by Individual Members of
the County Council under delegated authority, or by the Area Team
Manager where Members have requested that their allocations be
combined to be spent in one or more divisions. (SCC)

(iii)

Determine priorities for collaborative work undertaken within the
committee’s area by the Councils and other partners (SCC/SBC)

(iv)

To champion the better use of public sector assets in the Borough to
promote the One Public estate approach amongst Surrey County
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 79

Council , Spelthorne Borough Council and other public sector partners (
SCC/SBC)
(v)

Monitor formal decisions taken by officers under delegated powers and
provide feedback to improve service standards. (SCC/SBC)

(vi)

Engage in issues of concern to local people and seek to influence the
respective Councils in the light of local needs. (SCC/SBC)

(vii)

Monitor the quality of services provided locally, and recommend action
as appropriate. (SCC/SBC)

(viii)

To oversee and agree joint priorities to inform the improvement of
educational attainment in Spelthorne with the aim of working closely
between Surrey County Council, Spelthorne Borough Council and
Spelthorne Schools Federation (SCC/SBC)

(ix)

Oversee and influence priorities for the Family Support Programme in
Spelthorne (noting the shared nature of this service with other boroughs)
and monitor its performance. (SCC/SBC)

(x)

To oversee and agree joint priorities to inform commissioning and
delivery of Independent Living, Older People’s Services and Day
Centres in Spelthorne, with the aim of achieving an integrated approach
from Surrey Council and Spelthorne Borough Council (SCC/SBC)

(xi)

Be informed in relation to the prioritisation of proposed and planned
infrastructure schemes or developer funded highway improvements
within Spelthorne. (SCC)

(xii)

Be informed of and receive appropriate reports on highway
initiatives and/or improvements either wholly or partly in
Spelthorne. (SCC)

(xiii)

Oversee local initiatives agreed and funded by the Joint Committee.
(SCC/SBC)

(xiv)

Oversee off-street parking provision and enforcement in its area
including budget monitoring subject to any particular terms of reference,
agreed by the committee, (SCC/SBC)

(xv)

Oversee and monitor the impact of the Local Prevention Commissions
and the Community Youth Work Service in accordance with prevention
priorities for young people not in education, employment or training
(NEET) in the local area.

(xvi)

To receive reports from and provide political oversight and advice to the
Spelthorne Safer Stronger Community Partnership on the Community
Safety functions of the Borough. (SCC/SBC)

(xvii) To receive reports from and provide political oversight and advice to the
Spelthorne Together Health and Wellbeing Group within the framework
of Surrey’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. (SCC/SBC)
(xviii) Be consulted on any issues referred to it by either Council and produce
responses as appropriate. (SCC/SBC)

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 80

(Note: A joint committee may not make any decision which will have an
adverse effect on a part of the county for which it does not have
functions).
7C

RUNNYMEDE JOINT COMMITTEE

7.13

MEMBERSHIP

Membership of the Runnymede Joint Committee shall be all county
councillors with electoral divisions in Runnymede, one Surrey County Council
Cabinet Member (who may also be a county councillor with an electoral
division in Runnymede), and an equivalent number of borough councillors
who should be politically proportionate to the Borough Council. At least one
borough councillor shall be a member of the Council’s Corporate Management
Committee. If there is no Surrey County Council Cabinet Member with an
electoral division in Runnymede the County Council shall appoint a specific
Cabinet member to the Runnymede Joint Committee and the Borough Council
would be entitled to appoint an additional borough councillor representative on
the Joint Committee to ensure equity.
7.14

Executive Functions delegated by Surrey County Council

In relation to the Borough of Runnymede the Joint Committee will take
decisions delegated to it by the SCC Cabinet on the following local services
and budgets, to be taken in accordance with the financial framework and
policies of the respective Councils and within agreed performance and
resources:
(i)

Changes which amount to more than 15% in the hours of opening for
local libraries (whether managed directly by Surrey County Council or
under a community partnership agreement.) (SCC)

(ii)

Community safety funding that is delegated to the Joint Committee from
Surrey County Council (SCC).

(iii) Decisions in relation to highways and infrastructure:
a. The allocation of the Surrey County Council highway capital
budget and highway revenue budget which are devolved to
the Joint Committee for minor highway improvements and
highway maintenance within the Committee’s area including
the scope to use a proportion of either budget to facilitate
local highways initiatives (SCC).
b. To allocate funds to review on-street parking management,
including local on-street parking charges where appropriate
and to approve the statutory advertisement of Traffic
Regulation Orders (TROs) relating to on-street parking
controls (SCC).
c. To agree local speed limits on County Council roads within its
area, and to approve the statutory advertisement of speed
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 81

limit orders, taking into account the advice of the Surrey
Police Road Safety and Traffic Management Team and with
regard to the County Council Speed Limit Policy (SCC).
d. To approve the statutory advertisement of all legal orders or
appropriate notifications relating to highway schemes within
the delegated powers of the Joint Committee (SCC).
e. Where, under delegated powers, the Parking Strategy and
Implementation Team Manager or Highways Area Team
Manager has chosen to refer the decision on whether a TRO
should be made to the Joint Committee, the Committee will
make that decision (SCC).
f. To consider applications for stopping up a highway under
section 116 of the Highways Act 1980 when, following the
consent of RBC, unresolved objections have been received
during the period of statutory public advertisement, and to
decide whether the application should proceed to the
Magistrates’ Court (SCC).
(iv) Decisions on funding when a budget is allocated to the Joint Committee
by Surrey County Council’s Cabinet. (SCC)
7.15 Non-Executive Functions delegated by Surrey County Council
The Joint Committee will deal with all those non-executive functions relating to
public rights of way set out in the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, as amended, except for those
separately referred to in the County Council’s Scheme of Delegation (or within
the terms of reference of other Committees).
7.16 Decisions delegated by Surrey County Council and Runnymede
Borough Council
Apportion any resources for Early Help services in accordance with the
approved local Early Help priorities that may be delegated to the Joint
Committee by Surrey County Council and / or Runnymede Borough Council,
in relation to services for young people, with the aim of achieving an
integrated approach from Surrey County Council and Runnymede Borough
Council (SCC/RBC).
7.17 Service Monitoring and Issues of Local Concern - advisory
functions
The Joint Committee will play an important advisory role in shaping the
development and delivery of services locally across both authorities. It will:
(xvi)

Act as a one stop shop for residents to engage with both authorities,
debate cross cutting issues, raise issues of concern and seek to
influence the respective Councils in the light of local need.
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 82

(xvii) Monitor formal decisions taken by officers under delegated powers and
provide feedback to improve service standards.
(xviii) Be consulted on any issues referred to it by either Council or produce
responses as appropriate.
The Joint Committee may:
(i)

Consider the use of developer infrastructure funding in regard to
proposed and planned strategic infrastructure schemes, identifying
common objectives and supporting the pursuit of joint funding bids
whether wholly or partly in Runnymede.

(ii)

Influence the development of a joint vision for the place shaping
agenda including regeneration and town centre management.

(iii)

Influence the development of the Family Support Programme in
Runnymede and monitor its performance. Provide political oversight
and advice to the Early Help Advisory Board and advise on priorities for
the Early Help offer locally.

(iv)

Consider the more effective use of existing public sector property
assets in the borough and the potential opportunities that may exist for
development where this could be in the mutual interest of both
authorities where expediency allows.

(v)

Review and influence any new proposals for on and off street parking
and enforcement locally including the use of budgets.

(vi)

Influence priorities for the provision of integrated Health and Social
Care and Older People’s Services locally.

(vii)

Influence action plans for the deprivation task groups established within
the borough.

(viii)

Facilitate partnership work with schools, Multi Academy Trusts,
governors and other partners to promote high educational standards
and the fulfilment of potential for all children locally.

7D

GUILDFORD JOINT COMMITTEE

7.18

MEMBERSHIP

Membership of the Guildford Joint Committee shall be all county councillors
with electoral divisions in Guildford, one SCC Cabinet Member (who may also
be a county councillor with an electoral division in Guildford), and an
equivalent number of borough councillors who should be politically
proportionate to the Borough Council. At least one borough councillor shall be
a member of that Council’s Executive. If there is no SCC Cabinet Member
with an electoral division in Guildford the County Council shall appoint a
specific Cabinet member to the Guildford Joint Committee at the Council AGM
(“the relevant Cabinet Member”), and GBC would be entitled to appoint an
additional borough councillor representative on the Joint Committee to ensure
equity. No substitutes will be permitted for the members on the Joint
Committee. Members will be appointed to the committee at the first business
meeting of the respective Councils, at the start of each municipal year. All
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 83

borough and county councillors (including the relevant Cabinet Member) on
the Joint Committee will have equal voting rights on all issues being
considered.
7.19

Executive Functions (delegated by SCC and GBC)

In relation to the Borough of Guildford the Joint Committee will take decisions
delegated to it by the SCC Leader and/or Cabinet and/or the GBC Leader
and/or Executive on the following local services and budgets, to be taken in
accordance with the financial framework and policies of the respective
councils within a framework of agreed performance and resources:
The Joint Committee will be responsible for the following decisions on local
services and budgets:
(i)

Changes which amount to more than 15% in the hours of opening for
local
libraries (whether managed directly by SCC or under a community
partnership agreement.) (SCC)

(ii)

Community safety funding that is delegated to the Joint Committee.
(SCC/GBC)

(iii) Decisions in relation to highways and infrastructure:
(a)

The allocation of the SCC highway capital budget and
highway revenue budget which are devolved to the Joint
Committee for minor highway improvements and highway
maintenance within the Committee’s area including the scope
to use a proportion of either budget to facilitate local highways
initiatives. (SCC)

(b)

To allocate funds to review on-street parking management,
including local parking charges where appropriate and to
approve the statutory advertisement of Traffic Regulation
Orders (TROs) relating to on-street parking controls. (SCC)

(c)

To agree local speed limits on County Council roads within its
area, and to approve the statutory advertisement of speed limit
orders, taking into account the advice of the Surrey Police
Road Safety and Traffic Management Team and with regard to
the County Council Speed Limit Policy. (SCC)

(d)

To approve the statutory advertisement of all legal orders or
appropriate notifications relating to highway schemes within
the delegated powers of the Joint Committee (SCC).

(e)

Where, under delegated powers, the Parking Strategy and
Implementation Team Manager or Area Highways Manager has
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 84

chosen to refer the decision on whether a TRO should be
made to the Joint Committee, the Committee will make that
decision (SCC).
(f)

To consider applications for stopping up a highway under
section 116 of the Highways Act 1980 when, following the
consent of GBC and any relevant Parish Council, unresolved
objections have been received during the period of statutory
public advertisement, and to decide whether the application
should proceed to the Magistrates’ Court (SCC).

(iv)

Jointly agreeing a statement of priority for the delivery of infrastructure
described in the GBC Infrastructure Delivery Plan and informed by the
GBC Regulation 123 list, to meet the need and mitigate the effect of
development in the GBC local authority area and to discuss and propose
strategies for securing any additional funding necessary for that delivery.
(GBC)

(v)

Approval of an overarching Air Quality Policy/Strategy and individual Air
Quality Management/Action Plans relating to the borough of Guildford
(GBC)

(vi)

Apportion any resources for Early Help services in accordance with the
approved local Early Help priorities that may be delegated to the Joint
Committee from SCC/GBC, in relation to services for young people with
the aim of achieving an integrated approach from both authorities
(SCC/GBC)

(vii) Decisions on any funding when a budget is allocated to the Joint
Committee by either of the Councils (SCC/GBC).
7.20

Non-Executive Functions (delegated by SCC)

The Joint Committee will deal with all those non-executive functions relating to
public rights of way set out in the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, as amended, except for those
expressly reserved by SCC.
7.21

Non-Executive Functions (delegated by GBC)

The Joint Committee will deal with all those non-executive functions relating to
public rights of way set out in the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000, as amended, except for those
separately referred to in the Borough Council’s Scheme of Delegation (or
within the terms of reference of other Committees) which shall be exercised
concurrently.
In addition, the Joint Committee will deal with those relevant non-executive
functions, relating to joint working that may be delegated to it by GBC or SCC
from time to time.
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 85

7.22 Service Monitoring and Community Leadership - advisory
functions
The Joint Committee may:
(i)

Determine priorities for collaborative work undertaken within the
committee’s area by the Councils and other partners, and oversee local
initiatives agreed and funded by the Joint Committee. (SCC/GBC)

(ii)

Engage in issues of concern to local people and seek to influence the
respective councils in the light of local needs. Monitoring the quality of
services provided locally, and recommending action as appropriate.
(SCC/GBC)

(iii) Consider the most effective use of existing public sector property assets
in the borough and the potential opportunities that may exist for
development where this could be in the mutual interest of both
authorities where expediency allows. (SCC/GBC)
(iv)

Be informed in relation to the prioritisation of proposed and planned
infrastructure schemes or developer funded highway improvements
within Guildford. (SCC/GBC)

(v)

Be informed of and receive appropriate reports on highway
initiatives and/or improvements either wholly or partly in Guildford.
(SCC)

(vi)

Review and influence the parking strategy (via the Parking Business
Plan) and any new proposals for on and off street parking and
enforcement. (SCC/GBC)

(vii) Receive reports from and provide political oversight and advice to the
Safer Guildford Partnership on the Community Safety functions of the
Borough. (SCC/GBC)
(viii) Provide political oversight and influence emergency planning and event
management and/or event safety oversight that relate to the borough of
Guildford. (SCC/GBC)
(ix)

Oversee and provide feedback on priorities relating to gypsy and
traveller site provision and site management within the borough of
Guildford. (SCC/GBC)

(x)

Receive reports from and provide political oversight and advice to the
Health and Wellbeing Board for Guildford on its functions. (SCC/GBC)

(xi)

Influence priorities for the provision of integrated Health and Social Care
and Older People’s Services locally. (SCC/GBC)
Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 86

(xii) Oversee and influence priorities for the Family Support Programme in
Guildford (noting the shared nature of this service with other boroughs)
and monitor its performance. (SCC/GBC)
(xiii) Facilitate partnership work with schools, Multi-Academy Trusts,
governors and other partners to promote high educational standards and
the fulfilment of potential for all children locally. (SCC)
(xiv) Be consulted on any issues referred to it by either council and produce
responses as appropriate. (SCC/GBC)
(xv) Monitor formal decisions taken by officers under delegated powers in
respect of functions delegated to the Joint Committee and provide
feedback to improve service standards. (SCC/GBC)
(Note: A joint committee may not make any decision which will have an
adverse
effect on a part of the county for which it does not have functions).
7E

DELEGATIONS TO LOCAL MEMBERS
Members of the authority have the following delegated powers:
a.

To approve projects within their division to be funded by the
Community Highways Enhancements Fund in accordance
with the relevant financial framework and policies of the
County Council.

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 87

8.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS
THE CABINET

8.1

Membership
The Leader, Deputy Leader and up to eight other County Councillors

8.2

Terms of reference
The Cabinet will be collectively responsible for executive functions within
the Authority which are not otherwise delegated by the Leader. Table 2
below sets out the responsibility for executive functions exercised by
Cabinet Members.
The plans and strategies listed in Article 4 of this Constitution and
which together comprise the policy framework must be determined by
the Council on recommendation by the Cabinet after consultation with
the appropriate select committee and the Planning & Regulatory
Committee in relation to the Local Development Documents or any
other plan and policy of the Council which relates to its functions.
The Cabinet (or Cabinet Members where the function is delegated)
will:
(a)

Lead the preparation of the Council’s policies and budget and
make recommendations to the County Council on the
statutory and strategic plans which form the policy framework,
and the revenue and capital budgets and Council Tax
precept.

(b)

Submit annually or otherwise as required to the Council for
approval the corporate plan and budget, and the other
statutory and strategic plans which make up the policy
framework.

(c)

Take decisions within this framework of plans, Standing
Orders and procedure rules approved by the Council,
including key decisions unless these have been delegated to
committees.

(d)

Refer to the Council for decision any proposal involving a
material departure from any of the approved statutory and
strategic plans or the approved revenue and capital budgets.

(e)

Approve Directorate Plans and monitor and review
performance against such plans including outturn of
expenditure and income.

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 88

(f)

Subject to paragraph (d) above, take in-year decisions on
resources and priorities, service delivery and operations to
deliver the corporate plan and other approved policy plans
and the revenue and capital budgets.

(g)

Lead the community planning process and provide a focus for
partnership working with other public, private and voluntary
and community sector agencies.

(h)

Consult the appropriate select committee at an early stage in
the development of the budget and the plans and strategies
within the policy framework.

(i)

Consult select committees and other committees on the plans
and strategies listed in Article 4 of this Constitution, as
appropriate, especially the Planning & Regulatory Committee
in relation to the development and review of the Local
Development Documents or any other plan and policy of the
Council which relates to its functions.

(j)

Exercise other strategic planning functions including
preparation of supplementary planning guidance and planning
briefs, responding to consultations on planning applications,
the designation of conservation areas, areas of archaeological
interest and nature reserves, the making of compulsory
purchase orders and Article 4 Directions, etc.

(k)

Make appointments to those outside bodies which carry out or
relate to executive functions.

(l)

Provide formal responses to any Government White Paper or
Green Paper or other consultation likely to lead to policy
changes or have significant impact upon services not
otherwise delegated to officers.

(m)

Declare land or property surplus to requirements.

(n)

Consider, determine and report to the Council on matters on
which there has been a finding of maladministration by the
Local Government Ombudsman.

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 89

Table 2 – Scheme of Delegation
Responsibility for executive functions exercised by Cabinet Members,
as listed by the Leader (outlined in Article 5.02 of the Constitution)
Who is
responsible
(1)

Function
(2)

Limitation
(3)

Individual
member of the
Cabinet in relation
to the functions
set out in column
(2), subject to the
limitations in
column (3).

(a)

transfers between budget
heads within portfolio
(virements above
£250,000, virements from
revenue to capital
budgets above £100,000)
and budget monitoring

(a) In consultation
with the Leader

(b)

the write-off of
irrecoverable debts

(c)

performance
management

(d)

approval of individual
business cases of more
than £100,000 prior to
capital/ invest to save
projects proceeding

(b) Between
£10,000 and
£100,000 not
otherwise
delegated to the
Director of Finance,
in consultation with
the Leader
(c) Significant
performance risk
must be reported to
the Cabinet as
agreed in
consultation with
the Deputy Leader
(d) In consultation
with the Leader

(e)

reprofiling capital budget
within portfolio and within
capital scheme’s duration

(f)

bids for funding from
external bodies

The Cabinet
Member making
the decision will
be the Member
allocated the
appropriate
responsibilities by
the Leader,
except that (1)
where that
Member is unable
to act (whether
through a conflict
of interest, illness
or absence)
another Member
of the Cabinet
may exercise the
function on their
behalf.
Any decisions
relating to the
statutory portfolio
for Children’s
Services under
the Children Act
2004 must be
taken by or in
consultation with

(e) In consultation
with the Leader

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 90

Who is
responsible
(1)

Function
(2)

the Cabinet
Member for
Children and
Families
Wellbeing

(g)

responses to consultation
papers not otherwise
delegated to officers

(h)

responses to petitions
and committee reports

(i)

agreement of concordats
or other similar
agreements or
statements of intent with
other parties

(j)

compulsory purchase
orders for land or property

(k)

approval of schools’
licensed deficits

(k) To a maximum
of £1m

(l)

approval of loans to
schools

(l) To a maximum
of £1m in
consultation with
the Leader

(m)

consultation on proposals
and publication and
determination of statutory
notices in respect of
changes to school size
and structure

(n)

authorisation of
consultation on the
admission arrangements
for voluntary controlled
and community schools

(o)

responses to any
consultation by a
maintained school’s
governing body under
Section 5 of the
Academies Act 2010

The Leader may
determine that
any decisions in
respect of the
functions set out
in column (2) are
taken collectively
by the Cabinet.

Limitation
(3)

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 91

Who is
responsible
(1)

Function
(2)

Limitation
(3)

(p)

To approve the award of
contracts for the provision
of local preventative
services for a borough or
district area to providers
included in the Council's
framework agreement for
these services and in
accordance with the
allocated budget.

This power to be
exercised, in
consultation with
the portfolio holders
with responsibility
for procurement
and local
committees, when
the relevant local
committee is unable
to award a contract
due to the presence
of conflicts of
interest which result
in that body being
inquorate.

(q)

approval of the Fostering
and Adoption Services
annual Statements of
Purpose

(r)

authorisation of the
Transport Development
Control Manager to enter
into legal agreements
with developers providing
for the adoption of new
housing estate roads,
forecourts and other
made-up areas as
highways maintainable at
the public expense when
the work of making up
has been satisfactorily
completed

(s)

declaration of highways
or highways land surplus
to requirements where it
is unnecessary for
highway purposes

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 92

Who is
responsible
(1)

Function
(2)

Limitation
(3)

(t)

Approval of any
highways decision
delegated to officers
where there is
disagreement between
the officer and the local
member. endorsement of
any new speed limit when
the Local Committee is in
disagreement with the
police and local officers

(u)

endorsement of the
annual programme for
investment of the
centrally managed road
safety scheme budget
endorsement of the
annual programme of
centrally funded
Integrated Transport
Schemes (ITS) and
approval of any
assessment criteria

(v)

to agree changes which
amount to more than 15%
in the hours of opening
for Surrey Performing
Arts Library

(a1)

agree the Surrey Fire and
Rescue Service
Statement of Assurance
for publication

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 93

Who is
responsible
(1)

Function
(2)

Limitation
(3)

(a2)

on behalf of the Fire and
Rescue Authority, to
respond to requests from
neighbouring Fire and
Rescue Authorities for the
deployment of Surrey Fire
and Rescue Service's
resources during periods
of industrial (strike) action

(a3)

appointment of lawyers
within Legal & Democratic
Services to act as
Nominee to apply on the
Council’s behalf as a
creditor to administer the
Estate of deceased
debtors

(a4)

approval of revisions to
the Council's partnership
governance policy

(a5)

agreement of In Year Fair
Access Protocol

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 94

Who is
responsible
(1)

Leader

Function
(2)

Limitation
(3)

(a6)

expenditure against the
agreed Surrey Growth
Strategy budgets

(a7)

to agree amendments to
the Memorandum of
Understanding for the
Basingstoke Canal Joint
Management Committee

(a8)

take decisions on behalf
of the Council for Trust
Funds where the Council
is a corporate trustee, in
accordance with any
requirements in the Trust
governing body

(a9)

to determine the
establishment of Suitable
Alternative Natural Green
Spaces (SANGS).

In consultation with
the Leader of the
Council and the
Strategic Director
for Environment
and Infrastructure

(a10) To agree changes to
School Transport Policies

In consultation with
the Assistant
Director for Schools
and Learning

(a)

the final decision to open
or close a school

(b)

the establishment of and
recruitment to posts
evaluated with a pay
band in excess of £100k
and consultants on
contracts over £100k per
annum

(c)

expenditure against the
agreed Community
Improvement Fund

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 95

Who is
responsible
(1)

Function
(2)

Limitation
(3)

(d)

(d) in consultation
with the relevant
portfolio holders

approval of virements
above £250,000 between
portfolios or services

Part 3
Scheme of Delegation
May 2022

Page 96

Annex 3

Guildford Joint Committee
Constitution
Page
No.
Section 1: Context and Purpose

2

Section 2: Functions and Funding
(A) General Remit

3

(B) Delegated Powers

3

(C) Funding

7

(D) Withdrawal from the Joint Committee

7

Section 3: Standing Orders

8

Page 97

Section 1 – Context and Purpose
Guildford Joint Committee is a Joint Committee of Surrey County Council (SCC) and
Guildford Borough Council (GBC) and is set up under the provisions of Section 102
of the Local Government Act 1972. The Joint Committee aims to improve outcomes
and value for money for residents in the borough of Guildford by strengthening local
democracy and improving partnership working within the borough.
The Joint Committee will carry out SCC functions previously performed by the
Guildford Local Committee plus some additional SCC functions, and functions
delegated to it by GBC. There is also a range of advisory functions relating to both
councils. These functions are set out within Section 2 of this document.
The Joint Committee provides a single place for residents to engage with both
authorities and a forum to debate cross cutting issues, and jointly engage and
communicate with residents about the work of both councils. By working together,
the Joint Committee will provide the opportunity to identify local solutions and seek to
jointly deliver local government service improvements for the residents, businesses
and visitors to the borough of Guildford.
Both councils will be proactive in bringing issues to the Joint Committee and seeking
to deliver local priorities together. Meetings of the Guildford Joint Committee will be
held in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972. Meetings will be held in
public and will normally be held in the Council Chamber at GBC and webcast. Local
people are able to participate during parts of the meeting as set out in Section 3 of
this document.
This Constitution includes the standing orders that will apply to the Joint
Committee. These are subject to the Constitutions of each of the two councils which
shall apply in relation to decision making on matters reserved to those councils.
Whilst the Joint Committee will be responsible for making decisions relating to the
delegated functions as set out below, the day-to-day operational arrangements
relating to any particular function will continue to be managed by the local authority
having responsibility for that function.
There will be a review by both authorities towards the end of the first 12 months of
operation of the Joint Committee in order to determine if any changes should be
made.

Page 98

Section 2 – Functions and Funding
The scope and overall purpose of the Joint Committee is as set out in Section 1. The
general remit of the Joint Committee is set out below and the more specific
delegated functions are outlined in later sections.

(A) General Remit
The general remit of the Guildford Joint Committee is:
1.

To identify and agree opportunities for the closer alignment of SCC and GBC
services in Guildford.

2.

To make decisions on local services and budgets delegated to it by either SCC
or GBC.

3.

To make comments on policy, strategy, services, priority community work, or
other matters specifically referred to it by SCC or GBC.

4.

To champion joint working and provide oversight of key county and borough
partnership initiatives and strategies.

5.

To seek solutions to local concerns relating to council services under the remit
of the Joint Committee.

6.

To identify and set local priorities through an annual priority setting meeting.

7.

To build community leadership and local engagement, and encourage local
community resilience plans.

8.

To ensure that local authority services within Guildford Borough are carried out
in accordance with both SCC and GBC’s core values, policies, strategies and
within approved budgets.

(B) Delegated Powers
The services identified below are delegated by SCC or GBC as indicated, for
decision making or consideration by the Guildford Joint Committee, in accordance
with the relevant legislation.
In discharging the delegated powers, the Joint Committee must have due
regard at all times to the approved policies, budgets and financial regulations/
procedure rules of the council delegating the functions, and act in accordance with
Standing Orders at Section 3 of this Constitution.
Set out below is a list of the functions that are currently delegated to the Joint
Committee. Additional functions and matters for determination may be delegated to
the Committee in the future by SCC or GBC, from time to time. SCC’s Community
Partnerships Team will maintain a record of all additional delegated functions and

Page 99

will ensure that any such additions are reported to the Joint Committee at the next
meeting after the delegation takes place.
Executive Functions (delegated by SCC and GBC)
In relation to the Borough of Guildford the Joint Committee will take decisions
delegated to it by the SCC Leader and/or Cabinet and/or the GBC Leader and/or
Executive on the following local services and budgets, to be taken in accordance
with the financial framework and policies of the respective councils within a
framework of agreed performance and resources:
The Joint Committee will be responsible for the following decisions on local services
and budgets:
(i)

Changes which amount to more than 15% in the hours of opening for local
libraries (whether managed directly by SCC or under a community partnership
agreement.) (SCC)

(ii)

Community safety funding that is delegated to the Joint Committee.
(SCC/GBC)

(iii) Decisions in relation to highways and infrastructure:
(a)

The allocation of the SCC highway capital budget and
highway revenue budget which are devolved to the Joint Committee
for
minor highway improvements and highway maintenance within the
Committee’s area including the scope to use a proportion of either
budget to facilitate local highways initiatives. (SCC)

(b)

To allocate funds to review on-street parking management, including
local parking charges where appropriate and to approve the
statutory
advertisement of Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) relating to onstreet
parking controls. (SCC)

(c)

To agree local speed limits on County Council roads within its area,
and
to approve the statutory advertisement of speed limit orders, taking
into
account the advice of the Surrey Police Road Safety and Traffic
Management Team and with regard to the County Council Speed
Limit
Policy. (SCC)

(d)

To approve the statutory advertisement of all legal orders or
appropriate

Page 100

notifications relating to highway schemes within the delegated
powers
of the Joint Committee (SCC).
(e)

Where, under delegated powers, the Parking Strategy and
Implementation Team Manager or Area Highways Manager has
chosen to refer the decision on whether a TRO should be made to
the
Joint Committee, the Committee will make that decision (SCC).

(f)

To consider applications for stopping up a highway under section
116
of the Highways Act 1980 when, following the consent of GBC and
any
relevant Parish Council, unresolved objections have been received
during the period of statutory public advertisement, and to decide
whether the application should proceed to the Magistrates’ Court
(SCC).

(iv)

Jointly agreeing a statement of priority for the delivery of infrastructure
described in the GBC Infrastructure Delivery Plan and informed by the GBC
Regulation 123 list, to meet the need and mitigate the effect of development in
the GBC local authority area and to discuss and propose strategies for securing
any additional funding necessary for that delivery. (GBC)

(v)

Approval of an overarching Air Quality Policy/Strategy and individual Air Quality
Management/Action Plans relating to the borough of Guildford (GBC)

(vi)

Apportion any resources for Early Help services in accordance with the
approved local Early Help priorities that may be delegated to the Joint
Committee from SCC/GBC, in relation to services for young people with the aim
of achieving an integrated approach from both authorities (SCC/GBC)

(vii) Decisions on any funding when a budget is allocated to the Joint Committee by
either of the Councils (SCC/GBC).
Non-Executive Functions (delegated by SCC)
The Joint Committee will deal with all those non-executive functions relating to public
rights of way set out in the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities)
(England) Regulations 2000, as amended, except for those expressly reserved by
SCC.
Non-Executive Functions (delegated by GBC)
The Joint Committee will deal with all those non-executive functions relating to public
rights of way set out in the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities)
(England) Regulations 2000, as amended, except for those separately referred to in
the Borough Council’s Scheme of Delegation (or within the terms of reference of
other Committees) which shall be exercised concurrently.

Page 101

In addition, the Joint Committee will deal with those relevant non-executive functions,
relating to joint working that may be delegated to it by GBC or SCC from time to
time.
Service Monitoring and Community Leadership - advisory functions
The Joint Committee may:
(i)

Determine priorities for collaborative work undertaken within the committee’s
area by the Councils and other partners, and oversee local initiatives agreed
and funded by the Joint Committee. (SCC/GBC)

(ii)

Engage in issues of concern to local people and seek to influence the
respective councils in the light of local needs. Monitoring the quality of services
provided locally, and recommending action as appropriate. (SCC/GBC)

(iii) Consider the most effective use of existing public sector property assets in the
borough and the potential opportunities that may exist for development where
this could be in the mutual interest of both authorities where expediency allows.
(SCC/GBC)
(iv)

Be informed in relation to the prioritisation of proposed and planned
infrastructure schemes or developer funded highway improvements
within Guildford. (SCC/GBC)

(v)

Be informed of and receive appropriate reports on highway initiatives
and/or
improvements either wholly or partly in Guildford. (SCC)

(vi)

Review and influence the parking strategy (via the Parking Business Plan) and
any new proposals for on and off street parking and enforcement. (SCC/GBC)

(vii) Receive reports from and provide political oversight and advice to the Safer
Guildford Partnership on the Community Safety functions of the Borough.
(SCC/GBC)
(viii) Provide political oversight and influence emergency planning and event
management and/or event safety oversight that relate to the borough of
Guildford. (SCC/GBC)
(ix)

Oversee and provide feedback on priorities relating to gypsy and traveller site
provision and site management within the borough of Guildford. (SCC/GBC)

(x)

Receive reports from and provide political oversight and advice to the Health
and Wellbeing Board for Guildford on its functions. (SCC/GBC)

(xi)

Influence priorities for the provision of integrated Health and Social Care and
Older People’s Services locally. (SCC/GBC)

Page 102

(xii) Oversee and influence priorities for the Family Support Programme in Guildford
(noting the shared nature of this service with other boroughs) and monitor its
performance. (SCC/GBC)
(xiii) Facilitate partnership work with schools, Multi-Academy Trusts, governors and
other partners to promote high educational standards and the fulfilment of
potential for all children locally. (SCC)
(xiv) Be consulted on any issues referred to it by either council and produce
responses as appropriate. (SCC/GBC)
(xv) Monitor formal decisions taken by officers under delegated powers in respect of
functions delegated to the Joint Committee and provide feedback to improve
service standards. (SCC/GBC)
(Note: A joint committee may not make any decision which will have an adverse
effect on a part of the county for which it does not have functions).

(C) Funding
(i)

With regard to budget setting and planning, SCC and GBC will agree each year
the amount of funding available to the Joint Committee to carry out its
delegated decisions. All funds will be held and administered by the originating
authorities and spent in accordance with their respective financial
regulations/procedure rules and policies.

(ii)

Provision of venue: The meeting’s venue and associated costs will normally be
provided by GBC, unless alternative arrangements are agreed by SCC.

(iii) Committee management: Committee management and associated costs for the
Joint Committee will be provided by SCC.
(iv)

Any members’ costs and expenses resulting from the Joint Committee
(including those in relation to Chairman and Vice Chairman roles) will be
funded and administered by their respective authorities.

(D) Withdrawal from the Joint Committee
At any time either Council may give 6 months' notice in writing to the other Council of
its intention to withdraw from the Joint Committee. Once the Joint Committee ceases
to exist, the functions delegated to it would each revert back to the relevant
delegating authority.

Page 103

Section 3 - Standing Orders
1.

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS AT MEETINGS

1.1.

Membership of the Guildford Joint Committee shall be all county councillors
with electoral divisions in Guildford, one SCC Cabinet Member (who may also
be a county councillor with an electoral division in Guildford), and an
equivalent number of borough councillors who should be politically
proportionate to the Borough Council. At least one borough councillor shall be
a member of that Council’s Executive.

1.2.

If there is no SCC Cabinet Member with an electoral division in Guildford the
County Council shall appoint a specific Cabinet member to the Guildford Joint
Committee at the Council AGM (“the relevant Cabinet Member”), and GBC
would be entitled to appoint an additional borough councillor representative on
the Joint Committee to ensure equity.

1.3.

No substitutes will be permitted for the members on the Joint Committee.
Members will be appointed to the committee at the first business meeting of
the respective Councils, at the start of each municipal year. All borough and
county councillors (including the relevant Cabinet Member) on the Joint
Committee will have equal voting rights on all issues being considered.

1.4.

A person shall cease to be a member if he/she resigns from the Guildford
Joint Committee or ceases to be a member of SCC representing an electoral
division in Guildford or the relevant Cabinet Member, or in the case of a
member of GBC, ceases to be a member of that Council, or the relevant
Executive Member.

1.5.

SCC or GBC may, through their respective councils, co-opt representatives
from the voluntary sector, public authorities or businesses in Guildford onto
the Joint Committee. These representatives will be able to take part in
discussions on agenda items, but will not be able to vote on any item for
decision.

1.6.

Where they are not members of the Joint Committee, the Leader of either
SCC or GBC, or appropriate SCC Cabinet Member or GBC Executive
Member with portfolio responsibilities for a matter on the agenda of the Joint
Committee meeting may attend the meeting of the Joint Committee and, with
the Chairman’s consent, speak on the matter or provide written
representation.

2.

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN

2.1.

For the 2018-19 Municipal Year only, the Chairman (who will be a County
Councillor) and Vice-Chairman (who shall be a member of the Borough
Council’s Executive) shall be appointed by SCC or GBC (as appropriate) with
the appointments made by each authority’s usual procedure.

Page 104

2.2.

From the 2019-20 Municipal Year, the offices of Chairman and Vice-Chairman
shall then alternate between the two councils every year, with the Borough
Council providing the Chairman and the County Council providing the ViceChairman in 2019-20. If the appointed Chairman is representing SCC, the
Vice-Chairman must be a GBC representative and vice-versa with the
appointments made by through the relevant authority’s usual procedures.

2.3.

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall, unless he or she resigns the office or
ceases to be a member of the Guildford Joint Committee, continue in office
until a successor is appointed. If a Chairman or Vice-Chairman does not
complete a full term of office, a further member from the same council shall be
appointed through the relevant authority’s usual procedures for the remainder
of that term.

2.4.

In the absence of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman at a meeting, the
members of the Joint Committee shall elect a chairman for that meeting.

3.

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMMITTEE

3.1.

The County Council’s Community Partnership’s Team shall act as the
Committee Manager for the Guildford Joint Committee and shall be
responsible for preparing and circulating agendas for meetings, advising on
constitutional matters and for producing the decisions and minutes.

4.

FORMAL MEETINGS

4.1.

There shall be between 4 and 8 formal meetings of the Guildford Joint
Committee each year as determined by the Chairman and Vice-Chairman and
as set out in the calendar of meetings published on both councils’ websites.

4.2.

The Chairman or in his/her absence the Vice-Chairman, may call a special
meeting of the Guildford Joint Committee to consider a matter that falls within
its remit but cannot await the next scheduled meeting, provided at least five
clear working days’ notice in writing is given to the Committee Manager.

4.3.

Formal meetings of the Joint Committee and its sub-committees shall be held
in public except when exempt or confidential information is being considered
and the press and public can be excluded in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended).

4.4.

Meetings of any working groups or task groups established by the Joint
Committee shall, unless otherwise agreed, be held in private.

5.

DELEGATED POWERS

5.1.

The delegated powers mean those powers to be discharged by the Guildford
Joint Committee as set out in Section 2(B) of this Constitution.

Page 105

5.2.

The Guildford Joint Committee shall discharge the delegated powers, within
the respective budgetary and policy frameworks set by SCC in the case of
county functions and by GBC in the case of borough functions.

5.3.

When discharging the delegated powers the Guildford Joint Committee shall
take decisions only after taking into account advice given in writing or orally
from relevant officers of SCC or of GBC as appropriate, including legal,
financial and policy advice.

5.4.

If the Joint Committee is to make a Key Executive decision delegated to it by
either SCC or GBC, then the Joint Committee must follow the constitution of
the authority delegating the decision, including publishing it in the monthly
forward plan of that authority.

6.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

6.1.

Executive decisions made by the Guildford Joint Committee are subject to
scrutiny by SCC’s or GBC’s relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(depending on which authority delegated the particular function), including an
Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s right under the Local Government Act
2000 to request that an Executive Decision made but not implemented be
reconsidered by the decision-taker (often referred to as ‘call-in’).

6.2.

The processes and procedures for the exercise by the relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Committee of their ‘call-in’ function shall be in accordance with the
Constitutions of SCC or GBC depending on which authority delegated the
executive decision in question.

Call-In of Joint Committee Decisions
6.3.1.

The SCC Cabinet/GBC Executive may require referral, for review and final
determination, of any executive decision taken by the Joint Committee which
has significant policy or budgetary implications or is outside of the authority
delegated to the Joint Committee, subject to notice of requirement for
referral being given within 5 working days of publication of the decision.

6.3.2.

Notice of referral may be given by the Leader or Deputy Leader of the
relevant authority, or any three or more members of the SCC Cabinet/GBC
Executive as appropriate.

6.3.3.

All members of the Joint Committee will be notified that an executive
decision taken by the Joint Committee has been required for referral by SCC
Cabinet/GBC Executive.

6.3.4.

The decision will be considered by the SCC Cabinet /GBC Executive at its
next appropriate meeting in discussion with the Joint Committee Chairman
and Vice-Chairman and no action will be taken to implement it in the
meantime.

Page 106

6.3.5.

The Joint Committee Chairman or Vice-Chairman may attend the SCC
Cabinet /GBC Executive meeting, as appropriate, for the consideration of the
matter and speak on the item.

6.3.6.

The SCC Cabinet /GBC Executive may accept, reject or amend the decision
taken by the Joint Committee. A report on the decision taken by the Cabinet
will be made to the next appropriate meeting of the Joint Committee, and to
all the Members of either SCC or GBC, as appropriate, for information.

The following general provisions apply to the consideration of all matters
within Guildford Joint Committee’s remit.
7.

NOTICE OF MEETING

7.1.

The date, time and place of the fixed meetings of the Joint Committee will be
accessed through both the SCC and GBC websites. The notice, agenda,
reports and other documents prepared for the Joint Committee will be posted
on the SCC website (with links from the GBC website) and sent to Members
of the Committee not less than five clear working days before the date of the
meeting.

7.2.

Only the business on the agenda will be discussed at a meeting of the Joint
Committee except for urgent matters raised in accordance with the provisions
in Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

8.

SPECIAL MEETINGS

8.1.

A special meeting of the Joint Committee will be convened to consider
specific matters within its terms of reference at the discretion of the Chairman,
or the Vice-Chairman in his/her absence. At least five clear working days’
notice of a special meeting must be given.

9.

AGENDAS

9.1.

The Joint Committee will comply with the Access to Information rules in Part
VA of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

9.2.

Agendas for meetings of the Joint Committee shall be published by the
Committee Manager five clear working days in advance of a meeting and
copies will be made available for public inspection via the SCC and GBC
websites.

9.3.

Members of the Joint Committee may suggest items for inclusion in the
agenda within its remit. These will be added to the forward programme in
consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Joint
Committee.

Page 107

10.

DECISIONS AND MINUTES

10.1. The decisions from the meeting shall be published on SCC’s website, with
links from the GBC website, within three clear working days of the date on
which the Joint Committee met.
10.2. The draft minutes of a meeting shall be published on SCC’s website, with
relevant links from the GBC website, as soon as is reasonably practicable.
10.3. At the meeting, the Chairman will move the formal motion “That the minutes of
the last meeting be confirmed and signed by the chairman” and there may
only be discussion if there is disagreement about their accuracy which will be
resolved by a vote in the normal way.
10.4. Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing
the minutes is a Special Meeting called under the provisions of paragraph 8
above , then the next following meeting (being a meeting called otherwise
than under that paragraph) will be treated as a suitable meeting for the
purposes of signing of minutes.
11.

CONFIDENTIALITY OF PAPERS

11.1. All Members must respect the confidentiality of any papers made available to
them for the purpose of meetings of the Guildford Joint Committee or
otherwise for so long as those papers remain confidential.
12.

QUORUM

12.1. The quorum will be one quarter of the total number of voting members of the
Joint Committee. A quorum may not be fewer than three voting members
12.2. The Chairman will adjourn the meeting if there is not a quorum present.
13.

MEMBER QUESTIONS TO THE GUILDFORD JOINT COMMITTEE

13.1. Any Member of either Council may, with the Chairman’s consent, ask one or
more questions on matters within the terms of reference of the Joint
Committee.
13.2. Notice of questions must be given in writing to the Community Partnerships
Team by 12 noon four working days before the meeting. If the day in question
is a Bank Holiday then notice of questions should be received by 12 noon on
the previous working day.
13.3. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the
matter is urgent.
13.4. Where a Member has given notice of a question and is absent from the
meeting another Member may ask it on his/her behalf.

Page 108

13.5. Every question will be put and answered.
13.6. Copies of all questions will be circulated to Members of the Joint Committee
before the start of the meeting.
13.7. Questions may be answered orally or in writing.
13.8. If the Chairman is unable to answer any question at the meeting he/she may
send a written answer to the Member asking the question.
13.9. At the discretion of the Chairman at the meeting, a Member who has given
notice of a question may ask one supplementary question relevant to the
subject of the original or the given response.
13.10. A record of all questions, supplementary questions and relevant answers will
be included in the minutes of the meeting.
14.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN GUILDFORD JOINT COMMITTEE

14.1. Petitions
14.1.1. Any member of the public who lives, works or studies in the Guildford
Borough area may present a petition, containing 30 or more signatures or at
the Chairman’s discretion, relating to a matter within the terms of reference of
the Joint Committee. The presentation of a petition on the following business
will not be allowed:
(a) matters which are “confidential” or “exempt” under Part VA of the
Local Government Act 1972;
(b) planning applications; and
(c) matters in relation to a public rights of way under consideration by the
Joint Committee.
14.1.2. A spokesperson for the petitioners may address the Joint Committee on the
petition for up to 3 minutes or longer if agreed by the Chairman. Discussion
on a petition at the meeting is at the Chairman’s discretion. The petition may
be referred to the next appropriate meeting of the Joint Committee or to the
SCC Cabinet, Cabinet Member, GBC Executive or relevant committee of
either SCC or GBC at the discretion of the Chairman.
14.1.3. Notice must be given in writing to the Community Partnerships Team at least
14 days before the meeting. Alternatively, the petition can be submitted online through SCC’s or GBC’s e-petitions website as long as the minimum
number of signatures has been reached 14 days before the meeting.
14.1.4. No more than three petitions may be presented at any one meeting of the
Joint Committee unless agreed otherwise by the Chairman.

Page 109

14.1.5. The Community Partnerships Team may amalgamate within the first
received petition other petitions of like effect on the same subject.
14.1.6. The presentation of a petition on the same or similar topic as one presented
in the last six months may only be permitted at the Chairman’s discretion.
14.2.

Public Questions and Statements

14.2.1. At the start of any ordinary meeting of the Joint Committee, any member of
the public who lives, works or studies in the Guildford borough area may ask
one question or make a statement relating to a matter within the
Committee’s terms of reference. The Chairman may alternatively permit the
question to be asked or the statement to be made at the start of an item on
the agenda if it relates to that item.
14.2.2. Questions or statements will not be allowed on matters which are
“confidential” or “exempt” under Part VA of the Local Government Act 1972;
or on planning applications or on rights of way matters under consideration.
14.2.3. Notice of questions or statements must be given in writing to the Community
Partnerships Team with details of the question or statement, by 12 noon four
working days before the meeting. If the day in question is a Bank Holiday
then notice of questions or statement should be received by 12 noon on the
previous working day.
14.2.4. The Community Partnerships Team may, having consulted a questioner,
reword any question or statement received to bring it into proper form and to
secure reasonable brevity. Copies will be made available for members of the
Joint Committee and any member of the public in attendance.
14.2.5. Questions and statements will be taken in the order in which they are
received by the Community Partnerships Team. The provision of answers to
questions being asked, any response to statements, and any discussion of
the question or statement will be at the discretion of the Chairman.
14.2.6. Following any initial reply to a question, one or more supplementary
question/s in relation to the response provided may be asked by the
questioner at the discretion of the Chairman. The provision of answers to
supplementary questions being asked and any discussion of these questions
will be at the discretion of the Chairman.
14.2.7. The total number of questions which may be asked or statements made at
any one meeting will be at the discretion of the Chairman. The Chairman
may decide that questions or statements can be held over to the following
meeting, or dealt with in writing and may disallow questions or statements
which are repetitious.
14.2.8. When dealing with any item in which public participation has occurred, the
Chairman shall clarify the point at which such public participation has

Page 110

concluded and the Joint Committee’s formal discussion and decision making
of the item is taking place.
14.3.

Public Speaking in relation to Rights of Way
Rights of Way application decisions are quasi-judicial decisions. They are
therefore subject to specific rules. The reason for the rules about public
speaking reflect the right of all individuals to a fair hearing.

14.3.1. Members of the public and their representatives may address the
Guildford Joint Committee on any applications relating to public Rights of
Way being considered by the Joint Committee.
14.3.2. Speakers must first register their wish to speak by telephone or in writing to
the Community Partnerships Team by 12 noon one working day before a
meeting stating on which item(s) they wish to speak.
14.3.3. Only those people who have previously made written representations in
response to a Rights of Way application will be entitled to speak.
14.3.4. Speakers must declare any financial or personal interest they may have in
the application.
14.3.5. Registration of speakers will be on a first come first served basis and
speakers will be taken in the order in which they are registered, with the first
five registered being entitled to speak. Where more than one person has
registered an interest to speak, the subsequent speakers will be entitled to
speak first if the first named speaker is not in attendance five minutes before
the start of the meeting. Representations can be combined if necessary. A
reserve list will also be maintained if necessary.
14.3.6. The time allowed for public speaking will be limited to 15 minutes for
objectors and 15 minutes for supporters per item, and to 3 minutes per
speaker.
14.3.7. Only if a member of the public or their representative speaks objecting will
the applicant/agent be allowed to speak and then only to respond to the
points raised by the objectors, and will be limited to 3 minutes for each
objector who has spoken.
14.3.8. No additional information may be circulated by speakers at the meeting and
they will have no right to speak or question Members or officers once they
have made their submission.
14.3.9. Speeches will precede the Joint Committee’s formal discussion on each
application requiring the Joint Committee’s attention.
14.3.10. The right to speak will only be exercised at the first meeting at which the
application is considered and will not normally be the subject of further
presentations at any subsequent meeting unless significant changes have
taken place after a deferral by the Joint Committee.

Page 111

15.

RIGHT TO SPEAK AT THE JOINT COMMITTEE

15.1. A Member of the Joint Committee may speak on any business on the
published agenda of the committee. Matters not relevant to the business on
the agenda will not be permitted.
15.2

16.

A Member may only speak once on a motion and amendment except:
(a)

the mover may reply to the debate but, in doing so, may only answer
statements and arguments made in the course of the debate. He/she
may not introduce any new matter;

(b)

the mover of a motion may speak during the debate on any amendment
to the motion;

(c)

a Member who has already spoken may speak on a point of order or
may, at the Chairman’s discretion, explain any statement made by
him/her which he/she believes has been misunderstood;

(d)

the Chairman may speak before the mover of the motion or amendment
replies to the debate.

(e)

A Member seconding any motion or amendment will be deemed to have
spoken on it unless he/she speaks immediately and reserves his/her
right to speak later.

RELEVANCE

16.1. Every Member who speaks must direct his/her speech strictly to the motion or
matter under discussion, or to a motion or amendment which he/she moves,
or to a point of order.
17.

POINTS OF ORDER

17.1. Any Member wishing to raise a point of order must say at the outset the
Standing Order or rule of debate which he/she believes has been infringed.
Every point of order will be decided immediately by the Chairman whose
decision will be final.
18.

LENGTH OF SPEECHES

18.1. Except with the consent of the Chairman, the following time limits will apply to
speeches:
(a)

The mover of a motion or an amendment (5 minutes)
(A Member may not speak for more than five minutes unless he/she has
a seconder).

Page 112

19.

(b)

The mover of a motion either speaking to an amendment or replying to
the debate (3 minutes)

(c)

The mover of an amendment replying to the debate on the amendment.
(3 minutes)

(d)

The seconder of a motion or an amendment (3 minutes)

(e)

A Member speaking on a report or in a debate (3 minutes)

AFTER REPLY DEBATE IS CLOSED

19.1. After the reply is made, the motion or amendment under discussion will be put
from the Chair.
20.

PROCEDURE FOR MOTIONS AND AMENDMENTS

20.1. Every motion or amendment must be moved and seconded and, if the
Chairman requires, must be submitted in writing to the Community
Partnerships Team and read aloud before it is put to the meeting.
20.2. A Member may not move or second more than one amendment on any
motion.
20.3. Once moved and seconded, a motion or amendment may not be withdrawn
without the consent of the Joint Committee.
20.4. With the consent of the Joint Committee, a Member may:
(a)

alter a motion of which he/she has given notice; or

(b)

with the consent of his/her seconder, alter a motion which he/she has
moved.

(In either case, the alteration must be one which could be made as an
amendment under the following Standing Order).
21.

AMENDMENTS

21.1. Every amendment must be relevant to the motion under discussion and will
either:
(a)

move the reference back

(b)

leave out words

(c)

add words, or

(d)

leave out words and add others.

Page 113

21.2. An amendment which forms the negative of the motion will not be allowed.
21.3. Whenever an amendment has been moved and seconded, no subsequent
amendment may be moved until the first has been dealt with, unless the
Chairman decides otherwise.
21.4. If an amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved on the motion.
21.5. If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended will become the
substantive motion on which further amendments may be moved.
22.

PROCEDURAL MOTION
“That the question be now put”

22.1. Any Member may, at the close of the speech of another Member, move “That
the question be now put”.
22.2. If he/she considers that there has been adequate debate, the Chairman may
put the motion “That the question be now put” without debate. If the motion is
carried:
(a)

the Chairman may speak to the motion or amendment under debate, if
he/she has not already spoken; and

(b)

the mover of the motion or amendment may reply.

22.3. The motion or amendment will then be put.
23.

INTERRUPTIONS AND DISORDERLY CONDUCT

23.1. If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at a meeting, the
Chairman may ask him/her not to interrupt.
23.2. If the interruption continues, the Chairman may order his/her removal from the
room.
23.3. If there is general disturbance in all or part of the public gallery, the Chairman
may order that part to be cleared.
23.4. If a Member behaves in a disorderly or disruptive manner, any Member may
move, with the consent of the Chairman, “That the named Member be not
further heard”. If this motion is seconded it will be put to the vote and
determined without discussion.
23.5. If the motion is carried and the misconduct continues the Chairman may
adjourn or suspend the sitting of the Joint Committee for as long as he/she
considers appropriate.

Page 114

24.

VOTING

24.1. Voting will be by show of hands unless a Member demands a recorded vote.
Where a recorded vote is called, the names of those voting for, against, or
abstaining in respect of the motion or amendment will be recorded and
entered in the minutes.
24.2. Where a demand for a recorded vote is not supported, any Member may
require his/her vote for or against the motion to be recorded in the minutes.
24.3. On a formal motion put from the Chairman (e.g. “That the report be received”),
the question may be decided by the voice of the Members, unless any
Member demands a show of hands.
24.4. If immediately after a vote is taken any Member so requires, the way in which
he/she voted (or abstained) will be recorded in the minutes of that meeting.
24.5. The person presiding at the meeting may in the event of a tie exercise a
second or casting vote.
25.

MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

25.1. Members are bound by the Code of Conduct of the authority which appointed
them to the Guildford Joint Committee and should particularly observe the
provisions of their respective Codes concerning the declaration of interests
when attending meetings of the Guildford Joint Committee.
26.

INTERESTS OF MEMBERS

26.1. At any meeting where a Member becomes aware that a matter under
consideration relates to:
(a)

one of their interests that they must disclose in accordance with their
respective Council’s Codes not already entered on the relevant Council’s
register and/or

(b)

the donor of any gift and/or hospitality they have accepted and not yet
entered on the relevant Council’s register

The Member must disclose the interest to the meeting and, within 28 days,
notify this to either SCC’s Monitoring Officer in the case of County Councillors
or GBC’s Monitoring Officer in the case of Borough Councillors for inclusion in
the register.
27.

PARTICIPATION IN RELATION TO DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
INTERESTS

27.1. A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter must:
(a)

not participate in any discussion or vote relating to the matter;

Page 115

28.

(b)

withdraw from the room or chamber when it becomes apparent that
the matter is being considered at that meeting;

(c)

not exercise functions in relation to that matter; and

(d)

not take any steps in relation to the matter (except for the purposes of
enabling the matter to be dealt with otherwise than by them) unless
he/she has obtained a dispensation from SCC’s Audit and Governance
Committee for County Councillors or GBC’s Council Solicitor and
Monitoring Officer, or Corporate Governance and Standards Committee
(as the GBC Constitution so specifies).

ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS

28.1. All Members present will sign a register of attendance.
29.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

29.1. The Guildford Joint Committee may, by resolution, exclude the press and
public from a meeting during an item of business wherever it is likely, in view
of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the public were present during that item there would be
disclosure of Exempt or Confidential information as defined by the Local
Government Act 1972 and/or the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
30.

SUB-COMMITTEES AND TASK GROUPS

30.1. The Guildford Joint Committee may appoint:

31.

(a)

Sub-Committees with power to act to discharge any of its functions as
agreed by the Joint Committee.

(b)

Task Groups which cannot make decisions but may consider specific
matters and report back to a future meeting of the Guildford Joint
Committee.

CONDUCT AT MEETINGS

31.1. The conduct of meetings and the interpretation of these Standing Orders are
at all times a matter for the Chairman, or person presiding at the meeting,
whose ruling is final.

Page 116

Annex 4

Runnymede Joint Committee
Constitution
Page
No.
Section 1

Context and Purpose

Section 2

Functions and Funding

Section 3

1

(A)

General Remit

2

(B)

Delegated Powers

3

(C)

Funding

5

(D)

Withdrawal from the Joint Committee

5

Standing Orders

6

May 2022

Page 117

Section 1 – Context and Purpose
Runnymede Joint Committee is a Joint Committee of Surrey County Council and
Runnymede Borough Council and is set up under the provisions of Section 102 of the Local
Government Act 1972. The Joint Committee aims to improve outcomes and value for money
for residents in Runnymede by strengthening local democracy and improving partnership
working within the Borough of Runnymede.
In addition to carrying out the functions previously performed by the Local Committee
(Runnymede), the remit of the Joint Committee has been expanded in order to support the
two councils in working together effectively.
Whilst the Joint Committee is responsible for making decisions relating to the delegated
functions, the day-to-day operational arrangements relating to any particular function
continues to be managed by the local authority having responsibility for that function.
By working together, the Joint Committee provides the opportunity to identify local solutions
and seek to jointly deliver local government service improvements for the residents,
businesses and visitors to Runnymede. Both councils will be proactive in bringing issues to
the Joint Committee and seeking to deliver local priorities together.
The Joint Committee provides a single place for residents to engage with both authorities
and a forum to debate cross cutting issues. Meetings of the Runnymede Joint Committee
are held in public, and local people are able to participate during parts of the meeting as set
out in Section 3 of this document.
This Constitution includes the standing orders that apply to the Joint Committee. These need
to also be read in the light of the individual Constitutions of each of the two Councils which
continue to apply as appropriate to decisions delegated by each relevant authority.
There will be a review by both authorities towards the end of the first 12 months of the
operation of Joint Committee in order to determine if any changes should be made.

Page 118

Section 2 – Functions and Funding
The scope and overall purpose of the Runnymede Joint Committee is as set out in Section
1. The general remit of the Joint Committee is set out below and the more specific delegated
functions are outlined in later sections.

(A)

General Remit

The general remit of the Runnymede Joint Committee is:
1.

To identify and agree opportunities for the closer alignment of County and Borough
services in Runnymede and provide a forum to debate cross cutting issues.

2.

To make decisions on local services and budgets delegated to it by either Surrey
County Council or Runnymede Borough Council.

3.

To make comments on policy, strategy, services, priority community work, or other
matters specifically referred to it by the County Council or the Borough Council.

4.

To champion joint working and provide political oversight of key County and Borough
partnership initiatives and strategies.

5.

To seek solutions to local concerns relating to Council services under the remit of the
Joint Committee.

6.

To identify and set local priorities through an annual priority setting meeting.

7.

To build community leadership, and provide opportunities for local engagement.

8.

To ensure that local authority services within the Borough of Runnymede are carried
out in accordance with both Surrey County Council’s and Runnymede Borough
Council’s core values, policies, strategies and within approved budgets.

Page 119

(B)

Delegated Powers

The services identified below are delegated by Surrey County Council (SCC) or Runnymede
Borough Council (RBC) as indicated, for decision making or consideration by the
Runnymede Joint Committee, in accordance with the relevant legislation.
In discharging the delegated powers, the Runnymede Joint Committee must have due
regard at all times to the approved policies, budgets and financial regulations of the Council
delegating the functions, and act in accordance with Standing Orders at Section 3 of this
Constitution.
Set out below is a list of the functions that are delegated to the Runnymede Joint Committee.
Additional functions and matters for determination may be delegated to the Committee in
the future if agreed by both local authorities, which will then form part of an amended
Constitution, which shall need Member approval before both Councils so that their
respective Constitutions are duly updated to reflect such changes. The SCC Partnership
Committee Officer will maintain a record of all additional delegated functions and will ensure
that any such additions are reported to the Joint Committee at the next meeting after the
delegation takes place.
Executive Functions delegated by Surrey County Council
In relation to the Borough of Runnymede the Joint Committee will take decisions delegated
to it by the SCC Cabinet on the following local services and budgets, to be taken in
accordance with the financial framework and policies of the respective Councils and within
agreed performance and resources:
(i)

Changes which amount to more than 15% in the hours of opening for local
libraries (whether managed directly by Surrey County Council or under a
community partnership agreement.) (SCC)

(ii)

Community safety funding that is delegated to the Joint Committee from Surrey
County Council (SCC).

(iii) Decisions in relation to highways and infrastructure:
a.

The allocation of the Surrey County Council highway capital budget
and highway revenue budget which are devolved to the Joint
Committee for minor highway improvements and highway
maintenance within the Committee’s area including the scope to
use a proportion of either budget to facilitate local highways
initiatives (SCC).

b.

To allocate funds to review on-street parking management,
including local on-street parking charges where appropriate and to
approve the statutory advertisement of Traffic Regulation Orders
(TROs) relating to on-street parking controls (SCC).

c.

To agree local speed limits on County Council roads within its area,
and to approve the statutory advertisement of speed limit orders,
taking into account the advice of the Surrey Police Road Safety and
Traffic Management Team and with regard to the County Council
Speed Limit Policy (SCC).

Page 120

d.

To approve the statutory advertisement of all legal orders or
appropriate notifications relating to highway schemes within the
delegated powers of the Joint Committee (SCC).

e.

Where, under delegated powers, the Parking Strategy and
Implementation Team Manager or Highways Area Team Manager
has chosen to refer the decision on whether a TRO should be made
to the Joint Committee, the Committee will make that decision
(SCC).

f.

To consider applications for stopping up a highway under section
116 of the Highways Act 1980 when, following the consent of RBC,
unresolved objections have been received during the period of
statutory public
advertisement, and to decide whether the
application should proceed to the Magistrates’ Court (SCC).

(iv) Decisions on funding when a budget is allocated to the Joint Committee by
Surrey County Council’s Cabinet. (SCC)
Non-Executive Functions delegated by Surrey County Council
The Joint Committee will deal with all those non-executive functions relating to public rights
of way set out in the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England)
Regulations 2000, as amended, except for those separately referred to in the County
Council’s Scheme of Delegation (or within the terms of reference of other Committees).
Decisions delegated by Surrey County Council and Runnymede Borough Council
Apportion any resources for Early Help services in accordance with the approved local Early
Help priorities that may be delegated to the Joint Committee by Surrey County Council and
/ or Runnymede Borough Council, in relation to services for young people, with the aim of
achieving an integrated approach from Surrey County Council and Runnymede Borough
Council (SCC/RBC).
Service Monitoring and Issues of Local Concern - advisory functions
The Joint Committee will play an important advisory role in shaping the development and
delivery of services locally across both authorities. It will:
(i)

Act as a one stop shop for residents to engage with both authorities, debate cross
cutting issues, raise issues of concern and seek to influence the respective Councils
in the light of local need.

(ii)

Monitor formal decisions taken by officers under delegated powers and provide
feedback to improve service standards.

(iii)

Be consulted on any issues referred to it by either Council or produce responses as
appropriate.

The Joint Committee may:

Page 121

(i)

Consider the use of developer infrastructure funding in regard to proposed and
planned strategic infrastructure schemes, identifying common objectives and
supporting the pursuit of joint funding bids whether wholly or partly in Runnymede.

(ii)

Influence the development of a joint vision for the place shaping agenda including
regeneration and town centre management.

(iii)

Influence the development of the Family Support Programme in Runnymede and
monitor its performance. Provide political oversight and advice to the Early Help
Advisory Board and advise on priorities for the Early Help offer locally.

(iv)

Consider the more effective use of existing public sector property assets in the
borough and the potential opportunities that may exist for development where this
could be in the mutual interest of both authorities where expediency allows.

(v)

Review and influence any new proposals for on and off street parking and
enforcement locally including the use of budgets.

(vi)

Influence priorities for the provision of integrated Health and Social Care and Older
People’s Services locally.

(vii)

Influence action plans for the deprivation task groups established within the borough.

(viii)

Facilitate partnership work with schools, Multi Academy Trusts, governors and other
partners to promote high educational standards and the fulfilment of potential for all
children locally.

(C)

Funding

(i)

With regards to budget setting and planning, Surrey County Council and
Runnymede Borough Council will agree each year the amount of funding available
to the Joint Committee to carry out its delegated decisions. All funds will be held
and administered by the originating authorities and spent in accordance with their
respective financial regulations and policies.

(ii)

Provision of venue:
The meetings will normally be held in Runnymede Borough Council venues, unless
alternative arrangements are jointly agreed with Surrey County Council.

(iii)

Committee management:
Committee management and associated costs for the Joint Committee will be
provided by Surrey County Council.

(iv)

Any members’ costs and expenses resulting from the Joint Committee (including
those in relation to Chairman and Vice Chairman roles) will be funded and
administered by their respective authorities.

(D)

Withdrawal from the Joint Committee

The operation of the Joint Committee will be reviewed by both authorities after the first 12
months. At this point or at any future point either Council may give 6 months’ notice in
writing of their intention to withdraw from the Committee and return to operating as a SCC
Local Committee under the SCC Constitution.

Page 122

Section 3 - Standing Orders
1. MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS AT MEETINGS
1.1. Membership of the Runnymede Joint Committee shall be all county councillors with
electoral divisions in Runnymede, one Surrey County Council Cabinet Member (who
may also be a county councillor with an electoral division in Runnymede), and an
equivalent number of borough councillors who should be politically proportionate to the
Borough Council. At least one borough councillor shall be a member of the Council’s
Corporate Management Committee. If there is no Surrey County Council Cabinet
Member with an electoral division in Runnymede the County Council shall appoint a
specific Cabinet member to the Runnymede Joint Committee and the Borough Council
would be entitled to appoint an additional borough councillor representati ve on the
Joint Committee to ensure equity.
1.2. No substitutes shall be permitted for the members on the Joint Committee. Members
will be appointed to the committee at the first business meeting of the respective
Council at the start of each municipal year. All borough and county councillors on the
Joint Committee will have equal voting rights on all issues being considered.
1.3. A person shall cease to be a member if he/she ceases to be a member of the County
Council, a member representing an electoral division in Runnymede or the relevant
Cabinet Member, or in the case of a member of the Borough Council, ceases to be a
member of that Council, or the relevant Corporate Management Committee Member
or resigns from the Runnymede Joint Committee.
1.4. Surrey County Council or Runnymede Borough Council may, through their respective
Councils, co-opt representatives from the voluntary sector, public authorities or
businesses in Runnymede onto the Joint Committee. These representatives will be
able to take part in discussions on agenda items, but will not be able to vote on any
item for decision.
1.5. Any Surrey County Councillor or Runnymede Borough Councillor may attend the
meeting of the committee and, with the Chairman’s consent, speak on the matter or
provide written representation.
2. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN
2.1. From 2018/2019 Municipal Year, the offices of Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall
alternate between the two Councils every year, with the County Council providing the
Chairman in 2018/19. If the appointed Chairman is representing Surrey County
Council, the Vice-Chairman must be a Runnymede Borough Council representative
and vice-versa with the appointments made in accordance with each authority’s usual
procedures.
2.2. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall, unless he or she resigns the office or ceases
to be a member of the Runnymede Joint Committee, continue in office until a successor
is appointed. If a Chairman or Vice-Chairman does not complete a full term of office, a
further member from the same Council shall be appointed for the remainder of that
term in accordance with each authority’s usual procedures

Page 123

2.3. In the absence of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman at a meeting, the members of
the Committee shall elect a chairman for that meeting.
3. MANAGEMENT OF THE COMMITTEE
3.1. The County Council’s Community Partnerships Team shall act as the Committee
Manager for the Runnymede Joint Committee and shall be responsible for preparing
and circulating agendas for meetings, advising on constitutional matters and for
producing the decisions and minutes.
4. FORMAL MEETINGS
4.1. There shall be between 4 and 8 formal meetings of the Runnymede Joint Committee
each year as determined by the Chairman and Vice-Chairman and as set out in the
calendar of meetings published on the council’s website.
4.2. The Chairman or in his/her absence the Vice-Chairman, may call a special meeting of
the Runnymede Joint Committee to consider a matter that falls within its remit but
cannot await the next scheduled meeting, provided at least five clear working days
notice in writing is given to the Committee Manager.
4.3. Formal meetings of the Joint Committee and its sub-committees shall be held in public
except when exempt or confidential information is being considered and the press and
public can be excluded in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.
4.4. Meetings of any working groups or task groups established by the Joint Committee
shall, unless otherwise agreed, be held in private.
5. DELEGATED POWERS
5.1. The delegated powers mean those powers to be discharged by the Runnymede Joint
Committee as set out in Section 2(B) of this Constitution.
5.2. The Runnymede Joint Committee shall discharge the delegated powers within the
budgetary and policy framework set by Surrey County Council in the case of county
functions or by Runnymede Borough Council in the case of borough functions.
5.3. When discharging the delegated powers the Runnymede Joint Committee shall take
decisions only after taking into account advice given in writing or orally from relevant
officers of Surrey County Council or of Runnymede Borough Council as appropriate,
including legal, financial and policy advice.
5.4. If the Joint Committee is to make a key decision delegated to it by either Surrey County
Council Executive or Runnymede Borough Council, then the Joint Committee must
follow the constitution of the authority delegating the decision, including publishing it in
the monthly forward plan in the case of Surrey County Council.

Page 124

6. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
6.1. Executive decisions made by the Runnymede Joint Committee which are delegated
from Surrey County Council are subject to scrutiny in accordance with Surrey County
Council’s constitution.
6.2. The processes and procedures for the exercise by the relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Committee of their ‘call-in’ function shall be in accordance with the Constitutions of
Surrey County Council or Runnymede Borough Council depending on which authority
delegated the decision in question.
Call In of Joint Committee Decisions
6.3. The SCC Cabinet or RBC Overview and Scrutiny Select Committee may, dependent
on which Council delegated the function or resources, require referral, for review and
final determination any decision (other than Surrey County Council Non Executive
Functions), taken by the Joint Committee, which has significant policy or budgetary
implications or is outside of the authority delegated to the Joint Committee, subject to
notice of requirement for referral being given within 5 working days of publication of
the decision.
6.3.1 Notice of referral may be given by the Leader or Deputy Leader of the relevant
authority, or two or more members of the SCC Cabinet or RBC Overview and
Scrutiny Select Committee as appropriate.
6.3.2 All members of the Joint Committee will be notified that a decision taken by the
Committee has been required for referral by SCC Cabinet or RBC Overview and
Scrutiny Select Committee.
6.3.3 The decision will be considered by the SCC Cabinet or RBC Overview and
Scrutiny Select Committee at its next appropriate meeting in discussion with the
Joint Committee Chairman and Vice-Chairman and no action will be taken to
implement it in the meantime.
6.3.4 The Joint Committee Chairman or Vice-Chairman may attend the SCC Cabinet
or RBC Overview and Scrutiny Select Committee meeting, as appropriate, for
the consideration of the matter and speak on the item.
6.3.5 The SCC Cabinet or RBC Corporate Management Committee (further to the
recommendation from the RBC Overview and Scrutiny Select Committee) may
accept, reject or amend the decision taken by the Joint Committee. A report on
the decision taken by the Cabinet or Corporate Management Committee will be
made to the next appropriate meeting of the Joint Committee, and to all the
Members of either Surrey or Runnymede Borough Council, as appropriate, for
information.

Page 125

The following general provisions apply to the consideration of all matters within
Runnymede Joint Committee’s remit.

7. NOTICE OF MEETING
7.1. The date, time and place of the fixed meetings of Runnymede Joint Committee will be
accessed through both the Surrey County Council and Runnymede Borough Council
websites. The notice, agenda, reports and other documents prepared for the
Runnymede Joint Committee will be posted on the Surrey County Council website
(with links from the Runnymede Borough Council website) and sent to Members of the
Committee not less than five clear working days before the date of the meeting.
7.2. Only the business on the agenda will be discussed at a meeting of the Runnymede
Joint Committee except for urgent matters raised in accordance with the provisions in
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.
8. SPECIAL MEETINGS
8.1. A special meeting of the Runnymede Joint Committee will be convened to consider
specific matters within its terms of reference at the discretion of the Chairman, or the
Vice-Chairman in his/her absence. At least five clear working days’ notice of a special
meeting must be given.
9. AGENDAS
9.1. Runnymede Joint Committee will comply with the Access to Information rules in Part
VA of the Local Government Act 1972.
9.2. Agendas for meetings of the Runnymede Joint Committee shall be published by the
SCC Committee Manager five clear working days in advance of a meeting, and copies
will be made available via the County Council and Runnymede Borough Council
websites.
9.3. Members of the Runnymede Joint Committee may suggest items for inclusion in the
agenda within its remit. These will be added to the forward programme in consultation
with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Runnymede Joint Committee.
10. DECISIONS AND MINUTES
10.1. The decisions from the meeting shall be published on the County Council’s website,
with links from the Runnymede Borough website, within three clear working days of
the Committee.
10.2. The minutes of a meeting shall be published on the County Council’s website, with
relevant links, as soon as is reasonably practicable.
10.3. At the meeting, the Chairman will move the formal motion “That the minutes of the
last meeting be confirmed and signed by the chairman” and there may only be
discussion if there is disagreement about their accuracy which will be resolved by a
vote as detailed in Section 24 of this document.

Page 126

10.4. Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing the
minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of schedule 12 to the Local Government
Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then the next following meeting (being a meeting
called otherwise than under that paragraph) will be treated as a suitable meeting for
the purposes of signing of minutes.
11. CONFIDENTIALITY OF PAPERS
11.1. All Members must respect the confidentiality of any papers made available to them
for the purpose of meetings of the Runnymede Joint Committee or otherwise for so
long as those papers remain confidential.
12. QUORUM
12.1.

The Chairman will adjourn the meeting if there is not a quorum present.

12.2. The quorum will be four voting members, two from Surrey County Council and two
from Runnymede Borough Council.
13. MEMBER QUESTIONS TO THE RUNNYMEDE JOINT COMMITTEE
13.1. Any Member of either Council may, with the Chairman’s consent, ask one or more
questions on matters within the Constitution of the committee.
13.2. Notice of questions must be given in writing to the SCC Community Partnerships
Team by 12 noon four working days before the meeting. If the day in question is a
Bank Holiday then notice of questions should be received by 12 noon on the previous
working day.
13.3. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is
urgent.
13.4. Where a Member has given notice of a question and is absent from the meeting
another Member may ask it on his/her behalf.
13.5. Every question will be put and answered without discussion.
13.6. Copies of all questions will be circulated to Members before the start of the meeting.
13.7. Questions may be answered orally or in writing.
13.8. If the Chairman is unable to answer any question at the meeting he/she may send a
written answer to the Member asking the question.
13.9. At the discretion of the Chairman, a Member who has given notice of a question may
ask one supplementary question relevant to the subject of the original.
13.10. A record of all questions and answers will be included in the minutes of the meeting.

Page 127

14. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN RUNNYMEDE JOINT COMMITTEE
14.1. PETITIONS
14.1.1. Any member of the public who lives, works or studies in the Runnymede Borough
area may present a petition, containing 30 or more signatures or at the Chairman’s
discretion, relating to a matter within the Constitution of the Committee. The
presentation of a petition on the following business will not be allowed:
14.1.1.1. matters which are “confidential” or “exempt” under Part VA of the
Government Act 1972;

Local

14.1.1.2. planning applications and planning policy and licensing and/or regulatory
matters; and
14.1.1.3. matters in relation to a public rights of way under consideration by the
Joint Committee.
14.1.2 A spokesperson for the petitioners may address the committee on the petition for
up to 3 minutes or longer if agreed by the Chairman. Discussion on a petition at
the meeting is at the Chairman’s discretion. The petition may be referred to the
next appropriate meeting of the committee or to the SCC Cabinet, Cabinet
Member, RBC Corporate Management Committee or relevant committee of
either SCC or RBC at the discretion of the Chairman.
14.1.3 Notice must be given in writing to the SCC Community Partnerships Team at
least 14 days before the meeting. Alternatively, the petition can be submitted online through Surrey County Council’s e-petitions website as long as the minimum
number of signatures has been reached 14 days before the meeting.
14.1.4 No more than three petitions may be presented at any one meeting of the
committee unless agreed otherwise by the Chairman.
14.1.5 The Community Partnerships Team may amalgamate within the first received
petition other petitions of like effect on the same subject.
14.1.6 The presentation of a petition on the same or similar topic as one presented in the
last six months may only be permitted at the Chairman’s discretion.
14.2. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS
14.2.1 At the start of any ordinary meeting of the Committee, any member of the public
who lives, works or studies in the Runnymede Borough area may ask one
question or make a statement relating to a matter within the Committee’s
Constitution. The Chairman may alternatively permit the question to be asked or
the statement to be made at the start of an item on the agenda which it relates to.

Page 128

14.2.2 Questions or statements will not be allowed on matters which are “confidential”
or “exempt” under the Local Government Access to Information Act 1985 or on
planning applications or on rights of way matters under consideration.
14.2.3 Notice of questions or statements must be given in writing or by email to the SCC
Community Partnerships Team with details of the question or statement, by 12
noon four working days before the meeting. If the day in question is a Bank
Holiday then notice of questions should be received by 12 noon on the previous
working day.
14.2.4 The Community Partnerships Team may, having consulted a questioner, reword
any question or statement received to bring it into proper form and to secure
reasonable brevity. Copies will be made available for members of the Joint
Committee and any member of the public in attendance.
14.2.5 Questions and statements will be taken in the order in which they are received by
the SCC Community Partnerships Team. The provision of answers to questions
being asked, any response to statements, and any discussion of the question or
statement will be at the discretion of the Chairman.
14.2.6 Following any initial reply to a question, one or more supplementary question/s in
relation to the response provided may be asked by the questioner at the
discretion of the Chairman. The provision of answers to supplementary questions
being asked and any discussion of these questions will be at the discretion of the
Chairman.
14.2.7 The total number of questions which may be asked or statements made at any
one meeting will be at the discretion of the Chairman. The Chairman may decide
that questions or statements can be held over to the following meeting, or dealt
with in writing and may disallow questions or statements which are repetitious.
14.2.8 When dealing with an item in which public participation has occurred, the
Chairman shall clarify the point at which public participation concluded and the
Committee’s formal discussion and decision making of the item is taking place.
14.3. PUBLIC SPEAKING IN RELATION TO RIGHTS OF WAY
14.3.1 Rights of Way application decisions are quasi-judicial decisions. They are
therefore subject to specific rules. The reason for the rules about public speaking
reflect the right of all individuals to a fair hearing.
14.3.2 Members of the public and their representatives may address the Runnymede
Joint Committee on any applications relating to public Rights of Way being
considered by the committee.
14.3.3 Speakers must first register their wish to speak by telephone or in writing to the
Community Partnerships Team by 12 noon one working day before a meeting
stating on which item(s) they wish to speak.
14.3.4 Only those people who have previously made written representations in response
to a Rights of Way application will be entitled to speak.

Page 129

14.3.5 Speakers must declare any financial or personal interest they may have in the
application.
14.3.6 Registration of speakers will be on a first come first served basis and speakers will
be taken in the order in which they are registered, with the first five registered
being entitled to speak. Where more than one person has registered an interest to
speak, the subsequent speakers will be entitled to speak first if the first named
speaker is not in attendance five minutes before the start of the meeting.
Representations can be combined if necessary. A reserve list will also be
maintained if necessary.
14.3.7 The time allowed for public speaking will be limited to 15 minutes overall for
objectors and 15 minutes overall for supporters per item, and to 3 minutes per
speaker.
14.3.8 Only if a member of the public or their representative speaks objecting will the
applicant/agent be allowed to speak and then only to respond to the points raised
by the objectors, and will be limited to 3 minutes for each objector who has
spoken.
14.3.9 No additional information may be circulated by speakers at the meeting and they
will have no right to speak or question Members or officers once they have made
their submission.
14.3.10 Speeches will precede the Committee’s formal discussion on each application
requiring the committee’s attention.
14.3.11 The right to speak will only be exercised at the first meeting at which the
application is considered and will not normally be the subject of further
presentations at any subsequent meeting unless significant changes have taken
place after a deferral by the Committee.
15. RIGHT TO SPEAK AT COMMITTEE
15.1 A Member of the Joint Committee may speak on any business on the published
agenda of the committee. Matters not relevant to the business on the agenda will
be not permitted.
15.2 A Member may only speak once on a motion and amendment except:
15.2.1 The mover may reply to the debate but, in doing so, may only answer
statements and arguments made in the course of the debate. He/she may
not introduce any new matter;
15.2.2 The mover of a motion may speak during the debate on any amendment to
the motion;
15.2.3 A Member who has already spoken may speak on a point of order or may, at
the Chairman’s discretion, explain any statement made by him/her which
he/she believes has been misunderstood;

Page 130

15.2.4 The Chairman may speak before the mover of the motion or amendment
replies to the debate.
15.2.5 A Member seconding any motion or amendment will be deemed to have
spoken on it unless he/she speaks immediately and reserves his/her right to
speak later.
16. RELEVANCE
16.1

Every Member who speaks must direct his/her speech strictly to the motion or
matter under discussion, or to a motion or amendment which he/she moves, or to a
point of order.

17.

POINTS OF ORDER

17.1

Any Member wishing to raise a point of order must say at the outset the Standing
Order or rule of debate which he/she believes has been infringed. Every point of
order will be decided immediately by the Chairman whose decision will be final.

18. LENGTH OF SPEECHES
18.1

Except with the consent of the Chairman, the following time limits will apply to
speeches:
(a) The mover of a motion or an amendment.
(5 minutes)
(A Member may not speak for more than five minutes unless he/she has a
seconder).
(b) The mover of a motion either speaking to an amendment or replying to the
debate.
(3 minutes)
(c) The mover of an amendment replying to the debate on the amendment.
(3 minutes)
(d) The seconder of a motion or an amendment.
(3 minutes)
(e) A Member speaking on a report or in a debate.
(3 minutes)

19. AFTER REPLY DEBATE IS CLOSED
19.1 After the reply is made, the motion or amendment under discussion will be put from
the Chair.

Page 131

20. PROCEDURE FOR MOTIONS AND AMENDMENTS
20.1 Every motion or amendment must be moved and seconded and, if the Chairman
requires, must be submitted in writing to the Community Partnerships Team and
read aloud before it is put to the meeting.
20.2 A Member may not move or second more than one amendment on any motion.
20.3 Once moved and seconded, a motion or amendment may not be withdrawn
without the consent of the Committee.
20.4 With the consent of the Committee a Member may:
20.4.1 Alter a motion of which he/she has given notice; or
20.4.2 With the consent of his/her seconder, alter a motion which he/she has
moved.
(In either case, the alteration must be one which could be made as an amendment under
the following Standing Order).
21. AMENDMENTS
21.1.

Every amendment must be relevant to the motion under discussion and will either:
21.1.1 Leave out words
21.1.2 Add words, or
20.1.3 Leave out words and add others.

21.2 An amendment which forms the negative of the motion will not be allowed.
21.3 Whenever an amendment has been moved and seconded, no subsequent
amendment may be moved until the first has been dealt with, unless the Chairman
decides otherwise.
21.4 If an amendment is defeated, other amendments may be moved on the motion.
21.5 If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended will become the substantive
motion on which further amendments may be moved.
22.

PROCEDURAL MOTION
“That the question be now put”

22.1 Any Member may, at the close of the speech of another Member, move “That the
question be now put”.
22.2 If he/she considers that there has been adequate debate, the Chairman may put
the motion “That the question be now put” without debate. If the motion is carried:

Page 132

(a) The Chairman may speak to the motion or amendment under debate, if he/she
has not already spoken; and
(b) The mover of the motion or amendment may reply.
22.3 The motion or amendment will then be put.
23. INTERRUPTIONS AND DISORDERLY CONDUCT
23.1. If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at a meeting the Chairman may
ask him/her not to interrupt.
23.2. If the interruption continues the Chairman may order his/her removal from the room.
23.3. If there is general disturbance in all or part of the public gallery the Chairman may
order that part to be cleared.
23.4. If a Member behaves in a disorderly or disruptive manner, any Member may move,
with the consent of the Chairman, “That the named Member be not further heard”. If
this motion is seconded it will be put to the vote and determined without discussion.
23.5. If the motion is carried and the misconduct continues the Chairman may adjourn or
suspend the sitting of the Committee for as long as he/she considers appropriate.
24. VOTING
24.1. Voting will be by show of hands unless a Member demands a recorded vote. Where
a recorded vote is called, the names of those voting for or against the motion or
amendment will be recorded and entered in the minutes.
24.2. On a formal motion put from the Chairman (e.g. “That the report be received”), the
question may be decided by the voice of the Members, unless any Member demands
a show of hands.
24.3. If immediately after a vote is taken any Member so requires, the way in which he/she
voted (or abstained) will be recorded in the minutes of that meeting.
24.4. The person presiding at the meeting, having already voted, may in the event of a tie
exercise a casting vote by way of a second vote.
25. MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT
25.1. Members are bound by the Code of Conduct of the authority which appointed them
to the Runnymede Joint Committee and should particularly observe the provisions of
their respective Codes concerning the declaration of interests when attending
meetings of the Runnymede Joint Committee.

Page 133

26. INTERESTS OF MEMBERS
26.1. At any meeting where a Member becomes aware that a matter under consideration
relates to:
26.1.1 One of their interests that they must disclose in accordance with their
respective Council’s Codes not already entered on the relevant Council’s
register and/or
26.1.2 the donor of any gift and/or hospitality they have accepted and not yet
entered on the relevant Council’s register the Member must disclose the
interest to the meeting and, within 28 days, notify this to either the County
Council’s Monitoring Officer in the case of County Councillors or the
Borough Council’s Monitoring Officer in the case of Borough Councillors for
inclusion in the register.
27. PARTICIPATION IN RELATION TO DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS
27.1. A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter must:
27.2. not participate in any discussion or vote relating to the matter;
27.2.1 Withdraw from the room or chamber when it becomes apparent that the
matter is being considered at that meeting;
27.2.2 Not exercise functions in relation to that matter; and
27.2.3 Not take any steps in relation to the matter (except for the purposes of
enabling the matter to be dealt with otherwise than by them) unless he/she
has obtained dispensation from either Monitoring Officer for their Authority
or the County Council’s Audit and Governance Committee for County
Councillors or the Borough Council’s Standards and Audit Committee.
28. ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS
28.1. Members will sign a register of attendance.
29. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
29.1. The Runnymede Joint Committee may, by resolution, exclude the press and public
from a meeting during an item of business wherever it is likely, in view of the nature
of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of
the public were present during that item there would be disclosure of Exempt or
Confidential information as defined by the Local Government Act 1972 and the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012.
30. SUB-COMMITTEES AND TASK GROUPS
30.1. The Runnymede Joint Committee may appoint:
30.1.1 Sub-Committees with power to act to discharge any of its functions as agreed
by the Joint Committee.

Page 134

30.1.2 Task Groups which cannot make decisions but may consider specific matters
and report back to a future meeting of the Runnymede Joint Committee.
31. CONDUCT AT MEETINGS
31.1. The conduct of meetings and the interpretation of these Standing Orders are at all
times a matter for the Chairman of the meeting whose ruling is final.

Page 135

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 5

Spelthorne Joint Committee
Constitution

(May 2022)

Page
No.
Section 1

Context and Purpose

Section 2

Functions and Funding

Section 3

1

(A)

General Remit

2

(B)

Delegated Powers

3

(C)

Funding

6

(D)

Withdrawal from the Joint Committee

7

Standing Orders

8

Version agreed at SCC Council 12th October 2021 and at SBC Council 14th October 2021

Page 137

Section 1 – Context and Purpose
Spelthorne Joint Committee is a Joint Committee of Surrey County Council and Spelthorne
Borough Council and is set up under the provisions of Section 102 of the Local
Government Act 1972. The Joint Committee aims to improve outcomes and value for
money for residents in Spelthorne by strengthening local democracy and improving
partnership working within the borough of Spelthorne.
The Joint Committee will carry out Surrey County Council functions previously performed
by the Local Committee (Spelthorne) (which ceased to exist on 01/06/2016) plus some
additional County Council functions, and functions delegated to it by Spelthorne Borough
Council. There is also a range of advisory functions relating to both Councils. These
functions are set out within Section 2 of this document.
By working together, the Joint Committee will provide the opportunity to identify local
solutions and seek to jointly deliver local government service improvements for the
residents, businesses and visitors to Spelthorne. Both councils will be proactive in
bringing issues to the Joint Committee and seeking to deliver local priorities together.
Meetings of the Spelthorne Joint Committee are held in public, and local people are able to
participate during parts of the meeting as set out in Section 3 of this document.
This Constitution document includes the standing orders that will apply to the Joint
Committee. These need also to be read in the light of the individual Constitutions of each
of the two Councils which will continue to apply as appropriate to decisions delegated by
each relevant authority.
Whilst the Joint Committee will be responsible for making decisions relating to the
delegated functions as set out below, the day-to-day operational arrangements relating to
any particular function will continue to be managed by the local authority having
responsibility for that function.

May 2022 version

Page 138

Section 2 – Functions and Funding
The scope and overall purpose of the Spelthorne Joint Committee is as set out in Section
1. The general remit of the Joint Committee is set out below and the more specific
delegated functions are outlined in later sections.

(A)

General Remit

The general remit of the Spelthorne Joint Committee is:1.

To identify and agree opportunities for the closer alignment of County and Borough
services in Spelthorne.

2.

To make decisions on local services and budgets delegated to it by either Surrey
County Council or Spelthorne Borough Council.

3.

To make comments on policy, strategy, services, priority community work, or other
matters specifically referred to it by the County Council or the Borough Council.

4.

To provide political oversight of key County and Borough partnership initiatives and
strategies.

5.

To seek solutions to local concerns relating to Council services under the remit of
the Joint Committee.

6.

To identify and set local priorities through an annual priority setting meeting.

7.

To build community leadership and local engagement, and encourage local
community resilience plans.

8.

To ensure that local authority services within Spelthorne Borough are carried out in
accordance with both Surrey County Council’s and Spelthorne Borough Council’s
core values, policies, strategies and within approved budgets.

May 2022 version

Page 139

(B)

Delegated Powers

The services identified below are delegated by Surrey County Council or Spelthorne
Borough Council as indicated, for decision making or consideration by the Spelthorne Joint
Committee, in accordance with the relevant legislation.
In discharging the delegated powers, the Spelthorne Joint Committee must have due
regard at all times to the approved policies, budgets and financial regulations of the
Council delegating the functions, and act in accordance with Standing Orders at Section 3
of this Constitution.
Set out below is a list of the functions that are currently delegated to the Spelthorne Joint
Committee. Additional functions and matters for determination may be delegated to the
Committee in the future by Surrey County Council (SCC) or Spelthorne Borough Council
(SBC), which will form part of this Constitution. The Community Partnership and
Committee Officer will maintain a record of all additional delegated functions and will
ensure that any such additions are reported to the Joint Committee at the next meeting
after the delegation takes place.
Executive/Council (as applicable) Functions (delegated by Surrey County Council and
Spelthorne Borough Council)
The Joint Committee will be responsible for the following decisions on local services and
budgets:
In relation to the Borough of Spelthorne the Joint Committee will take decisions delegated
to it by the SCC Leader and/or Cabinet and/or the SBC Council on the following local
services and budgets, to be taken in accordance with the financial framework and policies
of the respective Councils within a framework of agreed performance and resources:
(i)

Changes which amount to more than 15% in the hours of opening for local
libraries (whether managed directly by Surrey County Council or under a
community partnership agreement.) (SCC)

(ii)

Community safety funding
(SCC/SBC).

that is delegated to the Joint Committee

(iii) Decisions in relation to highways and infrastructure:
a.

The allocation of the Surrey County Council highway capital
budget and highway revenue budget which are devolved to the
Joint Committee for minor highway improvements and highway
maintenance within the Committee’s area including the scope to
use a proportion of either budget to facilitate local highways
initiatives (SCC).

b.

To allocate funds to review on-street parking management,
including local parking charges where appropriate and to approve
the statutory advertisement of Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs)
relating to on-street parking controls (SCC).

c.

To agree local speed limits on County Council roads within its
area, and to approve the statutory advertisement of speed limit

May 2022 version

Page 140

orders, taking into account the advice of the Surrey Police Road
Safety and Traffic Management Team and with regard to the
County Council Speed Limit Policy (SCC).
d.

To approve the statutory advertisement of all legal orders or
appropriate notifications relating to highway schemes within the
delegated powers of the Joint Committee (SCC).

e.

Where, under delegated powers, the Parking Strategy and
Implementation Team Manager or Highways Area Team Manager
has chosen to refer the decision on whether a TRO should be
made to the Joint Committee, the Committee will make that
decision (SCC).

f.

To consider applications for stopping up a highway under section
116 of the Highways Act 1980 when, following the consent of SBC
and any relevant Parish Council, unresolved objections have been
received during the period of statutory public advertisement, and
to decide whether the application should proceed to the
Magistrates’ Court

(iv) Determine priorities and agree how Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
receipts will be expended (SBC).
(v)

In relation to services for young people, with the aim of achieving an integrated
approach from Surrey County Council and Spelthorne Borough Council
(SCC/SBC):
a)

To agree joint priorities for commissioning by the County Council and
the Borough Council in Spelthorne for provision of preventative work
with young people who are at risk of becoming not in education, training
or employment (NEET).

b)

To apportion delegated funding for young people, specifically the
distribution between Local Prevention and Individual Prevention
categories of funding, in accordance with the allocated budget and any
youth grants as allocated by the Borough Council.

c)

Approve the awards for the provision of Local Prevention services for
Spelthorne Borough in accordance with the allocated budget and to
qualified providers. This power to be exercised by the County Council
Portfolio Holder in the event that the Joint Committee is unable to award
grant(s) (due to the presence of conflicts of interest which result in the
body being inquorate).

d)

To approve youth task group advice on the allocation of Community
Youth Work and Surrey Outdoor Learning & Development (S.O.L.D)
Local Offer resources to meet local priorities for young people in the
local area.

(vi) Decisions on any funding when a budget is allocated to the Joint Committee by
either of the Councils (SCC/SBC).

May 2022 version

Page 141

Non-Executive Functions (delegated by Surrey County Council)
The Joint Committee will deal with all those non-executive functions relating to public
rights of way set out in the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England)
Regulations 2000, as amended, except for those separately referred to in the County
Council’s Scheme of Delegation (or within the terms of reference of other Committees).
Delegated Functions (delegated by Spelthorne Borough Council)
(i)

Oversee and determine priorities for the Borough based community strategy and
related plans within Spelthorne.

In addition, the Joint Committee will deal with those relevant non-executive functions,
relating to joint working that may be delegated to it by the Borough Council from time to
time.
Service Monitoring and Community Leadership- advisory functions
The Joint Committee may:
(i)

In relation to the exercise of County Council Executive functions relating to
members’ allocations, receive a report on all projects approved under the delegated
authority of the Community Partnership Manager or Team Leader. (SCC)

(ii)

In relation to Community Highway Enhancement allocations, receive a report
on all projects approved by Individual Members of the County Council under
delegated authority, or by the Area Team Manager where Members have
requested that their allocations be combined to be spent in one or more
divisions. (SCC)

(iii)

Determine priorities for collaborative work undertaken within the committee’s area
by the Councils and other partners (SCC/SBC)

(iv)

To champion the better use of public sector assets in the Borough to promote the
One Public estate approach amongst Surrey County Council, Spelthorne Borough
Council and other public sector partners (SCC/SBC)

(v)

Monitor formal decisions taken by officers under delegated powers and provide
feedback to improve service standards. (SCC/SBC)

(vi)

Engage in issues of concern to local people and seek to influence the respective
Councils in the light of local needs. (SCC/SBC)

(vii)

Monitor the quality of services provided locally, and recommend action as
appropriate. (SCC/SBC)

(viii)

To oversee and agree joint priorities to inform the improvement of educational
attainment in Spelthorne with the aim of working closely between Surrey County
Council, Spelthorne Borough Council and Spelthorne Schools Federation
(SCC/SBC)

May 2022 version

Page 142

(ix)

Oversee and influence priorities for the Family Support Programme in Spelthorne
(noting the shared nature of this service with other boroughs) and monitor its
performance. (SCC/SBC)

(x)

To oversee and agree joint priorities to inform commissioning and delivery of
Independent Living, Older People’s Services and Day Centres in Spelthorne, with
the aim of achieving an integrated approach from Surrey Council and Spelthorne
Borough Council (SCC/SBC)

(xi)

Be informed in relation to the prioritisation of proposed and planned
infrastructure schemes or developer funded highway improvements within
Spelthorne. (SCC)

(xii)

Be informed of and receive appropriate reports on highway initiatives and/or
improvements either wholly or partly in Spelthorne. (SCC)

(xiii)

Oversee local initiatives agreed and funded by the Joint Committee. (SCC/SBC)

(xiv)

Oversee off-street parking provision and enforcement in its area including budget
monitoring subject to any particular terms of reference, agreed by the committee
(SCC/SBC)

(xv)

Oversee and monitor the impact of the Local Prevention Commissions and the
Community Youth Work Service in accordance with prevention priorities for young
people not in education, employment or training (NEET) in the local area.

(xvi)

To receive reports from and provide political oversight and advice to the Spelthorne
Safer Stronger Community Partnership on the Community Safety functions of the
Borough. (SCC/SBC)

(xvii) To receive reports from and provide political oversight and advice to the Spelthorne
Together Health and Wellbeing Group within the framework of Surrey’s Joint Health
and Wellbeing Strategy. (SCC/SBC)
(xviii) Be consulted on any issues referred to it by either Council and produce responses
as appropriate. (SCC/SBC)
(Note: A joint committee may not make any decision which will have an adverse
effect on a part of the county for which it does not have functions).

(C)

Funding

(i)

With regards to budget setting and planning, the County Council and Spelthorne
Borough Council will agree each year the amount of funding available to the Joint
Committee to carry out its delegated decisions. All funds will be held and
administered by the originating authorities and spent in accordance with their
respective financial regulations and policies.

(ii)

Provision of venue:
The meeting’s venue and associated costs will normally be provided by Spelthorne
Borough Council, unless alternative arrangements are agreed by Surrey County
Council.

(iii)

Committee management:
Committee management and associated costs for the Joint Committee will be
provided by Surrey County Council.

May 2022 version

Page 143

(iv)

Any members’ costs and expenses resulting from the Joint Committee (including
those in relation to Chairman and Vice Chairman roles) will be funded and
administered by their respective authorities.

(D) Withdrawal from the Joint Committee
At any time either Council may give 6 months' notice in writing to the other Council of its
intention to withdraw from the Joint Committee. Once the Joint Committee ceases to exist
the functions delegated to it would each revert back to the relevant delegating authority.

May 2022 version

Page 144

Section 3 - Standing Orders
1. MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS AT MEETINGS
1.1. Membership of the Spelthorne Joint Committee shall be all county councillors with
electoral divisions in Spelthorne, one Surrey County Council Cabinet Member (who
may also be a county councillor with an electoral division in Spelthorne), and an
equivalent number of borough councillors who should be politically proportionate to
the Borough Council. If there is no Surrey County Council Cabinet Member with an
electoral division in Spelthorne for the Leader of the County Council to appoint a
specific Cabinet member to the Spelthorne Joint Committee at the Council AGM. No
substitutes will be permitted for the members on the Joint Committee. Members will
be appointed to the committee at the first business meeting of the respective Council,
at the start of each municipal year. All borough and county councillors on the Joint
Committee will have equal voting rights on all issues being considered.
1.2. A person shall cease to be a member if he/she ceases to be a member of the County
Council, a member representing an electoral division in Spelthorne or the relevant
Cabinet Member, or in the case of a member of the Borough Council, ceases to be a
member of that Council, or resigns from the Spelthorne Joint Committee.
1.3. Surrey County Council or Spelthorne Borough Council may, through their respective
Councils, co-opt representatives from the voluntary sector, public authorities or
businesses in Spelthorne onto the Joint Committee. These representatives will be
able to take part in discussions on agenda items, but will not be able to vote on any
item for decision.
1.4. The Leader of either Surrey County Council or Spelthorne Borough Council, or
appropriate Surrey County Council Cabinet Member or Spelthorne Borough Council
Chair for a Committee whose remit includes a matter on the agenda of the Joint
Committee meeting may attend the meeting of the committee and, with the
Chairman’s consent, speak on the matter or provide written representation.
2. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN

2.1. From 2021/22 Municipal year, the offices of Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall
alternate between the two Councils every year, with the Borough Council providing
the Chairman in Municipal Year 2021/22. If the appointed Chairman is representing
Surrey County Council, the Vice-Chairman must be a Spelthorne Borough Council
representative and vice-versa.

2.2. From 2021 the Surrey County Council appointment will be made by the Council
Leader and the Spelthorne Borough Council appointment will be made by the Council
from amongst those members appointed to the Spelthorne Joint Committee.

2.3. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall, unless he or she resigns the office or
ceases to be a member of the Spelthorne Joint Committee, continue in office until a
May 2022 version

Page 145

successor is appointed. If a Chairman or Vice-Chairman does not complete a full
term of office, a further member from the same Council shall be appointed in
accordance with the relevant authority’s usual procedures for the remainder of that
term.
2.4. In the absence of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman at a meeting, the members of
the Committee shall elect a chairman for that meeting.
3. MANAGEMENT OF THE COMMITTEE
3.1. The County Council’s Community Partnerships and Engagement Team shall act as
the Committee Manager for the Spelthorne Joint Committee and shall be responsible
for preparing and circulating agendas for meetings, advising on constitutional matters
and for producing the decisions and minutes.
4. FORMAL MEETINGS
4.1. There shall be between 4 and 8 formal meetings of the Spelthorne Joint Committee
each year as determined by the Chairman and Vice-Chairman and as set out in the
calendar of meetings published on the council’s website.
4.2. The Chairman or in his/her absence the Vice-Chairman, may call a special meeting
of the Spelthorne Joint Committee to consider a matter that falls within its remit but
cannot await the next scheduled meeting, provided at least five clear working days
notice in writing is given to the Committee Manager.
4.3. Formal meetings of the Joint Committee and its sub-committees shall be held in
public except when exempt or confidential information is being considered and the
press and public can be excluded in accordance with the Local Government Act
1972.
4.4. Meetings of any working groups or task groups established by the Joint Committee
shall, unless otherwise agreed, be held in private.
5. DELEGATED POWERS
5.1. The delegated powers mean those powers to be discharged by the Spelthorne Joint
Committee as set out in Section 2(B) of this Terms of Reference.
5.2. The Spelthorne Joint Committee shall discharge the delegated powers, within the
budgetary and policy framework set by Surrey County Council in the case of county
functions or by Spelthorne Borough Council in the case of borough functions.
5.3. When discharging the delegated powers the Spelthorne Joint Committee shall take
decisions only after taking into account advice given in writing or orally from relevant
Officers of Surrey County Council or of Spelthorne Borough Council as appropriate,
including legal, financial and policy advice.

May 2022 version

Page 146

5.4. If the Joint Committee is to make a Key Executive decision delegated to it by Surrey
County Council or a Key Decision delegated by Spelthorne Borough Council, then
the Joint Committee must follow the constitution of the authority delegating the
decision, including publishing it in the monthly forward plan of that authority.
6. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
6.1. In relation to a function delegated by Surrey County Council, executive decisions
made by the Spelthorne Joint Committee are subject to scrutiny by Surrey County
Council’s relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee including an Overview and
Scrutiny Committee’s right under the Local Government Act 2000 to request that an
Executive Decision made but not implemented be reconsidered by the decision-taker
(often referred to as ‘call-in’).
6.2. In relation to a function delegated by Spelthorne Borough Council, decisions made by
the Spelthorne Joint Committee are subject to that Council’s Reservation Scheme
(also referred to as ‘call-in’).

6.3. The processes and procedures for the exercise by the relevant Committee of their
‘call-in’ function shall be in accordance with the Constitutions of Surrey County
Council or Spelthorne Borough Council depending on which authority delegated the
decision in question.
6.4. Referral of Joint Committee Executive decisions by Surrey County Council Cabinet.
6.4.1.
The SCC Cabinet or SBC Corporate Policy and Resources Committee
may require referral, for review and final determination, any executive (in the
case of Surrey County Council) or any (in the case of Spelthorne Borough
Council) decision taken by the Joint Committee which has significant policy or
budgetary implications or is outside of the authority delegated to the Joint
Committee, subject to notice of requirement for referral being given within 5
working days of publication of the decision.
6.4.2.
Notice of referral may be given by the Leader or Deputy Leader of the
relevant authority, or any three or more members of the SCC Cabinet /SBC
Corporate Policy and Resources Committee as appropriate.
6.4.3.
All members of the Joint Committee will be notified that an executive
decision taken by the Committee has been required for referral by the
relevant authority.
6.4.4.
The decision will be considered by the SCC Cabinet /SBC Corporate
Policy and Resources Committee at its next appropriate meeting in
discussion with the Joint Committee Chairman and Vice-Chairman and no
action will be taken to implement it in the meantime.
6.4.5.
The Joint Committee Chairman or Vice-Chairman may attend the
SCC Cabinet /SBC Corporate Policy and Resources Committee meeting, as
appropriate, for the consideration of the matter and speak on the item.

May 2022 version

Page 147

6.4.6.
The SCC Cabinet /SBC Corporate Policy and Resources Committee /
may accept, reject or amend the decision taken by the Joint Committee. A
report on the decision taken by the relevant authority will be made to the next
appropriate meeting of the Joint Committee, and to all the Members of either
Surrey or Spelthorne Council, as appropriate, for information.
The following general provisions apply to the consideration of all matters within
Spelthorne Joint Committee’s remit.
7. NOTICE OF MEETING
7.1. The date, time and place of the fixed meetings of the Spelthorne Joint Committee will
be accessed through both the Surrey County Council and Spelthorne Borough
Council websites. The notice, agenda, reports and other documents prepared for the
Spelthorne Joint Committee will be posted on the Surrey County Council website
(with links from the Spelthorne Borough Council website) and sent to Members of the
Committee not less than five clear working days before the date of the meeting.
7.2. Only the business on the agenda will be discussed at a meeting of the Spelthorne
Joint Committee except for urgent matters raised in accordance with the provisions in
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.
8. EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS
8.1. An extraordinary meeting of the Spelthorne Joint Committee will be convened to
consider specific matters within its terms of reference at the discretion of the
Chairman, or the Vice-Chairman in his/her absence. At least five clear working days’
notice of an extraordinary meeting must be given.
9. AGENDAS
9.1. Spelthorne Joint Committee will comply with the Access to Information rules in Part
VA of the Local Government Act 1972.
9.2. Agendas for meetings of the Spelthorne Joint Committee shall be dispatched by the
Committee Manager five clear working days in advance of a meeting, and copies will
be made available for public inspection at the designated County and Borough
Council offices, libraries and via the County Council and Spelthorne Borough Council
websites.
9.3. Members of the Spelthorne Joint Committee may suggest items for inclusion in the
agenda within its remit. These will be added to the forward programme in
consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Spelthorne Joint
Committee.
10. DECISIONS AND MINUTES
10.1. The decisions from the meeting shall be published on the County Council’s website,
with links from the Spelthorne Borough website, within three clear working days of
the Committee.

May 2022 version

Page 148

10.2. The minutes of a meeting shall be published on the County Council’s website, with
relevant links, as soon as is reasonably practicable.
10.3. At the meeting, the Chairman will move the formal motion “That the minutes of the
last meeting be confirmed and signed by the chairman” and there may only be
discussion if there is disagreement about their accuracy which will be resolved by a
vote in the normal way.
10.4. Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing the
minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of schedule 12 to the Local
Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then the next following meeting
(being a meeting called otherwise than under that paragraph) will be treated as a
suitable meeting for the purposes of signing of minutes.
11. CONFIDENTIALITY OF PAPERS
11.1. All Members must respect the confidentiality of any papers made available to them
for the purpose of meetings of the Spelthorne Joint Committee or otherwise for so
long as those papers remain confidential.
Failure to observe
11.2. Any or all of the rights conferred on a Member of one of the councils under its
Constitution may be withdrawn by that Council if it is satisfied that he/she has not
observed the requirements of Standing Order 11.1 in relation to any of its papers.
12. QUORUM
12.1. The Chairman will adjourn the meeting if there is not a quorum present.
12.2. The quorum will be one quarter of the total number of voting members of the
Committee. A quorum may not be fewer than three voting members.
13. MEMBER QUESTIONS TO THE SPELTHORNE JOINT COMMITTEE
13.1. Any Member of either Council may, with the Chairman’s consent, ask one or more
questions on matters within the terms of reference of the committee.
13.2. Notice of questions must be given in writing to the Community Partnerships Team
by 12 noon four working days before the meeting. If the day in question is a Bank
Holiday then notice of questions should be received by 12 noon on the previous
working day.
13.3. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is
urgent.
13.4. Where a Member has given notice of a question and is absent from the meeting
another Member may ask it on his/her behalf.

May 2022 version

Page 149

13.5. Every question will be put and answered.
13.6. Copies of all questions will be circulated to Members before the start of the meeting.
13.7. Questions may be answered orally or in writing.
13.8. If the Chairman is unable to answer any question at the meeting he/she may send a
written answer to the Member asking the question.
13.9. At the discretion of the Chairman, a Member who has given notice of a question
may ask one supplementary question relevant to the subject of the original.
13.10.
A record of all questions and answers will be included in the minutes of the
meeting.
14. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN SPELTHORNE JOINT COMMITTEE
14.1. PETITIONS
14.1.1.
Any member of the public who lives, works or studies in the
Spelthorne Borough area may present a petition, containing 30 or more
signatures or at the Chairman’s discretion, relating to a matter within the terms
of reference of the Committee. The presentation of a petition on the following
business will not be allowed:
14.1.1.1. matters which are “confidential” or “exempt” under Part VA of the
Local Government Act 1972;
14.1.1.2. planning applications; and
14.1.1.3. matters in relation to a public rights of way under consideration by the
Joint Committee.
14.1.2.
A spokesperson for the petitioners may address the committee on the
petition for up to 3 minutes or longer if agreed by the Chairman. Discussion
on a petition at the meeting is at the Chairman’s discretion. The petition may
be referred to the next appropriate meeting of the committee or to the SCC
Cabinet, Cabinet Member, SBC Cabinet or relevant committee of either SCC
or SBC at the discretion of the Chairman.
14.1.3.
Notice must be given in writing to the Community Partnerships Team
at least 14 days before the meeting. Alternatively, the petition can be
submitted on-line through Surrey County Council’s or Spelthorne Borough
Council’s e-petitions website as long as the minimum number of signatures
has been reached 14 days before the meeting.
14.1.4.
No more than three petitions may be presented at any one meeting of
the committee unless agreed otherwise by the Chairman.
14.1.5.
The Community Partnerships Team may amalgamate within the first
received petition other petitions of like effect on the same subject.
May 2022 version

Page 150

14.1.6.
The presentation of a petition on the same or similar topic as one
presented in the last six months may only be permitted at the Chairman’s
discretion.
14.2. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS
14.2.1.
At the start of any ordinary meeting of the Committee, any member of
the public who lives, works or studies in the Spelthorne borough area may
ask one question or make a statement relating to a matter within the
Committee’s terms of reference. The Chairman may alternatively permit the
question to be asked or the statement to be made at the start of an item on
the agenda if it relates to that item.
14.2.2.
Questions or statements will not be allowed on matters which are
“confidential” or “exempt” under the Local Government Access to Information
Act 1985 or on planning applications or on rights of way matters under
consideration.
14.2.3.
Notice of questions or statements must be given in writing or by e-mail
to the Community Partnerships Team with details of the question or
statement, by 12 noon four working days before the meeting. If the day in
question is a Bank Holiday then notice of questions should be received by 12
noon on the previous working day.
14.2.4.
The Community Partnerships Team may, having consulted a
questioner, reword any question or statement received to bring it into proper
form and to secure reasonable brevity. Copies will be tabled and made
available in the meeting room for members of the Joint Committee and any
member of the public in attendance.
14.2.5.
Questions and statements will be taken in the order in which they are
received by the Community Partnerships Team. The provision of answers to
questions being asked, any response to statements, and any discussion of
the question or statement will be at the discretion of the Chairman.
14.2.6.
following any initial reply to a question, one or more supplementary
question/s in relation to the response provided may be asked by the
questioner at the discretion of the Chairman. The provision of answers to
supplementary questions being asked and any discussion of these questions
will be at the discretion of the Chairman.
14.2.7.
The total number of questions which may be asked or statements
made at any one meeting will be at the discretion of the Chairman. The
Chairman may decide that questions or statements can be held over to the
following meeting, or dealt with in writing and may disallow questions or
statements which are repetitious.
14.2.8.
When dealing with any item in which public participation has occurred,
the Chairman shall clarify the point at which such public participation has

May 2022 version

Page 151

concluded and the Committee’s formal discussion and decision making of the
item is taking place.
14.3. PUBLIC SPEAKING IN RELATION TO RIGHTS OF WAY
Rights of Way application decisions are quasi-judicial decisions. They are
therefore subject to specific rules. The reason for the rules about public
speaking reflect the right of all individuals to a fair hearing.
14.3.1.
Members of the public and their representatives may address the
Spelthorne Joint Committee on any applications relating to public Rights of
Way being considered by the committee.
14.3.2.
Speakers must first register their wish to speak by telephone or in
writing to the Community Partnerships Team by 12 noon one working day
before a meeting stating on which item(s) they wish to speak.
14.3.3.
Only those people who have previously made written representations
in response to a Rights of Way application will be entitled to speak.
14.3.4.
Speakers must declare any financial or personal interest they may
have in the application.
14.3.5.
Registration of speakers will be on a first come first served basis and
speakers will be taken in the order in which they are registered, with the first
five registered being entitled to speak. Where more than one person has
registered an interest to speak, the subsequent speakers will be entitled to
speak first if the first named speaker is not in attendance five minutes before
the start of the meeting. Representations can be combined if necessary. A
reserve list will also be maintained if necessary.
14.3.6.
The time allowed for public speaking will be limited to 15 minutes for
objectors and 15 minutes for supporters per item, and to 3 minutes per
speaker.
14.3.7.
Only if a member of the public or their representative speaks objecting
will the applicant/agent be allowed to speak and then only to respond to the
points raised by the objectors, and will be limited to 3 minutes for each
objector who has spoken.
14.3.8.
No additional information may be circulated by speakers at the
meeting and they will have no right to speak or question Members or officers
once they have made their submission.
14.3.9.
Speeches will precede the Committee’s formal discussion on each
application requiring the committee’s attention.
14.3.10.
The right to speak will only be exercised at the first meeting at which
the application is considered and will not normally be the subject of further
presentations at any subsequent meeting unless significant changes have
taken place after a deferral by the Committee.
May 2022 version

Page 152

15. RIGHT TO SPEAK AT COMMITTEE
15.1. A Member may only speak once on a motion and amendment except:
15.1.1.
the mover may reply to the debate but, in doing so, may only answer
statements and arguments made in the course of the debate. He/she may
not introduce any new matter;
15.1.2.
the mover of a motion may speak during the debate on any
amendment to the motion;
15.1.3.
a Member who has already spoken may speak on a point of order or
may, at the Chairman’s discretion, explain any statement made by him/her
which he/she believes has been misunderstood;
15.1.4.
the Chairman may speak before the mover of the motion or
amendment replies to the debate.
15.1.5.
A Member seconding any motion or amendment will be deemed to
have spoken on it unless he/she speaks immediately and reserves his/her
right to speak later.
16.

RELEVANCE

16.1. Every Member who speaks must direct his/her speech strictly to the motion or
matter under discussion, or to a motion or amendment which he/she moves, or to a
point of order.
17. POINTS OF ORDER
17.1. Any Member wishing to raise a point of order must say at the outset the Standing
Order or rule of debate which he/she believes has been infringed. Every point of
order will be decided immediately by the Chairman whose decision will be final.
18.

LENGTH OF SPEECHES

18.1. Except with the consent of the Chairman, the following time limits will apply to
speeches:
(a)
The mover of a motion or an amendment.
(5 minutes)
(A Member may not speak for more than five minutes unless he/she has a seconder).

(b) The mover of a motion either speaking to an amendment or replying to the debate.
(3 minutes)
(c) The mover of an amendment replying to the debate on the amendment.
(3 minutes)

May 2022 version

Page 153

(d) The seconder of a motion or an amendment.
(3 minutes)
(e) A Member speaking on a report or in a debate.
(3 minutes)
19.

AFTER REPLY DEBATE IS CLOSED

19.1. After the reply is made, the motion or amendment under discussion will be put from
the Chair.
20.

PROCEDURE FOR MOTIONS AND AMENDMENTS

20.1. Every motion or amendment must be moved and seconded and, if the Chairman
requires, must be submitted in writing to the Community Partnerships Team and read
aloud before it is put to the meeting.
20.2. A Member may not move or second more than one amendment on any motion.
20.3. Once moved and seconded, a motion or amendment may not be withdrawn without
the consent of the Committee.
20.4. With the consent of the Committee a Member may:
20.4.1.1.

alter a motion of which he/she has given notice; or

20.4.2.

with the consent of his/her seconder, alter a motion which he/she has
moved.

(In either case, the alteration must be one which could be made as an amendment under
the following Standing Order).
21.

AMENDMENTS

21.1. Every amendment must be relevant to the motion under discussion and will either:
21.1.1.

move the reference back

21.1.2.

leave out words

21.1.3.

add words, or

21.1.4.

leave out words and add others.

21.2. An amendment which forms the negative of the motion will not be allowed.
21.3. Whenever an amendment has been moved and seconded, no subsequent
amendment may be moved until the first has been dealt with, unless the Chairman
decides otherwise.
21.4. If an amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved on the motion.
May 2022 version

Page 154

21.5. If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended will become the substantive
motion on which further amendments may be moved.
22.

PROCEDURAL MOTION
“That the question be now put”

22.1. Any Member may, at the close of the speech of another Member, move “That the
question be now put”.
22.2. If he/she considers that there has been adequate debate, the Chairman may put the
motion “That the question be now put” without debate. If the motion is carri ed:
(a) the Chairman may speak to the motion or amendment under debate, if he/she has
not already spoken; and
(b) the mover of the motion or amendment may reply.
22.3. The motion or amendment will then be put.
23.

INTERRUPTIONS AND DISORDERLY CONDUCT

23.1. If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at a meeting the Chairman may
ask him/her not to interrupt.
23.2. If the interruption continues the Chairman may order his/her removal from the room.
23.3. If there is general disturbance in all or part of the public gallery the Chairman may
order that part to be cleared.
23.4. If a Member behaves in a disorderly or disruptive manner, any Member may move,
with the consent of the Chairman, “That the named Member be not further heard”. If
this motion is seconded it will be put to the vote and determined without discussion.
23.5. If the motion is carried and the misconduct continues the Chairman may adjourn or
suspend the sitting of the Committee for as long as he/she considers appropriate.
24.

VOTING

24.1. Voting will be by show of hands unless a Member demands a recorded vote.
Where a recorded vote is called, the names of those voting for or against the motion
or amendment will be recorded and entered in the minutes.
24.2. Where a demand for a recorded vote is not supported, any Member may require
his/her vote for or against the motion to be recorded in the minutes.
24.3. On a formal motion put from the Chairman (e.g. “That the report be received”), the
question may be decided by the voice of the Members, unless any Member demands
a show of hands.

May 2022 version

Page 155

24.4. If immediately after a vote is taken any Member so requires, the way in which
he/she voted (or abstained) will be recorded in the minutes of that meeting.
24.5. The person presiding at the meeting, having already voted, may in the event of a tie
exercise a second or casting vote.
25. MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT
25.1. Members are bound by the Code of Conduct of the authority which appointed them
to the Spelthorne Joint Committee and should particularly observe the provisions of
their respective Codes concerning the declaration of interests when attending
meetings of the Spelthorne Joint Committee.
26. INTERESTS OF MEMBERS
26.1. At any meeting where a Member becomes aware that a matter under consideration
relates to:
26.1.1.
one of their interests that they must disclose in accordance with their
respective Council’s Codes not already entered on the relevant Council’s
register and/or
26.1.2.
the donor of any gift and/or hospitality they have accepted and not yet
entered on the relevant Council’s register.
26.1.3.
The Member must disclose the interest to the meeting and, within 28
days, notify this to either the County Council’s Monitoring Officer in the case
of County Councillors or the Borough Council’s Monitoring Officer in the case
of Borough Councillors for inclusion in the register
27. PARTICIPATION IN RELATION TO DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS
27.1. A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter must:
27.1.1.

not participate in any discussion or vote relating to the matter;

27.1.2.
withdraw from the room or chamber when it becomes apparent that
the matter is being considered at that meeting;
27.1.3.

not exercise functions in relation to that matter; and

27.1.4.
not take any steps in relation to the matter (except for the purposes of
enabling the matter to be dealt with otherwise than by them) unless he/she
has obtained a dispensation from the County Council’s Audit and Governance
Committee for County Councillors or the Borough Council’s Members’ Code
of Conduct Committee.
28. ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS
28.1. Members will sign a register of attendance.

May 2022 version

Page 156

29. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
29.1.
The Spelthorne Joint Committee may, by resolution, exclude the press and
public from a meeting during an item of business wherever it is likely, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if
members of the public were present during that item there would be disclosure of
Exempt or Confidential information as defined by the Local Government Act 1972
and the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to
Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
30. SUB-COMMITTEES AND TASK GROUPS
30.1. The Spelthorne Joint Committee may appoint:
30.1.1.
Sub-Committees with power to act to discharge any of its functions as
agreed by the Joint Committee.
30.1.2.
Task Groups which cannot make decisions but may consider specific
matters and report back to a future meeting of the Spelthorne Joint
Committee.
31. CONDUCT AT MEETINGS
31.1.
The conduct of meetings and the interpretation of these Standing Orders are
at all times a matter for the Chairman of the meeting whose ruling is final.

May 2022 version

Page 157

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 6
Woking Joint Committee
Constitution

Page No.
1
Section 1

Context and Purpose

Section 2

Functions and Funding

Section 3

(A)

General Remit

2

(B)

Delegated Powers

3

(C)

Funding

6

(D)

Withdrawal from the Joint Committee

7

Standing Orders

8

May 2022

Page 159

Section 1 – Context and Purpose
Woking Joint Committee is a Joint Committee of Surrey County Council and Woking Borough
Council and is set up under the provisions of Section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972.
The Joint Committee aims to improve outcomes and value for money for residents in Woking
by strengthening local democracy and improving partnership working within the borough of
Woking.
The Joint Committee will carry out Surrey County Council functions previously performed by
the Local Committee (Woking) (which ceased to exist on 01/06/2014) plus some additional
County Council functions, and functions delegated to it by Woking Borough Council. These
functions are set out within Section 2 of this document.
By working together, the Joint Committee will provide the opportunity to identify local solutions
and seek to jointly deliver local government service improvements for the residents,
businesses and visitors to Woking. Both councils will be proactive in bringing issues to the
Joint Committee and seeking to deliver local priorities together.
Meetings of the Woking Joint Committee are held in public, and local people are able to
participate during parts of the meeting as set out in Section 3 of this document.
This Constitution includes the standing orders that will apply to the Joint Committee. These
need also to be read in the light of the individual Constitutions of each of the two Councils
which will continue to apply as appropriate to decisions delegated by each relevant authority.
Whilst the Joint Committee will be responsible for making decisions relating to the delegated
functions as set out below, the day-to-day operational arrangements relating to any particular
function will continue to be managed by the local authority having responsibility for that
function.

Page 160

Section 2 – Functions and Funding
The scope and overall purpose of the Woking Joint Committee is as set out in Section 1. The
general remit of the Joint Committee is set out below and the more specific delegated functions
are outlined in later sections.
(A)

General Remit

The general remit of the Woking Joint Committee is:1.

To make decisions on local services and budgets delegated to it by either Surrey
County Council or Woking Borough Council.

2.

To make comments on policy, strategy, services, priority community work, or other
matters specifically referred to it by the County Council or the Borough Council

3.

To provide political oversight of key County and Borough partnership initiatives and
strategies.

4.

To discuss opportunities for a closer alignment of County and Borough services in
Woking.

5.

To seek solutions to local concerns relating to Council services under the remit of the
Joint Committee.

6.

To identify and set local priorities through an annual priority setting meeting.

7.

To build community leadership and local engagement, and encourage local community
resilience plans.

8.

To ensure that local authority services within Woking borough are carried out in
accordance with both Surrey County Council’s and Woking Borough Council’s core
values, policies, strategies and within approved budgets.

Page 161

(B)

Delegated Powers

The services identified below are delegated by Surrey County Council or Woking Borough
Council as indicated, for decision making or consideration by the Woking Joint Committee, in
accordance with the relevant legislation.
In discharging the delegated powers, the Woking Joint Committee must have due regard at
all times to the approved policies, budgets and financial regulations of the Council delegating
the functions, and act in accordance with Standing Orders at Section 3 of this Constitution.
Set out below is a list of the functions that are currently delegated to the Woking Joint
Committee. Additional functions and matters for determination may be delegated to the
Committee in the future by Surrey County Council or Woking Borough Council, which will form
part of this Constitution. The Community Partnership and Committee Officer will maintain a
record of all additional delegated functions and will ensure that any such additions are reported
to the Joint Committee at the next meeting after the delegation takes place.
Executive Functions (delegated by Surrey County Council and Woking Borough Council)
The Joint Committee will be responsible for the following decisions on local services
and budgets:
In relation to the Borough of Woking the Joint Committee will take decisions
delegated to it by the SCC Leader and/or Cabinet and/or the WBC Leader and/or
Executive on the following local services and budgets, to be taken in accordance
with the financial framework and policies of the respective Councils within a
framework of agreed performance and resources:
(i)

Changes which amount to more than 15% in the hours of opening for local
libraries (whether managed directly by Surrey County Council or under a
community partnership agreement.) (SCC)

(ii)

Community safety funding that is delegated to the Joint Committee. The Joint
Committee will act as the Community Safety Partnership (Note: Domestic
Homicide Reviews will be chaired by such person as the Chairman of the
Joint Committee shall nominate) (SCC/WBC).

(iii) Decisions in relation to highways and infrastructure:
a.
The allocation of the Surrey County Council highway capital
budget and highway revenue budget which are devolved to the
Joint Committee for minor highway improvements, and highway
maintenance, within the committee’s area including the scope to
use a proportion of either budget to facilitate local highways
initiatives (SCC).
b.
To allocate funds to review on-street parking management,
including local parking charges where appropriate and to approve
the statutory advertisement of Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs)
relating to on-street parking controls (SCC).
c.
To agree local speed limits on county council roads within their
area, and to approve the statutory advertisement of speed limit
orders, taking into account the advice of the Surrey Police Road
Safety and Traffic Management Team and with regard to the
County Council Speed Limit Policy (SCC).

Page 162

d.
e.

f.
g.

To approve the statutory advertisement of all legal orders or
appropriate notifications relating to highway schemes within the
delegated powers of the Joint Committee (SCC).
Where, under delegated powers, the Parking Strategy and
Implementation Team Manager or Area Team Manager has chosen
to refer the decision on whether a TRO should be made to the Joint
Committee, the committee will make that decision (SCC).
Oversee and determine priorities for the Woking Town Centre
Management Agreement (WBC).
To consider applications for stopping up a highway under section
116 of the Highways Act 1980 when, following consent of any
relevant borough/district/parish council, unresolved objections
have been received during the period of statutory public
advertisement, and to decide whether the application should
proceed to the Magistrates’ Court (SCC).

(iv)

Consider how Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) receipts will be
expended in Woking, taking into account the approved Infrastructure
Capacity Study and Delivery Plan (IDP) for Woking. (WBC)

(v)

In relation to services for young people, with the aim of achieving an
integrated approach from Surrey County Council and Woking Borough
Council (SCC/WBC):
a)
To agree joint priorities for commissioning by the County
Council and the Borough Council in Woking for provision of:
i) youth work and
ii) other preventative work with young people who are at risk of
becoming not in education, training or employment (NEET).
b)
To apportion delegated funding for young people, specifically
the distribution between Local Prevention and Individual Prevention
categories of funding, in accordance with the allocated budget and
small grants (youth) as allocated by the Borough Council.
c)
Approve the award of Local Prevention for the provision of local
prevention services for Woking Borough in accordance with the
allocated budget. This power to be exercised by the County Council
Portfolio Holder in the event that the Joint Committee is unable to award
funding agreement(s) (due to the presence of conflicts of interest which
result in the body being inquorate).
d) Approve the award of youth service related commission(s) as
delegated to the Joint Committee by Woking Borough Council.
e)
f)

Oversee and determine priorities for the Full Participation
Programme and make appropriate linkages into the work of
Services for Young People and Woking Borough Council
To approve Youth Task Group advice on the allocation of
Community Youth Work and SOLD Local Offer resources to
meet local priorities for young people in the local area.

Page 163

(vi)

Oversee and influence priorities for the Family Support Programme in
Woking and monitor its performance. (SCC/WBC)

(vii)

Determine priorities for collaborative work undertaken within the
committee’s area by the Councils and other partners. (SCC/WBC).

(viii)

Decisions on any funding when a budget is allocated to the Joint
Committee by either of the Councils (SCC/WBC).

Non-Executive Functions (delegated by Surrey County Council)
The Joint Committee will deal with all those non-executive functions relating to public
rights of way set out in the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England)
Regulations 2000, as amended, except for those separately referred to in the County
Council’s Scheme of Delegation (or within the terms of reference of other Committees).
Non-Executive Functions (delegated by Woking Borough Council)
(i)

Oversee and determine priorities for the Borough based community strategy
and related local plans within Woking.

(ii)

Oversee and determine priorities for the implementation of the Infrastructure
Capacity Study and Delivery Plan (IDP).

In addition, the Joint Committee will deal with those relevant non-executive functions,
relating to joint working that may be delegated to it by the Borough Council from time
to time.
Service Monitoring, Scrutiny & Issues of Local Concern- advisory functions
The Joint Committee may:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

In relation to the exercise of County Council Executive functions relating
to Members allocations, receive a report on all projects approved under
delegated authority of the Community Partnership Manager or Team
Leader. (SCC)
In relation to Community Highway Enhancement allocations,
receive a report on all projects approved by Individual Members of
the County Council under delegated authority, or by the Area Team
Manager where Members have requested that their allocations be
combined to be spent in one or more divisions. (SCC)
Monitor formal decisions taken by officers under delegated powers and
provide feedback to improve service standards. (SCC/WBC)
Engage in issues of concern to local people and seek to influence the
respective Councils in the light of local needs. (SCC/WBC)
Monitor the quality of services provided locally, and recommend action
as appropriate. (SCC)
Support Surrey Schools, strengthening links with Headteachers and
Governing Bodies to promote the outcomes of increased investment for
safer, better schools focussed on raising the standards of education for
all children.

Page 164

(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)

(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv)
(xv)

Be informed in relation to the prioritisation of proposed and planned
infrastructure schemes, or developer funded highway improvements
within Woking. (SCC)
Be informed of and receive appropriate reports on highway
initiatives and/or improvements either wholly or partly in Woking.
(SCC)
Oversee local initiatives agreed and funded by the Joint Committee.
(SCC/WBC)
Oversee on-street parking enforcement including financials in its
area subject to terms of reference, agreed by the committee, which
best suit its particular local circumstances. (SCC)
Oversee and scrutinise the impact of the Local Prevention, Community
Youth Work and SOLD Local Offer in accordance with prevention
priorities for young people in the local area. (SCC)
Be advised of the Joint Youth Estates Strategy for Woking Borough.
(SCC/WBC)
To provide political oversight and advice on the Community Safety
functions of the Borough. (SCC/WBC)
To act as the local Health and Wellbeing Board for Woking and oversee
and set priorities for general health and wellbeing matters within the
framework of Surrey’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. (SCC/WBC)
Be consulted on any issues referred to it by either Council and produce
responses as appropriate. (SCC/WBC)

(Note: A joint committee may not make any decision which will have an adverse effect
on a part of the county for which it does not have functions).
(C)

(D)

Funding
(i)

With regards to budget setting and planning, the County Council and Woking
Borough Council will agree each year the amount of funding available to the
Joint Committee to carry out its delegated decisions. All funds will be held and
administered by the originating authorities and spent in accordance with their
respective financial regulations and policies.

(ii)

Provision of venue:
The meeting’s venue and associated costs will normally be provided by Woking
Borough Council, unless alternative arrangements are agreed by Surrey
County Council.

(iii)

Committee management:
Committee management and associated costs (as set out in paragraph 3.1) for
the Joint Committee will be provided by Surrey County Council.

(iv)

Any resulting Joint Committee members’ costs and expenses will be funded
and administered by their respective authorities.

Withdrawal from the Joint Committee
At any time either Council may give 6 months' notice in writing to the other Council of
its intention to withdraw from the Joint Committee. Once the Joint Committee ceases
to exist the functions delegated to it would each revert back to the relevant delegating
authority.

Page 165

Section 3 - Standing Orders
1. MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS AT MEETINGS
1.1. Membership of the Woking Joint Committee shall be all county councillors with
electoral divisions in Woking, one Surrey County Council Cabinet Member (who may
also be a county councillor with an electoral division in Woking), and an equivalent
number of borough councillors who should be politically proportionate to the borough
council. At least one borough councillor shall be a member of that council’s Executive.
No substitutes will be permitted for the members on the Joint Committee. Members
will be appointed to the committee at the first business meeting of the respective
Council, at the start of each municipal year. All borough and county councillors on the
Joint Committee will have equal voting rights on all issues being considered.
1.2. A person shall cease to be a member if he/she ceases to be a member of the County
Council, a member representing an electoral division in Woking or the relevant
Cabinet Member, or in the case of a member of the Borough Council, ceases to be a
member of that Council, or the relevant Executive Member or resigns from the Woking
Joint Committee.
1.3. Surrey County Council or Woking Borough Council may, through their respective
Councils, co-opt representatives from the voluntary sector, public authorities or
businesses in Woking onto the Joint Committee. These representatives will be able
to take part in discussions on agenda items, but will not be able to vote on any item
for decision.
1.4. The Leader of either Surrey County Council or Woking Borough Council, or
appropriate Surrey County Council Cabinet Member or Woking Borough Council
Executive Member with portfolio responsibilities for a matter on the agenda of the joint
committee meeting may attend the meeting of the committee and, with the chairman’s
consent, speak on the matter or provide written representation.
2. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN
2.1. For the 2016/17 Municipal Year only, the Chairman (who will be a County Councillor)
and Vice-Chairman (who shall be a member of the Borough Council’s Executive)shall
be elected at the first business meeting of the County Council or the Borough Council
(as appropriate) of that municipal year.
2.2. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be elected at the first business meeting of the
Joint Committee in the 2017/18 Municipal Year for a period of two years and every
two years thereafter.
2.3. If the appointed Chairman is representing Surrey County Council, the Vice-Chairman
must be a Woking Borough Council representative and vice-versa.
2.4. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall, unless he or she resigns the office or ceases
to be a member of the Woking Joint Committee, continue in office until a successor is
appointed. If a Chairman or Vice-Chairman does not complete a two year term, an
alternative from the same Council shall be appointed for the remainder of that term.
2.5. In the absence of the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman at a meeting, the members of
the Committee shall elect a chairman for that meeting.

Page 166

3. MANAGEMENT OF THE COMMITTEE
3.1. The County Council’s Community Partnership’s Team shall act as the Committee
Manager for the Woking Joint Committee and shall be responsible for preparing and
circulating agendas for meetings, advising on constitutional matters and for producing
the decisions and minutes.
4. FORMAL MEETINGS
4.1. There shall be between 4 and 8 formal meetings of the Woking Joint Committee each
year as determined by the Chairman and Vice-Chairman and as set out in the
calendar of meetings published on the council’s website.
4.2. The Chairman or in his/her absence the Vice-Chairman, may call a special meeting
of the Woking Joint Committee to consider a matter that falls within its remit but cannot
await the next scheduled meeting, provided at least seven clear working days notice
in writing is given to the Committee Manager.
4.3. Formal meetings of the Joint Committee and its sub-committees shall be held in public
except when exempt or confidential information is being considered and the press and
public can be excluded in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.
4.4. Meetings of any working groups or task groups established by the Joint Committee
shall, unless otherwise agreed, be held in private.
5. DELEGATED POWERS
5.1. The delegated powers mean those powers to be discharged by the Woking Joint
Committee as set out in Section 2(B) of this Constitution.
5.2. The Woking Joint Committee shall discharge the delegated powers, within the
budgetary and policy framework set by Surrey County Council in the case of County
functions or by Woking Borough Council in the case of borough functions.
5.3. When discharging the delegated powers the Woking Joint Committee shall take
decisions only after taking into account advice given in writing or orally from relevant
Officers of Surrey County Council or of Woking Borough Council as appropriate,
including legal, financial and policy advice.
5.4. If the Joint Committee is to make a Key Executive decision delegated to it by either
Surrey County Council or Woking Borough Council, then the Joint Committee must
follow the constitution of the authority delegating the decision, including publishing it
in the monthly forward plan of that authority.
6. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
6.1. Executive decisions made by the Woking Joint Committee are subject to scrutiny by
Surrey County Council’s or Woking Borough Council’s relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (depending on which authority delegated the particular function), including
an Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s right under the Local Government Act 2000 to
request that an Executive Decision made but not implemented be reconsidered by the
decision-taker (often referred to as ‘call-in’).

Page 167

6.2. The processes and procedures for the exercise by the relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Committee of their ‘call-in’ function shall be in accordance with the
Constitutions of Surrey County Council or Woking Borough Council depending on
which authority delegated the executive decision in question.
6.3. Referral of Joint Committee Executive decisions by either Surrey County Council
Cabinet or Woking Borough Council Executive (dependant on who delegated the
function)
6.3.1. The SCC Cabinet/WBC Executive may require referral, for review and final
determination, any executive decision taken by the Joint Committee which has
significant policy or budgetary implications or is outside of the authority delegated
to the Joint Committee, subject to notice of requirement for referral being given
within 5 working days of publication of the decision.
6.3.2. Notice of referral may be given by the Leader or Deputy Leader of the relevant
authority, or any three or more members of the SCC Cabinet/WBC Executive as
appropriate.
6.3.3. All members of the Joint Committee will be notified that an executive decision
taken by the Committee has been required for referral by SCC Cabinet/WBC
Executive.
6.3.4. The decision will be considered by the SCC Cabinet/WBC Executive at its next
appropriate meeting in discussion with the Joint Committee Chairman and ViceChairman and no action will be taken to implement it in the meantime.
6.3.5. The Joint Committee Chairman or Vice-Chairman may attend the SCC
Cabinet/WBC Executive meeting, as appropriate, for the consideration of the
matter and speak on the item.
6.3.6. The SCC Cabinet/WBC Executive may accept, reject or amend the decision
taken by the Joint Committee. A report on the decision taken by the Cabinet/
Executive will be made to the next appropriate meeting of the Joint Committee,
and to all the Members of either Surrey or Woking Council, as appropriate, for
information.

Page 168

The following general provisions apply to the consideration of all matters within
Woking Joint Committee’s remit.
7. NOTICE OF MEETING
7.1. The date, time and place of the fixed meetings of the Woking Joint Committee will be
accessed through both the Surrey County Council and Woking Borough Council
websites. The notice, agenda, reports and other documents prepared for the Woking
Joint Committee will be posted on the Surrey County Council website (with links from
the Woking Borough Council website) and sent to Members of the Committee not less
than seven clear working days before the date of the meeting.
7.2. Only the business on the agenda will be discussed at a meeting of the Woking Joint
Committee except for urgent matters raised in accordance with the provisions in
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.
8. SPECIAL MEETINGS
8.1. A special meeting of the Woking Joint Committee will be convened to consider specific
matters within its terms of reference at the discretion of the Chairman, or the ViceChairman in his/her absence. At least seven clear working days notice of a special
meeting must be given.
9. AGENDAS
9.1. Woking Joint Committee will comply with the Access to Information rules in Part VA
of the Local Government Act 1972.
9.2. Agendas for meetings of the Woking Joint Committee shall be dispatched by the
Committee Manager seven clear working days in advance of a meeting, and copies
will be made available for public inspection at the designated County and Borough
Council offices, libraries and via the County Council and Woking Borough Council
websites.
9.3. Members of the Woking Joint Committee may suggest items for inclusion in the
agenda within its remit. These will be added to the forward programme in consultation
with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Woking Joint Committee.
10. DECISIONS AND MINUTES
10.1.
The decisions from the meeting shall be published on the County Council’s
website, with links from the Woking Borough website, within three clear working days
of the Committee.
10.2.
The minutes of a meeting shall be published on the County Council’s website,
with relevant links, as soon as is reasonably practicable.
10.3.
At the meeting, the Chairman will move the formal motion “That the minutes of
the last meeting be confirmed and signed by the chairman” and there may only be
discussion if there is disagreement about their accuracy which will be resolved by a
vote in the normal way.

Page 169

10.4.
Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of signing
the minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of schedule 12 to the Local
Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then the next following meeting
(being a meeting called otherwise than under that paragraph) will be treated as a
suitable meeting for the purposes of signing of minutes.
11. CONFIDENTIALITY OF PAPERS
11.1.
All Members must respect the confidentiality of any papers made available to
them for the purpose of meetings of the Woking Joint Committee or otherwise for so
long as those papers remain confidential.
Failure to observe
11.2.
Any or all of the rights conferred on a Member of one of the Councils under its
Constitution may be withdrawn by that Council if it is satisfied that he/she has not
observed the requirements of Standing Order 11.1 in relation to any of its papers.
12. QUORUM
12.1.

The Chairman will adjourn the meeting if there is not a quorum present.

12.2.
The quorum will be one quarter of the total number of voting members of the
Committee. A quorum may not be fewer than three voting members.
13. MEMBER QUESTIONS TO THE WOKING JOINT COMMITTEE
13.1.
Any Member of either Council may, with the Chairman’s consent, ask one or
more questions on matters within the terms of reference of the committee.
13.2.
Notice of questions must be given in writing to the Community Partnerships
Team by 12 noon four working days before the meeting. If the day in question is a
Bank Holiday then notice of questions should be received by 12 noon on the previous
working day.
13.3.
Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter
is urgent.
13.4.
Where a Member has given notice of a question and is absent from the meeting
another Member may ask it on his/her behalf.
13.5.

Every question will be put and answered.

13.6.
Copies of all questions will be circulated to Members before the start of the
meeting.
13.7.

Questions may be answered orally or in writing.

13.8.
If the Chairman is unable to answer any question at the meeting he/she may
send a written answer to the Member asking the question.

Page 170

13.9.
At the discretion of the Chairman, a Member who has given notice of a question
may ask one supplementary question relevant to the subject of the original.
13.10.
A record of all questions and answers will be included in the minutes of the
meeting.
14. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN WOKING JOINT COMMITTEE
14.1.

PETITIONS

14.1.1. Any member of the public who lives, works or studies in the Woking Borough
area may present a petition, containing 30 or more signatures or at the
Chairman’s discretion, relating to a matter within the terms of reference of the
Committee. The presentation of a petition on the following business will not be
allowed:
14.1.1.1. matters which are “confidential” or “exempt” under the Local
Government Access to Information Act 1985;
14.1.1.2.

planning applications; and

14.1.1.3. matters in relation to a public rights of way under consideration by the
Joint Committee.
14.1.2. A spokesperson for the petitioners may address the committee on the petition
for up to 3 minutes or longer if agreed by the Chairman. Discussion on a petition
at the meeting is at the Chairman’s discretion. The petition may be referred to the
next appropriate meeting of the committee or to the SCC Cabinet, Cabinet
Member, WBC Executive or relevant committee of either SCC or WBC at the
discretion of the Chairman.
14.1.3. Notice must be given in writing to the Community Partnerships Team at least
14 days before the meeting. Alternatively, the petition can be submitted on-line
through Surrey County Council’s or Woking Borough Council’s e-petitions
website as long as the minimum number of signatures has been reached 14 days
before the meeting.
14.1.4. No more than three petitions may be presented at any one meeting of the
committee unless agreed otherwise by the Chairman.
14.1.5. The Community Partnerships Team may amalgamate within the first received
petition other petitions of like effect on the same subject.
14.1.6. The presentation of a petition on the same or similar topic as one presented in
the last six months may only be permitted at the Chairman’s discretion.
14.2.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS

14.2.1. At the start of any ordinary meeting of the Committee, any member of the public
who lives, works or studies in the Woking borough area may ask one question or
make a statement relating to a matter within the Committee’s terms of reference.
The Chairman may alternatively permit the question to be asked or the statement
to be made at the start of an item on the agenda if it relates to that item.

Page 171

14.2.2. Questions or statements will not be allowed on matters which are “confidential”
or “exempt” under the Local Government Access to Information Act 1985 or on
planning applications or on rights of way matters under consideration.
14.2.3. Notice of questions or statements must be given in writing or by e-mail to the
Community Partnerships Team with details of the question or statement, by 12
noon four working days before the meeting. If the day in question is a Bank
Holiday then notice of questions should be received by 12 noon on the previous
working day.
14.2.4. The Community Partnerships Team may, having consulted a questioner,
reword any question or statement received to bring it into proper form and to
secure reasonable brevity. Copies will be tabled and made available in the
meeting room for members of the Joint Committee and any member of the public
in attendance.
14.2.5. Questions and statements will be taken in the order in which they are received
by the Community Partnerships Team. The provision of answers to questions
being asked, any response to statements, and any discussion of the question or
statement will be at the discretion of the Chairman.
14.2.6. Following any initial reply to a question, one or more supplementary question/s
in relation to the response provided may be asked by the questioner at the
discretion of the Chairman. The provision of answers to supplementary questions
being asked and any discussion of these questions will be at the discretion of the
Chairman.
14.2.7. The total number of questions which may be asked or statements made at any
one meeting will be at the discretion of the Chairman. The Chairman may decide
that questions or statements can be held over to the following meeting, or dealt
with in writing and may disallow questions or statements which are repetitious.
14.2.8. When dealing with any item in which public participation has occurred, the
Chairman shall clarify the point at which such public participation has concluded
and the Committee’s formal discussion and decision making of the item is taking
place.
14.3.

PUBLIC SPEAKING IN RELATION TO RIGHTS OF WAY
Rights of Way application decisions are quasi-judicial decisions. They are
therefore subject to specific rules. The reason for the rules about public
speaking reflect the right of all individuals to a fair hearing.

14.3.1. Members of the public and their representatives may address the Woking Joint
Committee on any applications relating to public Rights of Way being considered
by the committee.
14.3.2. Speakers must first register their wish to speak by telephone or in writing to the
Community Partnerships Team by 12 noon one working day before a meeting
stating on which item(s) they wish to speak.

Page 172

14.3.3. Only those people who have previously made written representations in
response to a Rights of Way application will be entitled to speak.
14.3.4. Speakers must declare any financial or personal interest they may have in the
application.
14.3.5. Registration of speakers will be on a first come first served basis and speakers
will be taken in the order in which they are registered, with the first five registered
being entitled to speak. Where more than one person has registered an interest
to speak, the subsequent speakers will be entitled to speak first if the first named
speaker is not in attendance five minutes before the start of the meeting.
Representations can be combined if necessary. A reserve list will also be
maintained if necessary.
14.3.6. The time allowed for public speaking will be limited to 15 minutes for objectors
and 15 minutes for supporters per item, and to 3 minutes per speaker.
14.3.7. Only if a member of the public or their representative speaks objecting will the
applicant/agent be allowed to speak and then only to respond to the points raised
by the objectors, and will be limited to 3 minutes for each objector who has
spoken.
14.3.8. No additional information may be circulated by speakers at the meeting and
they will have no right to speak or question Members or officers once they have
made their submission.
14.3.9. Speeches will precede the committee’s formal discussion on each application
requiring the committee’s attention.
14.3.10.
The right to speak will only be exercised at the first meeting at which
the application is considered and will not normally be the subject of further
presentations at any subsequent meeting unless significant changes have taken
place after a deferral by the committee.
15. RIGHT TO SPEAK AT COMMITTEE
15.1.

A Member may only speak once on a motion and amendment except:

15.1.1. the mover may reply to the debate but, in doing so, may only answer
statements and arguments made in the course of the debate. He/she may not
introduce any new matter;
15.1.2. the mover of a motion may speak during the debate on any amendment to the
motion;
15.1.3. a Member who has already spoken may speak on a point of order or may, at
the chairman’s discretion, explain any statement made by him/her which he/she
believes has been misunderstood;
15.1.4. the Chairman may speak before the mover of the motion or amendment replies
to the debate.

Page 173

15.1.5. A Member seconding any motion or amendment will be deemed to have
spoken on it unless he/she speaks immediately and reserves his/her right to
speak later.
16.

RELEVANCE
16.1.
Every Member who speaks must direct his/her speech strictly to the motion or
matter under discussion, or to a motion or amendment which he/she moves, or to a
point of order.

17. POINTS OF ORDER
17.1.
Any Member wishing to raise a point of order must say at the outset the
Standing Order or rule of debate which he/she believes has been infringed. Every
point of order will be decided immediately by the chairman whose decision will be
final.
18. LENGTH OF SPEECHES
18.1.
Except with the consent of the chairman, the following time limits will apply to
speeches:
(a)
The mover of a motion or an amendment.
(5 minutes)
(A Member may not speak for more than five minutes unless he/she has a seconder).
(b) The mover of a motion either speaking to an amendment or replying to the debate.
(3 minutes)
(c) The mover of an amendment replying to the debate on the amendment.
(3 minutes)
(d) The seconder of a motion or an amendment.
(3 minutes)
(e) A Member speaking on a report or in a debate.
(3 minutes)

19. AFTER REPLY DEBATE IS CLOSED
19.1.
After the reply is made, the motion or amendment under discussion will be put
from the Chair.

20. PROCEDURE FOR MOTIONS AND AMENDMENTS

Page 174

20.1.
Every motion or amendment must be moved and seconded and, if the
Chairman requires, must be submitted in writing to the Community Partnerships Team
and read aloud before it is put to the meeting.
20.2.

A Member may not move or second more than one amendment on any motion.

20.3.
Once moved and seconded, a motion or amendment may not be withdrawn
without the consent of the Committee.
20.4.

With the consent of the Committee a Member may:

20.4.1. alter a motion of which he/she has given notice; or
20.4.2. with the consent of his/her seconder, alter a motion which he/she has moved.
(In either case, the alteration must be one which could be made as an amendment under the
following Standing Order).
21. AMENDMENTS
21.1.
Every amendment must be relevant to the motion under discussion and will
either:
21.1.1. move the reference back
21.1.2. leave out words
21.1.3. add words, or
21.1.4. leave out words and add others.
21.2.

An amendment which forms the negative of the motion will not be allowed.

21.3.
Whenever an amendment has been moved and seconded, no subsequent
amendment may be moved until the first has been dealt with, unless the Chairman
decides otherwise.
21.4.

If an amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved on the motion.

21.5.
If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended will become the
substantive motion on which further amendments may be moved.
22. PROCEDURAL MOTION
“That the question be now put”
22.1.
Any Member may, at the close of the speech of another Member, move “That
the question be now put”.
22.2.
If he/she considers that there has been adequate debate, the Chairman may
put the motion “That the question be now put” without debate. If the motion is carried:

Page 175

(a) the Chairman may speak to the motion or amendment under debate, if he/she has not
already spoken; and
(b) the mover of the motion or amendment may reply.
22.3.

The motion or amendment will then be put.

23. INTERRUPTIONS AND DISORDERLY CONDUCT
23.1.
If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at a meeting the Chairman
may ask him/her not to interrupt.
23.2.
If the interruption continues the Chairman may order his/her removal from the
room.
23.3.
If there is general disturbance in all or part of the public gallery the Chairman
may order that part to be cleared.
23.4.
If a Member behaves in a disorderly or disruptive manner, any Member may
move, with the consent of the Chairman, “That the named Member be not further
heard”. If this motion is seconded it will be put to the vote and determined without
discussion.
23.5.
If the motion is carried and the misconduct continues the Chairman may adjourn
or suspend the sitting of the Committee for as long as he/she considers appropriate.
24. VOTING
24.1.
Voting will be by show of hands unless a Member demands a recorded vote.
Where a recorded vote is called, the names of those voting for or against the motion
or amendment will be recorded and entered in the minutes.
24.2.
Where a demand for a recorded vote is not supported, any Member may
require his/her vote for or against the motion to be recorded in the minutes.
24.3.
On a formal motion put from the Chairman (e.g. “That the report be received”),
the question may be decided by the voice of the Members, unless any Member
demands a show of hands.
24.4.
If immediately after a vote is taken any Member so requires, the way in which
he/she voted (or abstained) will be recorded in the minutes of that meeting.
24.5.
The person presiding at the meeting, having already voted, may in the event of
a tie exercise a second or casting vote.
25. MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT
25.1.
Members are bound by the Code of Conduct of the authority which appointed
them to the Woking Joint Committee and should particularly observe the provisions of
their respective Codes concerning the declaration of pecuniary interests when
attending meetings of the Woking Joint Committee.

Page 176

26. INTERESTS OF MEMBERS
26.1.
At any meeting where a Member becomes aware that a matter under
consideration relates to:
26.1.1. one of their interests that they must disclose in accordance with their respective
council’s Codes not already entered on the relevant Council’s register and/or
26.1.2. the donor of any gift and/or hospitality they have accepted and not yet entered
on the relevant Council’s register
The Member must disclose the interest to the meeting and, within 28 days, notify this
to either the County Council’s Monitoring Officer in the case of County Councillors or
the Borough Council’s Monitoring Officer in the case of Borough Councillors for
inclusion in the register.

27. PARTICIPATION IN RELATION TO DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS
27.1.

A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter must:

27.1.1. not participate

in any discussion or

vote relating

to the matter;

27.1.2. withdraw from the room or chamber when it becomes apparent that the matter
is being considered at that meeting;
27.1.3. not exercise functions in relation to that matter; and
27.1.4. not take any steps in relation to the matter (except for the purposes of enabling
the matter to be dealt with otherwise than by them) unless he/she has obtained a
dispensation from the County Council’s Audit and Governance Committee for
County Councillors or the Borough Council’s Monitoring Officer for Borough
Councillors.
28. ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS
28.1.

Members will sign a register of attendance.

29. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
29.1.
The Woking Joint Committee may, by resolution, exclude the press and public
from a meeting during an item of business wherever it is likely, in view of the nature
of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of
the public were present during that item there would be disclosure of Exempt or
Confidential information as defined by the Local Government Act 1972 and the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012.
30. SUB-COMMITTEES AND TASK GROUPS
30.1.

The Woking Joint Committee may appoint:

Page 177

30.1.1. Sub-Committees with power to act to discharge any of its functions as agreed
by the Joint Committee.
30.1.2. Task Groups which cannot make decisions but may consider specific
matters and report back to a future meeting of the Woking Joint Committee.
31. CONDUCT AT MEETINGS
31.1.
The conduct of meetings and the interpretation of these Standing Orders are
at all times a matter for the Chairman of the meeting whose ruling is final.
32. STANDING ORDERS OF SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL TO APPLY
32.1.
Save to the extent that a matter is dealt with in these governance
arrangements, the Woking Joint Committee shall be subject to the County Council’s
Rules of Procedure contained in its Constitution (in so far as they are relevant, and
with the necessary changes being made).
32.2.
If there is any conflict between these governance arrangements and those
Rules of Procedure, these governance arrangements shall have precedence.

For noting regarding the Chairman/Vice-Chairman of Woking Joint Committee:
The following wording has been included as a Convention in the Woking Borough Council
Constitution, and was agreed by Woking Council on 14 April 2016.
‘When the Chairman/Vice-Chairman of the Woking Joint Committee is a Borough Councillor,
he/she should be the Leader of the Council or his/her nominee who shall be a member of the
Executive.’

Page 178

Annex 7

MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME

The Surrey County Council, in exercise of the powers conferred by The Local
Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003, hereby
makes the following amended scheme:
INTRODUCTION
1.

This scheme may be cited as the Surrey County Council Members'
Allowances Scheme, and shall have effect for the part-year
commencing 7 July 2020 and until otherwise amended.

2.

In this scheme,
‘councillor’ means a member of the Surrey County Council who
is a councillor;
‘year’ means the 12 months ending with 31 March.

3.

The scheme should be read in conjunction with the Guide to Members’
Allowances.
BASIC ALLOWANCE

4.

Subject to paragraph 9, for each year a Basic Allowance of £12,748.62
£13,120 shall be paid to each councillor.
SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES

5.

(1)

For each year, a Special Responsibility Allowance shall be paid
to those councillors who hold the special responsibilities in
relation to the authority that are specified in Schedule 1 to this
scheme.

(2)

The amount of each such allowance shall be the amount
specified against that special responsibility in Schedule 1.

(3)

No councillor shall receive more than one Special Responsibility
Allowance. Where a councillor performs more than one special
responsibility specified in Schedule 1, they will be entitled to the
Special Responsibility Allowance which is the highest in value.

ATTENDANCE ALLOWANCES
6.

No Attendance Allowances shall be paid.

Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 179

TRAVELLING AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCE
7.

Travelling and Subsistence Allowances will be paid for ‘Approved
Duties’ as set out in Schedule 2 to this Scheme.
CO-OPTEES’ ALLOWANCE

8.

No co-optees allowances are payable. However, co-opted members
may claim travel expenses.
CHILDCARE AND DEPENDENT CARERS’ EXPENSES

9.

The Council will reimburse Members for expenditure incurred in
providing child care arrangements for children for whom they have
parental responsibility to enable them to attend an approved duty
subject to a number of requirements specified in the Guide to
Members’ Allowances.

10.

The Council also provides for the reimbursement of expenditure
incurred by Members in providing care for dependant adults or children
who are frail and/or disabled at a rate based on actual cost up to a
specified limit.

11.

The amount which may be claimed is the actual costs incurred by a
councillor in order to participate in approved duties as specified in the
Guide to Members’ Allowances.

12.

Councillors may also claim any additional costs incurred where they
can demonstrate that the cost was wholly and necessarily incurred in
order to participate in approved duties as specified in the Guide to
Members’ Allowances.
PENSIONS

13.

From 1 April 2014 councillors in England were unable to join the LGPS.
Those councillors in England who were in the scheme on the 31 March
2014 were able to remain in the scheme until the end of that council
term in 2017.
RENUNCIATION

14.

A councillor may by notice in writing given to the Member Services
Managero Manager forego any part of his/her entitlement to an
allowance under this Scheme.
PART-YEAR ENTITLEMENTS

15.

(1)

If an amendment to this Scheme is made which affects payment
of a Basic Allowance or a Special Responsibility Allowance in
the year in which the payment is made, a councillor will entitled
Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 180

to payment at the revised rate from the date on which the
change was approved (unless otherwise stated).
(2)

If a councillor becomes or ceases to be eligible for a Basic or
Special Responsibility Allowance during the course of a year,
the entitlement will be adjusted by reference to the number of
days for which entitlement existed relative to the number of days
in that year.

CLAIMS AND PAYMENTS
16.

A claim for travelling and subsistence allowances under this scheme
shall be made in writing within two months of the date of the meeting in
respect of which the entitlement to the allowance arises.

17.

Subject to any in-year amendments to the Scheme or changes in
entitlement, Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances will be paid in
instalments of one-twelfth of the amount specified in this Scheme on
the last Thursday of each month.
SUSPENSION OF MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

18.

19.

Under the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) England
regulations 2003:
(1)

Allowances may be withheld during any period of suspension.

(2)

Part of any Special Responsibility Allowance payable to a
Member may be withheld in respect of the responsibility or
duties from which the Member is suspended or partially
suspended.

(3)

In the event of suspension of a Member from a post of special
responsibility, and the appointment of another Member to fill that
post, then the full allowance relating to the post should be paid
to the Member acting in that capacity.

(4)

That the implications of suspension on the rules governing the
attendance at meetings should be taken into account by the
Standards Committee when considering what sanctions should
be made against a Member.

The foregoing Scheme was made pursuant to the authority given by
the County Council at its meeting held on 7 July 2020.

Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 181

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
SCHEME OF MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES
SCHEDULE 1
A Special Responsibility Allowance will be paid to those Members of
the Council/Independent Representatives who hold the following
offices:
Type of Allowance

Allowance (£)

Basic Allowance
Leader
Deputy Leader
Chairman of the Council
Vice-Chairman of the Council

12,748.62
44,126.74
28,598.80
18,478.45

Cabinet Member

23,090.51 23,760

Deputy Cabinet Member

10,241.19 10,540

Select Committee Chairman

10,271.40 10,570

Select Committee Task Group Leads
(interim)

1,540.71 1,590

6,676.41 6,870

Planning and
Regulatory Committee
Chairman
Audit and Governance Chairman
Surrey Pension Fund Committee
Chairman
Local and Joint
Committee Chairmen
Vice-Chairmen of Committees
Opposition Leader

Political Group
Allowance (to be used for office
holders of political groups)

13,120
45,410
29,430
19,020

12,315.61 12,680
10,271.40 10,570
10,271.40 10,570
8,217.12 8,460
0.00
12,315.61 12,680 (total amount, divided
between two
posts)
0.00

Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 182

102.71 106 per session attended plus
travel expenses

Members of Adoption
and Fostering Panels
Lead Member for
Scrutiny of the Police &
Crime Commissioner
Co-optees Allowance
Childcare Allowance
Care of Dependants Allowance

0.00
0.00
Actual costs incurred
Actual costs incurred

If a Member qualifies for a Special Responsibility Allowance for more than one
post, only the allowance which is highest in value may be claimed.
The Basic Allowance and Special Responsibility Allowances shall be adjusted
annually on 1 April commensurate with the Consumer Price Index at the
previous September. This provision applies for a maximum of period of four
years from 7 July 2020, at which point the Independent Remuneration Panel
shall reconsider the matter.
SCHEDULE 2
Approved Duties
Travelling and subsistence allowances are payable in respect of the approved
duties listed in Appendix 1.

Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 183

APPENDIX 1
APPROVED DUTIES
Approved duties are defined as follows:(a)

a meeting of the Council, the Cabinet (or a Cabinet Member
meeting), any committee, or any formally constituted task groups
or panels appointed by the Council, the Cabinet or any
committees;

(b)

any other meeting (including, for example, a site visit or tour or
induction or training seminar) convened by the Council, the
Cabinet or a committee, or convened by the Chairman of the
Council, the Cabinet or committee acting on their behalf (but not a
meeting convened by an officer of the Council), provided that it is a
meeting to which members of at least two political groups have
been invited (except in the case of meetings relating to the work of
a local committee which consists of a single political group);

(c)

attendance by the Chairman of the Cabinet or a committee at a
meeting of any Task Group of the Cabinet or that committee of
which he/she is not a member;

(d)

attendance by a non-member of the Cabinet, a committee or task
group in the following circumstances:
(i) an item on the agenda in which they have a local interest and
on which, with the Chairman's consent, they would wish to
speak;
(ii) an Original Motion in their name which stands referred to the
Cabinet or a committee under Standing Orders;
(iii) an item on the agenda of which they have given notice under
Standing Orders; or
(iv) a question of which they have given notice under Standing
Orders.
and where advance notice has been given to the Support Services
Manager

(e)

attendance by an individual or named group of Members especially
appointed by the Cabinet or a committee or task group to examine
a particular problem or site or to meet representatives of other
organisations or individuals as part of an agreed programme of
activity;

Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 184

(f)

attendance by Members at local briefing meetings at the invitation
of an officer of the Council, provided that members of at least two
political groups have been invited (except in the case of meetings
relating to the work of a local committee which consists of a single
political group);

(g)

attendance by Members at public consultation meetings on
significant matters of policy or service change, provided that
members of at least two political groups have been invited (except
in the case of meetings relating to the work of a local committee
which consists of a single political group);

(h)

attendance by Members at joint briefings on the business to be
transacted at committee meetings, organised by officers under the
Member/Officer Protocol, provided that members of at least two
political groups have been invited (except in the case of meetings
relating to the work of a local committee which consists of a single
political group);

(i)

attendance at County Hall or elsewhere by (i)

the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Council

(ii)

the chairmen and vice-chairmen of committees

(iii)

Cabinet Members

for the purpose of agenda planning and ‘call-over’ prior to a
meeting; conferring with officers; visiting County establishments;
inspecting sites; or being engaged in a similar manner directly in
connection with the discharge of any of the functions (i)

of their respective offices; or

(ii)

of their respective committees.

(j)

meetings held in connection with Local Ombudsman investigations;
provided that they are meetings to which members of at least two
political groups have been invited (except in the case of meetings
relating to the work of a local committee which consists of a single
political group);

(k)

a meeting of the Local Government Association, or of any
committee, or other Member group of the Association to which a
Member of the Council has been duly appointed;

(l)

attendance as a duly appointed County Council representative or
nominee at meetings of those bodies listed on the Council’s
website.

Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 185

(m) visits by Members to County Council establishments including
children's homes, other social services' residential establishments
and special schools in accordance with a pre-determined rota;
(n)

meetings between leaders of the political groups;

(o)

meetings of parish and town councils and residents associations;

(p)

attendance at official openings at the specific invitation of the
Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the County Council;

(q)

attendance at formally arranged meetings with officers or
representatives of external organisations to discuss a significant
issue relating to a County Council service or affecting the
Member’s Electoral Division.

(r)

Attendance attendance at a meeting with a constituent from the
Member’s own Division in direct response to a request about
County Council services.

Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 186

APPENDIX 2
TRAVELLING EXPENSES

(a)

MOTOR C YCLES
24p per mile

(b)

MOTOR C ARS
45p per mile for the first 10,000 miles
25p per mile for mileage over 10,000
An additional claim of 5p per mile may be made for each car passenger
(not exceeding four) for whom travel expenses would otherwise be
payable.

(c)

Electric Cars
45p per mile
This allowance is only claimable in relation to the use of fully electric
cars.

(d)

TAXI FARES
Actual fare and a reasonable gratuity for travel by taxi. A taxi should
only be used in cases of urgency or where no public transport is
available.

(e)

H IRED MOTOR VEHICLES (OTHER THAN A TAXI OR MINICAB)
Reimbursement may be claimed not exceeding the rate allowed for the
use of a Member's own car.

(f)

TRAVEL BY PUBLIC TRANSPORT
The actual expenditure may be claimed but Claims for reimbursement
should normally be restricted to the cheapest available fares for the
chosen mode of transport. Claims for first class travel may only be
made if no alternative ordinary fares were available at the time of
booking or where exceptional circumstances apply.

(g)

TRAVEL ABROAD
Where travel abroad is necessary, for example for meetings or site
visits, the officers involved will make the necessary travel
Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 187

arrangements. In any circumstances where individual Members need
to travel abroad and officers are not directly involved in setting up the
visit, they should obtain approval from the Leader of the County
Council and contact the Democratic Services Support Services
Manager, who will make the necessary arrangements. Bookings for
travel abroad will normally be made using the cheapest appropriate
available fare.
(h)

C YCLE ALLOWANCE
The current rate for cycling allowance is 20p per mile.

Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 188

APPENDIX 3
SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES
D AY SUBSISTENCE
1.

Breakfast Allowance (more than 4 hours away from normal place of
residence before 11.00am e.g. 7 am - 11 am) £5.30;

2.

Lunch Allowance (more than 4 hours away from the normal place of
residence including a lunchtime between 12 noon and 2.00pm
e.g. 10 am - 2 pm; 12 pm - 4 pm) £7.25;

3.

Tea Allowance (more than 4 hours away from the normal place of
residence including the period 3.00pm to 6.00pm e.g. 2 pm - 6 pm)
£2.90;

4.

Evening Meal Allowance (more than 4 hours away from the normal
place of residence ending after 7.00pm e.g. 4 pm - 8 pm; 5 pm - 9 pm)
£9.00.
OVERNIGHT SUBSISTENCE

5.

For absence overnight (deemed to cover a continuous period of 24
hours) from the usual place of residence, £85.80, or where the absence
overnight is in London or for attending one of the approved
conferences, £97.85.

6.

Overnight subsistence may only be claimed by Members to reimburse
them for the cost of hotel accommodation and meals when attending
one of the approved conferences, and up to the maximum rate set out
in the guide.
If overnight allowance is claimed the Member may not claim allowance
for meals which are provided as part of the overnight allowance e.g.
breakfast, evening meal etc.
In most cases where the Member attends an approved conference, the
booking arrangements are made by Democratic Services and the
invoices will be paid directly by them on the Member’s behalf. It will
therefore not usually be necessary to claim overnight subsistence.

Part 7
Members’ Allow ances Scheme – April 2021 2022

Page 189

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 16
County Council Meeting – 24 May 2022
REPORT OF THE CABINET
The Cabinet met on 29 March 2022 and 26 April 2022.
In accordance with the Constitution, Members can ask questions of the
appropriate Cabinet Member, seek clarification or make a statement on any of
these issues without giving notice.
The minutes containing the individual decisions for the meetings above have
been included within the original agenda at Item 17. Any Cabinet responses to
Committee reports are included in or appended to the minutes. If any Member
wishes to raise a question or make a statement on any of the matters in the
minutes, notice must be given to Democratic Services by 12 noon on the last
working day before the County Council meeting (Monday 23 May 2022).
For members of the public all non-confidential reports are available on the web
site (www.surreycc.gov.uk) or on request from Democratic Services.
RECOMMENDATIONS ON POLICY FRAMEWORK DOCUMENTS
There were no reports with recommendations for Council.
REPORTS FOR INFORMATION / DISCUSSION
At its meeting on 29 March 2022 Cabinet considered:
A. OUR RADICAL AGENDA FOR EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION IN
SURREY AND SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL - ONE YEAR ON
This report asked the Cabinet to approve a proposed refreshed version of the
equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) action plan for 2022-23 that aims to
continue important work started in the last year and refines its focus on the
activities that will make the greatest impact for stakeholders.
Cabinet AGREED:
1. That Cabinet notes the progress that has been made over the past year
towards the Council’s ambitions to tackle inequality and ensure that noone is left behind.
2. That Cabinet endorses the refreshed Surrey County Council Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion Action Plan 2022-23.
Reasons for decisions:
The EDI action plan is key to delivering the equality objectives in the
Organisation Strategy 2021-26 and plays a pivotal role in supporting the
council’s wider aim to tackle inequality to ensure no-one is left behind. Moving
to a fairer, more compassionate and inclusive culture will inform how we

Page 191

develop policy, take decisions and serve all stakeholders so everyone who
lives, works and studies in Surrey is supported to thrive.
The updated action plan aims to build on the progress made through the
action plan for 2021-22. The focus of the updated plan has been refined to
support residents and our workforce with protected characteristics, and those
who experience other inequalities (such as socio-economic inequality), to have
more opportunities to have improved outcomes.
B. ADOPTION OF MOVING TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT POWERS
This year, the Department for Transport (DfT) will allow councils in England
and Wales to apply for new powers to carry out Moving Traffic Enforcement
(MTE). The report set out the background, benefits and issues associated with
MTE and recommended that the council applies for these new powers
following the process prescribed by the DfT. It also recommended that a
procurement process to identify a supplier/enforcement contractor to operate
and maintain the infrastructure required commences.
Cabinet AGREED:
1. That Cabinet makes an application to the DfT for powers to enforce
moving traffic contraventions in accordance with Part 6 of the Traffic
Management Act 2004;
2. That Cabinet delegates the management of operational policy regarding
camera site selection and operation to the Director for Highways and
Transport in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Transport and
Infrastructure and the divisional member;
3. That Cabinet delegates the authority to approve future camera
enforcement sites to the Director for Highways and Transport in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure
and
the
divisional
member
ensuring
there
is
a
cost
neutral financial case, or if not other identified funding .
4. That Cabinet approves the setting of PCNs to be issued with MTE at
the higher level (£70) for moving traffic contraventions.
5. That Cabinet agrees to receive annual reports on the effectiveness of
MTE by the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure.
6. That Cabinet delegates authority to make decisions about the use of
any surplus income to the Director for Highways and Transport in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure.

Page 192

7. That Cabinet agrees to begin a procurement process to appoint a
supplier for ‘Civil Enforcement services’ with the outcome being
reported back to the Cabinet for approval prior to award.
Reasons for decisions:
The recommendations above will enable the council to help achieve some of
its Community Vision 2030 objectives, including that:


Residents live in clean, safe and green communities, where people and
organisations embrace their environmental responsibilities; and



Journeys across the county are easier, more predictable and safer.

Specifically, traffic enforcement cameras provide an option to make travel and
transportation schemes more effective and could be a key tool in helping
deliver transportation and environmental objectives to reduce congestion and
improve facilities for buses, cycles and pedestrians, particularly vulnerable
road users.
At its meeting on 26 April 2022 Cabinet considered:
C. A DEVOLUTION DEAL FOR SURREY
The report outlined the key implications of and opportunities within the
Government’s Levelling Up White Paper for Surrey, particularly in relation to
the devolution framework and a Surrey County Deal. It set out the initial ideas
being explored and developed in partnership with others that will form
proposals within a County Deal and considers how devolution for Surrey would
positively contribute to the council’s overarching ambition of No One Left
Behind.
Cabinet AGREED:
1. That Cabinet supports the approach set out to develop a Devolution
Deal for Surrey, to accelerate and better enable work to tackle
inequalities in Surrey.
2. That Cabinet reaffirms the Council’s commitment to ensuring No One
is Left Behind and note the strong alignment to the Government’s
Levelling Up agenda.
3. That Cabinet endorses the approach and plan for further engagement
with local partners and key stakeholders to support development of a
devolution proposal for Surrey.
4. That Cabinet supports the intention to engage with the Surrey Delivery
Board as a key stakeholder group in developing and shaping a
comprehensive devolution deal for the benefit of Surrey’s residents,
communities, and businesses.
5. That Cabinet delegates authority to the Executive Director for
Partnerships, Prosperity, and Growth to lead engagement with the

Page 193

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities on the
devolution proposal following consideration by Cabinet, and to take
other necessary steps in consultation with the Leader of the Council
and the Deputy Cabinet Member for Levelling Up.
Reasons for decisions:
The Government’s Levelling Up White Paper presents a rare opportunity for
the council to pursue a devolution deal for Surrey that will bring new powers,
freedoms and flexibilities, better enabling the council to deliver for residents
against its organisational priorities and work towards its ambition of No One
Left Behind.
D. HOME TO SCHOOL/COLLEGE TRAVEL ASSISTANCE POLICY REFRESH
The report outlines the proposed updates to the Home to School Travel
Assistance (H2S TA) policy for children and young people in mainstream
schools and pupils attending specialist schools for children with additional
needs (SEND). The report sets out the rationale for and the objectives of the
changes, the changes being consulted on and the intended outcomes.
Cabinet AGREED:
1. That Cabinet notes the impacts and mitigations set out in the Equality
Impact Assessment (Annex B)
2. That Cabinet notes the outcomes of the engagement with residents and
the 28 working day public consultation (Annex C)
3. That Cabinet approves changes to the Home to School/College Travel
Assistance policy having considered the above documents (set out in
paragraphs 11-51)
4. That Cabinet approves the revised Home to School/College Travel
Assistance policy (Annex D)
5. That Cabinet agrees the proposal to produce an enhanced Post 16
Policy Statement and agrees that the Cabinet Member has delegated
authority to approve the statement.
Reasons for decisions:
The H2S TA policy sets out the way in which the Council discharges its
statutory and discretionary powers and responsibilities in relation to school
and college transport assistance available for pupils aged up to 25 years of
age, both with and without additional needs. While Surrey County Council will
continue to support those who most need help, the Council must manage
increasing costs and demand within the overall resources available. The
recommendations set out in this report will increase the options for children
and young people who qualify for H2S TA, encourage people to use
environmentally friendly travel and support independent travel as a means of
preparing young people for adulthood.

Page 194

E. SURREY'S GREENER FUTURES GRANT PROGRAMMES
This report sought approval for the receipt of a number of specific funds with
which Surrey County Council have already been successful, and secondly to
get approval for similar decisions for future applications.
Cabinet AGREED:
1. That Cabinet approves the receipt of funding into the Council’s capital
pipeline from Government net zero carbon grant funding programmes,
specifically the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS3) and
the Sustainable Warmth Programme (which includes the Green Homes
Grant Local Authority Delivery (GHGLAD3) and Home Upgrade Grant
(HUG1))
2. That Cabinet notes the use of match funding from the approved
Corporate Capital Maintenance Programme, subject to the Capital
Programme Panel (CPP) approving business cases for individual sites.
3. That Cabinet approves the request to competitively procure the
Sustainable Warmth Programme and PSDS3 services under separate
contracts, in accordance with the Council’s Procurement and
Contracting Standing Orders.
4. That Cabinet approves the receipt of future funding schemes for the
purposes of delivery of the Greener Futures ambition, including future
tranches of the PSDS schemes and Sustainable Warmth programmes
as well as, but not limited to, the schemes included in Annex 1. Receipt
of funding will be subject to Capital Programme Panel approval.
Reasons for decisions:
The recommendations in this report will enable the Council to:


Draw down Government funding of £13.15m. This includes £2.652m
from PSDS3 to decarbonise buildings in the SCC estate and schools
and £10.5m from the Sustainable Warmth Programme, which includes
£8.3m for GHLAD3 and £2.2m for HUG1, which will be used to
decarbonise homes of residents on low incomes.



Be as agile as possible to maximise the attraction of future external
grant funding sources.

F. QUARTERLY REPORT ON DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER SPECIAL
URGENCY ARRANGEMENTS: 15 March 2022 – 13 May 2022
The Cabinet is required under the Constitution to report to Council on a
quarterly basis the details of decisions taken by the Cabinet and Cabinet
Members under the special urgency arrangements set out in Standing Order

Page 195

57 of the Constitution. This occurs where a decision is required on a matter
that is not contained within the Leader’s Forward Plan (Notice of Decisions),
nor available 5 clear days before the meeting. Where a decision on such
matters could not reasonably be delayed, the agreement of the Chairman of
the appropriate Select Committee, or in his/her absence the Chairman of the
Council, must be sought to enable the decision to be made.
The Cabinet RECOMMENDS that the County Council notes that there
have been NO urgent decisions in the last two months.
Tim Oliver, Leader of the Council
13 May 2022

Page 196

Item 17
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET
HELD ON 29 MARCH 2022 AT 2.00 PM
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, WOODHATCH PLACE, 11 COCKSHOT
HILL, REIGATE, SURREY ,RH2 8EF.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Cabinet at its next meeting.
Members:
*Tim Oliver (Chairman)
*Natalie Bramhall
*Clare Curran
*Matt Furniss
*Mark Nuti
*Denise Turner-Stewart
*Sinead Mooney
*Marisa Heath
*Becky Rush
Kevin Deanus (attended the meeting remotely)
Deputy Cabinet Members:
*Maureen Attewell
*Rebecca Paul
*Steve Bax
*Jordan Beech
Members in attendance:
John O’Reilly, Chairman of the Communities, Environment and Highways
Select Committee
PART ONE
IN PUBLIC
48/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE [Item 1]
There were none.
49/22 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 22 FEBRUARY 2022 AND 07
MARCH 2022 [Item 2]
The Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 22 February 2022 and 07 March
2022 were agreed as a correct record of the meeting. There was a slight
amendment to the minutes from 22 February 2022. On page five of the
minutes, ‘disrepair’ was replaced with ‘not conducive to providing quality care
for the future’.
50/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
There were none.
PROCEDURAL MATTERS [Item 4]
51/22 MEMBER'S QUESTIONS [Item 4a]
There were none.
595

Page 197

52/22 PUBLIC QUESTIONS [Item 4b]
There were three public questions. The questions and responses were
published as a supplement to the agenda. In response to her public question,
Sally Blake stated that she had very serious concerns about the Council’s
duty to protect and improve biodiversity on this exceptionally important nature
site, as more land was unnecessarily hard surfaced, more visitors from a
distance were encouraged, and recreational trails are laid through the
dormouse woods. She asked how the council was going to protect and
improve biodiversity at the site. The Cabinet Member for Environment
explained that biodiversity was woven into the climate change delivery plan
and work was being undertaken to protect the nature the county has. During
the pandemic there was more people visiting the countryside which the
council has a duty to make accessible. No new hard standing had been laid
and only previous hard standing was being maintained. A land management
strategy was being developed to increase biodiversity along with farmers,
AONB Board and the public. The Cabinet Member agreed to speak with the
member of public on a one to one basis to discuss matters further.
John Oliver was unable to attend the meeting but Sally Blake asked a
supplementary question on his behalf. The question was would it not be better
to avoid the negative effects of increasing the number of visitors and, at the
same time, improve residents’ mental and physical health, by focusing
Council resources on greening our urban environments which could be
achieved by doing things like working with boroughs and districts to expand
the number and size of urban green spaces and working with boroughs and
districts to expand the number and size of urban green spaces. The Cabinet
Member for Environment explained that all the actions mentioned were
included within the climate change delivery plan. The countryside was a
public amenity but the council was doing more to educate people around it. It
was commented that a healthy streets design guide was being developed and
would introduce biodiversity and greenery into our streets.
53/22 PETITIONS [Item 4c]
There were none.
54/22 REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED ON REPORTS TO BE CONSIDERED IN
PRIVATE [Item 4d]
There were none.
55/22 REPORTS FROM SELECT COMMITTEES , TASK GROUPS, LOCAL
COMMITTEES AND OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL [Item 5]
A report was introduced by the Chairman of the Communities, Environment
and Highways Select Committee on Your Fund Surrey who explained that the
scope of Your Fund Surrey had been a fund offering £100m of capital for
community projects over 5 years. The Chairman of the Select Committee
asked that the Cabinet reaffirm their commitment to this as there was concern
that the pace of the project was not being accelerated. The Cabinet Member
for Communities stated that success for the project should not be based on
the number of applications into the fund but the outcomes being achieved for
the community. There were currently 223 applications in the system and the
596

Page 198

Your Fund Surrey would be promoted actively in spring and summer. The
Cabinet Member commented that he could not control the number of
applications coming into the fund but expected numbers to pick up in the next
2-3 years. The Leader explained that the £100m being referred to was being
drawn down from borrowing and the council was committed to supporting
community projects. There was a role for members to promote the fund in
their local communities.
RESOLVED:
That the Select Committee report regarding the Your Fund Surrey be noted.
The response from the Cabinet was published as a supplement to the
agenda.
56/22 LEADER / DEPUTY LEADER / CABINET MEMBER/ STRATEGIC
INVESTMENT BOARD/ COMMITTEES IN COMMON DECISIONS TAKEN
SINCE THE LAST CABINET MEETING [Item 6]
The Cabinet Member for Communities noted that there had been three
decisions taken relating to Your Fund Surrey applications. A brief description
was given of each.
There were seven decisions for noting.
57/22 CABINET MEMBER OF THE MONTH [Item 7]
The Cabinet Member of the Month report was introduced by Becky Rush,
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources. The
following key points were made:









Financial resilience is absolutely key to the long term delivery of the
councils priorities and the Community vision for Surrey in 2030 that no
one is left behind. Since 2018, the council has delivered a finance
improvement plan. That has seen us move from a perilous financial
position to one that gives us confidence to meet the mounting
challenges facing local government. We've built a stronger financial
base from which to deliver improved services, undertake ambitious
investment and restore depleted reserves to a sustainable level.
The council was on track to deliver a balanced budget for the third
consecutive year and in February we set a balanced budget to deliver
our services for 2022-2023. In the first paragraph of the report it
should read 2022-2023 and not 2023-2024.
We have an ambitious capital programme with a budget of £1.9 billion
over 5 years. This was critical for responding to service demand and
for future proofing our services.
From the rollout of hardware to enable our 7000 staff to work on line at
the beginning of the pandemic to its use as business as usual way of
working, the IT team have been at the heart of our organisation,
making sure we have the hardware connectivity and necessary cyber
protections to enable our workforce to carry out their roles wherever
they are.
We have seen a range of digital solutions emerge across the Council,
from chat bots to support customer services, school appeals
processes and latterly the booking and management of death
597

Page 199





registrations to a pilot in Mole Valley which used technology to help
elderly residents stay independent and safe in their homes. We must
continue to put IT and digital solutions at the heart of our evolution and
truly embed them in our services.
Recruitment of talented staff and their retention is hugely important for
the Council, a HR program for the Council called Workforce of the
Future, which is all about making Surrey County Council the best
place to work, which covers pay in part, but importantly, all the other
aspects of work and a career that would make the Council an
employee of choice in the county. This is all about the tangible and
intangible benefits, promotion, pathways, training and support.
The finance and resources team were thanked for their support,
commitment and professionalism in enabling the Council to deliver on
its strategic objectives and work towards the 2030 vision that no one is
left behind.

RESOLVED:
That the Cabinet Member of the Month report be noted.
58/22 OUR RADICAL AGENDA FOR EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION
IN SURREY AND SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL - ONE YEAR ON [Item 8]
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health who
explained that in February 2021 Cabinet agreed the new commitment to
equality, diversity and inclusion, as well as an action plan for strengthening
our approach to this. In just over a year we have taken steps to build a solid
foundation to becoming a fairer, more compassionate and inclusive council.
However, there was still a lot more to do to ensure that the changes are
embedded in everything that we do, both internally and with our external
partners and residents. This paper sets out the progress made so far and
proposes and refreshed action plan. Our employee focus work over the past
12 months has helped us put in place foundations we need to support the
cultural and process changes to ensure that we are an organisation that takes
equality diversity and inclusion seriously. This work includes supporting the
development of our Employee Reference Groups which play a key role in not
only representing the interests of different communities of staff, but they also
work collaboratively with the council to agree our priorities and our action plan
and hold us to account in our delivery of meaningful change, which has the
biggest impact on the experience of employees of the Council. The refreshed
action plan for 2022-2023 built on these foundations by continuing to support
the development of our Employment Reference Group and providing training
that addresses the issues of most concern to the Council and to our staff. The
Surrey Gypsy traveller communities forum was a key partner in this work,
ensuring that our work was informed and shaped by the experiences and
perspectives of this community.
The Deputy Cabinet Member for levelling-up welcomed the renewed
commitment to equality, diversity and inclusion, which builds upon the
progress already made in this area. The Deputy Cabinet Member mentioned
that Surrey was the first County Council to make free period products
available across Surrey in partnership with the charity Binti. The council also
achieved White Ribbon accreditation in November 2020 and at the time we
had already embarked on an ambitious domestic abuse transformation
programme. We are now working with Surrey Police and partners on Surrey's
598

Page 200

first multi-agency violence against women and girls strategy. For the future a
new leadership programme for the Council workforce that will develop and
support staff with protected characteristics to enter leadership roles was being
introduced. This will develop deliver a pipeline of talent, resulting in a more
diverse and representative senior leadership team in the future. The planned
introduction of pay gap reporting for ethnicity and disability will also play an
important role to in highlighting any underlying issues. The council was also
planning to put in place domestic abuse refuge provision for groups not
currently well served in Surrey.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet notes the progress that has been made over the past year
towards the Council’s ambitions to tackle inequality and ensure that no-one is
left behind.
2. That Cabinet endorses the refreshed Surrey County Council Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion
Action Plan 2022-23.
Reasons for Decisions:
The EDI action plan is key to delivering the equality objectives in the
Organisation Strategy 2021-26 and plays a pivotal role in supporting the
council’s wider aim to tackle inequality to ensure no-one is left behind. Moving
to a fairer, more compassionate and inclusive culture will inform how we
develop policy, take decisions and serve all stakeholders so everyone who
lives, works and studies in Surrey is supported to thrive.
The updated action plan aims to build on the progress made through the
action plan for 2021-22. The focus of the updated plan has been refined to
support residents and our workforce with protected characteristics, and those
who experience other inequalities (such as socio-economic inequality), to
have more opportunities to have improved outcomes.
59/22 ADOPTION OF MOVING TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT POWERS [Item 9]
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Transport and
Infrastructure who explained that the Department for Transport (DfT) would be
allowing councils in England and Wales to apply for new powers to carry out
Moving Traffic Enforcement (MTE). This meant traffic enforcement cameras
could be used to enforce a variety of highway restrictions on Surrey roads to
help improve safety and reduce congestion. They could also be a key tool in
the development of our new transport strategies (LTP4) aimed at improving
infrastructure for buses, cycles and pedestrians. The government sees these
new powers as a key tool in reducing congestion and improving air quality
whilst promoting attractiveness of active travel. This is by keeping vehicles out
of cycle lanes and other parts of the road where vehicles are prohibited. In
addition, by enabling authorities to use such powers to keep junctions clear,
the policy also aims to improve punctuality of not only journey times for car
users, but also bus services contributing to making sustainable travel more of
an attractive choice and increasing compliance through targeted enforcement
at problem locations. Two locations had been shortlisted, both these locations
have over 3000 breaches a week in yellow boxes and an application will be
599

Page 201

made to the DfT in May. There would be a six week public consultation on the
installation of cameras. The DfT has stipulated that warning notices must be
sent for a period of six months from the installation of the camera when
motorists commit an offence for the first time.
The report was welcomed by the Cabinet and it was commented that the new
powers would help tackle congestion issues in the county and would make
roads safer.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet makes an application to the DfT for powers to enforce
moving traffic contraventions in accordance with Part 6 of the Traffic
Management
Act
2004;
2. That Cabinet delegates the management of operational policy
regarding camera site selection and operation to the Director for
Highways and Transport in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Transport and Infrastructure and the divisional member;
3. That Cabinet delegates the authority to approve future camera
enforcement sites to the Director for Highways and Transport in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure
and the divisional member ensuring there is a cost
neutral financial case, or if not other identified funding.
4. That Cabinet approves the setting of PCNs to be issued with MTE at
the higher level (£70) for moving traffic contraventions.
5. That Cabinet agrees to receive annual reports on the effectiveness of
MTE by the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure.
6. That Cabinet delegates authority to make decisions about the use of
any surplus income to the Director for Highways and Transport in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure.
7. That Cabinet agrees to begin a procurement process to appoint a
supplier for ‘Civil Enforcement services’ with the outcome being
reported back to the Cabinet for approval prior to award.
Reasons for Decisions:
The recommendations above will enable the council to help achieve some of
its Community Vision 2030 objectives, including that:


Residents live in clean, safe and green communities, where people
and organisations embrace their environmental responsibilities; and



Journeys across the county are easier, more predictable and safer.

600

Page 202

Specifically, traffic enforcement cameras provide an option to make travel and
transportation schemes more effective and could be a key tool in helping
deliver transportation and environmental objectives to reduce congestion and
improve facilities for buses, cycles and pedestrians, particularly vulnerable
road users.
60/22 RE-PROCUREMENT OF FACILITIES MANAGEMENT SERVICES [Item 10]
The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste explained that the report was
asking that Cabinet approves the request to competitively procure four
separate contracts, in accordance with the Council’s Procurement and
Contracting Standing Orders. The report highlights the social value
commitments that the council will be seeking from prospective tenders and
how these will be evaluated by the Council against the councils social value
objectives, support for the Council's 2030 carbon reduction targets and the
inclusion of Surrey based companies or small medium enterprises in this
subsequent subcontracting strategy. The Cabinet Member for Environment
asked that environment officers are consulted on the contract to ensure
ethical sources are included such as cruelty free.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet approves the request to competitively procure the following
services under separate contracts, in accordance with the Council’s
Procurement and Contracting Standing Orders, as follows:
i. A Soft Facilities Management contract (including all cleaning, security,
waste and recycling, confidential waste removal, window cleaning, pest
control, water cooler services, salting/gritting, removals, grounds
maintenance and arboriculture services, provision of cleaning
consumables, and other services).
ii. A Hard Facilities Management contract (including all planned and
reactive maintenance of mechanical, electrical, plant, equipment (M&E)
and fabric, project management and other services).
iii. A framework of suppliers for delivery of the Forward Maintenance Plan
(minor capital works).
iv. A one-off Life Cycle Assessment and Condition Survey of all the major
M&E and fabric across the estate.
2. That Cabinet notes that, following approval of the procurement strategy by
the Procurement Department, the Executive Director of Resources,
Director of Procurement and the Director of Land and Property are
authorised to award the contracts to suppliers, within the +/-5% budgetary
tolerance level.
3. That Cabinet notes that the procurement strategy will require prospective
suppliers to include Social Value commitments in their responses;
provisions for contributing to the Council’s 2030 Carbon Reduction
targets; and inclusion of Surrey-based companies in the selection
process, subject to achievement of best value.
Reasons for Decisions:
The proposals will:
601

Page 203

i. Enable the delivery of Soft FM and Hard FM; the delivery of the
Forward Maintenance Plan; and an assessment of the life cycle and
condition of all major M&E and fabric across the Council’s property
estate.
ii. Deliver on the needs of Service Directorates and its services users
through improved customer experience.
iii. Deliver on the Climate Change agenda and supports Agile
Transformation.
iv. Support the local economy, thereby benefiting the residents of Surrey.
61/22 2021/22 MONTH 10 (JANUARY) FINANCIAL REPORT [Item 11]
The report was introduced by the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Finance and Resources who explained that at M10, the Council was
forecasting a full year £0.6m forecast surplus against the revenue budget, an
improvement of £4.6m from M9. Despite the forecast of a balanced outturn, it
is still the expectation that Directorates continue to make efforts to manage
spends within their budget envelopes, particularly where actions will impact
on the deliverability of the 2022/23 budget. For Capital spend, the M10
position shows a forecast spend of £169.1m against a budget of £170.6m,
£1.5m less than the budget. The Cabinet Member explained each of the
recommendations in the report. The Cabinet Member for Adults and Health
explained that the council had received £2.8m of revenue expenditure from
the Changing Futures programme which would need to be spent by March
2024. The programme was being co-ordinated by the Health and Wellbeing
Team in the councils Public Health service.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet notes the Council’s forecast revenue and capital budget
positions.
2. That Cabinet approves the Empty Homes funding request from Guildford
Borough Council of £696,298, as outlined in paragraphs 15-19.
3. That Cabinet approves £2.8m of revenue expenditure on the Changing
Futures programme in Public Health which is fully grant funded by the
Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC), and the
Lottery Fund as outlined in paragraphs 20-26 of this report.
4. That Cabinet approves the transfer of the revenue surplus of Busbridge
Infant School to the successor sponsored academy as outlined in
paragraphs 27-28 of this report.
5. That Cabinet approves the transfer of the closing surpluses of the two
closed schools named in para 29 to the newly opened St Jude’s CE Infant
School, in order that the funds might continue to benefit the children and
locality to which they were originally allocated.
Reasons for Decisions:
This report is to comply with the agreed policy of providing a monthly budget
monitoring report to Cabinet for approval of any necessary actions.

602

Page 204

62/22 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 12]
RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Act.
63/22 RE-PROCUREMENT OF FACILITIES MANAGEMENT SERVICES [Item 13]
The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste introduced the Part 2 report
which contained information which was exempt from Access to Information
requirements by virtue of Paragraph 3: information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information).
RESOLVED:
See Minute 60/22.
Reasons for Decisions:
See Minute 60/22.
64/22 PUBLICITY FOR PART 2 ITEMS [Item 14]
It was agreed that non-exempt information may be made available to the
press and public, where appropriate.
Meeting closed at 15:23
_________________________
Chairman

603

Page 205

This page is intentionally left blank

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET
HELD ON 26 APRIL 2022 AT 2.00 PM
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, WOODHATCH PLACE, 11 COCKSHOT
HILL, REIGATE, SURREY ,RH2 8EF.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Cabinet at its next meeting.
Members:
* = Present

*Tim Oliver (Chairman)
*Natalie Bramhall
*Clare Curran
*Matt Furniss
*Mark Nuti
*Denise Turner-Stewart
*Sinead Mooney
*Marisa Heath
*Becky Rush
*Kevin Deanus
Deputy Cabinet Members:
*Maureen Attewell
*Rebecca Paul
*Steve Bax
*Jordan Beech
Members in attendance:
Catherine Baart, Local Member for Earlswood and Reigate South
Jonathan Essex, Local Member for Redhill East and Green Party Group
Leader
Lance Spencer, Local Member for Goldsworth East and Horsell Village
Nick Darby, Local Member for The Dittons, Residents' Association and
Independent Group Leader
Chris Townsend, Local Member for Ashtead and Vice Chairman of the
Children, Families, Lifelong Learning & Culture Select Committee
PART ONE
IN PUBLIC
65/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE [Item 1]
There were none.
66/22 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 29 MARCH 2022 [Item 2]
These were agreed as a correct record of the meeting.
67/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
There were none.
PROCEDURAL MATTERS [Item 4]
68/22 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS [Item 4a]
604

Page 207

There were eight member questions. The questions and responses were
published as a supplement to the agenda.
Jonathan Essex asked what the council was planning to do in light of the
government planning to take away charging for recycling and if the council
had received any government funding for pilot schemes to deal with fly
tipping. The Cabinet Member for Environment confirmed that the council had
not received any funding for improvements to fly tipping. To take construction
waste would also require a change in legislation and this waste was very
different from DIY waste. The councils aim is to increase recycling where it
can.
With regards to her first question Catherine Baart stated that large expanses
of verges and particularly rural verges were not suitable for the Blue Hearts
campaign. Within the extension period, it was queried what the council was
doing differently in comparison to last year with district and boroughs in
regards to verge cutting. The Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure
explained that the amount of cutting with district and boroughs had been
reduced with the district and boroughs being encouraged to mow after the
wildflower season. Whether the district and boroughs comply with the cutting
is their choice but the council was looking at options to extend the contract for
one year.
With regards to her third question, Catherine Baart queried if there was an
opportunity to put on a commercial bus to Woodhatch which non staff could
use. The Leader explained that the priority was to establish transport for those
that wanted it from the two stations but if there is an option to make this a
commercial service then that would be explored. With regards to her final
question, it was queried when the service would expect to hit the statutory
target with Education Health and Care Plans. The Cabinet Member for
Education and Learning stated that improving the outcomes and experiences
for children and families was one of our highest priorities and strategies
around increasing inclusiveness of mainstream education had helped to meet
the needs of the majority of children and had improved the experiences of
EHCP assessments. There was a programme to build capacity and capability
within the service and with our partners.
With regards to his first question, Lance Spencer queried what the average
time for a school appeal to take place was and whether the panel could just
consist of members. The Cabinet Member for Education and Learning said
that since the beginning of the year eight panels had been organised. Three
had been cancelled and five had taken place. The cancellations was due to
member availability and the new proposals for a panel including officers would
make the panel process more efficient and fluid. The proposals were about
ensuring that delays are minimised and the impact on families is reduced
because it clearly caused distress and frustration. Changing the panels would
also enable remote meetings whereby more members could attend.
With regards to his second question, Lance Spencer asked if there were any
plans to get greater engagement with residents on the overall Surrey
Transport plan over the next 12 months as engagement seemed to be low.
The Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure explained that a
representative sample had been taken but that other consultations such as
the greener futures consultation, which referenced transport elements would
be transferred across. Further engagement and consultation would be taking
605

Page 208

place as we go through with the communities where specific initiatives are
progressed. With regards to his final question, Lance Spencer queried if there
were still plans in place to have a parallel carbon budget in place for 20232024. The Cabinet Member for Environment confirmed that this was the
intention and would be managed by the Director for Environment and Carbon
Economics Programme Manager. The Cabinet Member would provide the
member with an update via email.
69/22 PUBLIC QUESTIONS [Item 4b]
There were three public questions. The questions and responses were
published as a supplement to the agenda.
Malcom Robertson thanked the Cabinet Member for the original response to
his question. He went onto ask how much gas oil had been used by the
anaerobic digestor and incinerator since they first commenced operation and
how much waste has been handled by each plant since the beginning. The
Cabinet Member for Property and Waste explained that she would have to
find out how much gas oil had been used with the anaerobic digestor and
gasifier and how much waste has gone through both. The Cabinet Member
would contact the questioner with a written response.
Paul Kennedy queried what was being done to make the EHCP review less
stressful for parents and schools. The Cabinet Member for Education and
Learning stated that the council was prioritising and focusing on the EHCP
process. Capacity and capability was being built into the system and work
was being undertaken with partners to make sure that assessments are made
in a timely fashion and in an appropriate way. The council was working with
Family Voice Surrey on improving interactions with parents and
communications and engagement.
70/22 PETITIONS [Item 4c]
There were none.
71/22 REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED ON REPORTS TO BE CONSIDERED IN
PRIVATE [Item 4d]
There were none.
72/22 REPORTS FROM SELECT COMMITTEES , TASK GROUPS, LOCAL
COMMITTEES AND OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL [Item 5]
The report was introduced by the Vice-Chairman of the Children, Families,
Lifelong Learning & Culture Select Committee who explained that the
recommendations of the Select Committee had cross party support. The ViceChairman was concerned that recommendation 1d, ‘that there be no change
to the appeals panel membership’ had been ignored by the Cabinet. Results
from the public consultation were also in support for keeping the panel
membership with members. The Cabinet Member for Education and Learning
explained that the panel process would include officers going forward as there
had been delays in holding panel meetings due to member availability. The
priority of the appeals process was to ensure efficiency for families and
including officers would ensure this. The Leader explained that there was no
expectation that the second stage of the appeals panel would be filled with
606

Page 209

just officers. The aim was to speed up the appeals process and intention was
to ensure that councillors remain a key component of appeal hearings and
this change was not proposing to withdraw councillors from the appeals
process.
RESOLVED:
That the report from the Select Committee regarding the Home to School
travel assistance policy be noted. The response from the Cabinet was
published as a supplement to the agenda.
73/22 LEADER / DEPUTY LEADER / CABINET MEMBER/ STRATEGIC
INVESTMENT BOARD/COMMITTEES IN COMMON SUB-COMMITTEE
DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST CABINET MEETING [Item 6]
There were seven decisions for noting.
RESOLVED:
That the decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting be noted.
74/22 CABINET MEMBER OF THE MONTH [Item 7]
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children and Families.
The following key points were made:










Explained that she had political responsibility for the leadership,
strategy and effectiveness of the local authorities children's services
and was responsible for ensuring that the council addresses the needs
of all children and young people, including the most disadvantaged
and vulnerable.
An inspection took place of the Youth Offending Service (YOS) by HM
Inspectorate of Probation (HMIP) in November. The final report
resulted in a “good” grading and the service has gone from
“inadequate” to “good” since the previous inspection in 2019.
Ofsted inspectors rated the council as good in their recent report. This
means that the Council was now out of a statutory intervention. This
means that oversight by the Department for Education and by Ofsted
had changed to reflect this, and a letter from the Minister of State to
confirm that status has been received. The government now had
confidence in Surrey that the council can continue on its own
improvement journey. In their report Ofsted mentioned the strong and
effective and productive multi agency and multidisciplinary work being
undertaken.
There were six key recommendations for priority areas of improvement
in Ofsted’s report. The council must continue unrelented focus on the
quality of frontline social work practice.
Recruitment and retention of staff was a real challenge, not just for
Surrey but for all authorities across the country.
The Mindworks Surrey Alliance is just finishing its first year of
operation. This has focussed on managing the competing demands of
mobilising a new service, reducing legacy waiting lists, dealing with the
impact of the pandemic and developing the partnership to realise the
ambitions set out in the Surrey Children and Young People’s
607

Page 210



Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health (EWMH) Strategy. While
some progress has definitely been made and things are in a better
place, it was recognised there is still more to be done to deliver a
timely and effective service to all those children and young people who
need it.
Thanks was given to all the staff who work with children and young
people in Surrey including those who work in the wider children's
systems, be that in schools and nurseries, health, police, youth work
and foster care.

Concerns were raised by the Residents' Association and Independent Group
Leader and Green Party Group Leader that a Surrey children’s care home
had been closed following emergency intervention and members had not
been briefed on this. The Leader explained that this was an operational
matter which was important but that this was not the forum for this matter to
be discussed. The Vice-Chairman of the Select Committee explained that a
session on the matter had been organised with the Select Committee.
RESOLVED:
That the Cabinet Member of the Month report be noted.
75/22 A DEVOLUTION DEAL FOR SURREY [Item 8]
The report was introduced by the Deputy Cabinet Member for Levelling up
who explained that in February a levelling up paper was welcomed from
government. A deal would devolve more powers to local government in
Surrey from Whitehall so that we could better deliver on our no one left behind
ambition. Securing devolution of additional powers through a county deal for
Surrey not only brings greater powers, but also opportunities for flexibility to
both the council and partners. Since publication of the levelling up white
paper, the council has continued to engage with local partners to explore the
opportunities that a devolution deal presents for Surrey. A Surrey Delivery
Board has been established as a key stakeholder group of all tiers of local
government which will be used in the development and delivery of a county
deal. Following the meeting the council would be writing to ministers and
department officials requesting they engage with the council at the earliest
opportunity so that Surrey can benefit from the right county deal as soon as
possible.
The Leader explained that the expectation was that the white paper becomes
a bill announced in the Queens speech. Speaking on the item, the Residents'
Association and Independent Group Leader stated that it was important that
the proposals are carefully considered with members.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet supports the approach set out to develop a Devolution
Deal for Surrey, to accelerate and better enable work to tackle
inequalities in Surrey.

608

Page 211

2. That Cabinet reaffirms the Council’s commitment to ensuring No One
is Left Behind and note the strong alignment to the Government’s
Levelling Up agenda.
3. That Cabinet endorses the approach and plan for further engagement
with local partners and key stakeholders to support development of a
devolution proposal for Surrey.
4. That Cabinet supports the intention to engage with the Surrey Delivery
Board as a key stakeholder group in developing and shaping a
comprehensive devolution deal for the benefit of Surrey’s residents,
communities, and businesses.
5. That Cabinet delegates authority to the Executive Director for
Partnerships, Prosperity, and Growth to lead engagement with the
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities on the
devolution proposal following consideration by Cabinet, and to take
other necessary steps in consultation with the Leader of the Council
and the Deputy Cabinet Member for Levelling Up.
Reasons for Decisions:
The Government’s Levelling Up White Paper presents a rare opportunity for
the council to pursue a devolution deal for Surrey that will bring new powers,
freedoms and flexibilities, better enabling the council to deliver for residents
against its organisational priorities and work towards its ambition of No One
Left Behind.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities, Environment
and Highways Select Committee)
76/22 SURREY'S GREENER FUTURES GRANT PROGRAMMES [Item 9]
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Environment who
explained that the report was asking Cabinet to approve the receipt of funding
into the Council’s capital pipeline from Government net zero carbon grant
funding programmes, specifically the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme
(PSDS3) and the Sustainable Warmth Programme (which includes the Green
Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery (GHGLAD3) and Home Upgrade Grant
(HUG1)). Cabinet was also asked to note the use of match funding of up to
£1.367m, in relation to the PSDS3 grant to replace fossil fuel boilers with heat
pumps. Referring to Annex 2 and specifically Keswick care home, the Cabinet
Member stated that all the listed buildings would be assessed to ensure
teams were not working in silo. The member reference group and Select
Committee would be kept updated on progress on this work.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet approves the receipt of funding into the Council’s capital
pipeline from Government net zero carbon grant funding programmes,
specifically the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS3) and
the Sustainable Warmth Programme (which includes the Green

609

Page 212

Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery (GHGLAD3) and Home
Upgrade Grant (HUG1))

2. That Cabinet notes the use of match funding from the approved
Corporate Capital Maintenance Programme, subject to the Capital
Programme Panel (CPP) approving business cases for individual
sites.
3. That Cabinet approves the request to competitively procure the
Sustainable Warmth Programme and PSDS3 services under separate
contracts, in accordance with the Council’s Procurement and
Contracting Standing Orders.

4. That Cabinet approves the receipt of future funding schemes for the
purposes of delivery of the Greener Futures ambition, including future
tranches of the PSDS schemes and Sustainable Warmth programmes
as well as, but not limited to, the schemes included in Annex 1.
Receipt of funding will be subject to Capital Programme Panel
approval.
Reasons for Decisions:
The recommendations in this report will enable the Council to:


Draw down Government funding of £13.15m. This includes £2.652m
from PSDS3 to decarbonise buildings in the SCC estate and schools
and £10.5m from the Sustainable Warmth Programme, which includes
£8.3m for GHLAD3 and £2.2m for HUG1, which will be used to
decarbonise homes of residents on low incomes.



Be as agile as possible to maximise the attraction of future external
grant funding sources.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities, Environment
and Highways Select Committee)
77/22 SUPPORTED INDEPENDENT LIVING PROGRAMME - BATCH 1
DEVELOPMENT [Item 10]
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health who
explained that Cabinet were being asked to approve £24m of capital funding
for the design and construction of three purpose-built Supported Independent
Living (SIL) schemes in Byfleet, Horley and Cobham. The schemes will
deliver high-quality, specialist residential accommodation for working age
adults with learning disabilities and/or autism to enable these residents to lead
more independent lives. Since July 2019 there were 1075 people with a
learning disability and/ or autism living in residential care but this has reduced
to 922 due to the councils transformative agenda. A reduction of 14%.
The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste commented that all
accommodation had been designed to be adapted for residents with 60% of
the new homes being delivered ready for immediate or future occupation by
wheelchair users or residents with complex care needs. A fabric first approach
had been applied to the buildings. The designers were orientating the
610

Page 213

buildings to make the most of natural daylight, maximise energy generated
from solar panels and minimise artificial lighting. These schemes would be
designed to deliver energy efficient buildings which will result in lower fuel bills
for the residents and meet the Council's operational net zero carbon target.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet approves capital funding of £24m for the design and
construction of the SIL Batch 1 accommodation schemes at the former
Manor School (Byfleet), the former Horley Library (Horley) and
Coveham Hostel (Cobham). The recommended funding of £24m
includes £2.1m premium, being a result of achieving Net-Zero Carbon
in respect of the specification for Operational Net-Zero Carbon.
2. That Cabinet approves procurement of an appropriate construction
contractor partner for the delivery of all associated services required,
in accordance with the Council’s Procurement and Contract Standing
Orders.
3. That Cabinet agrees that in regards to the procurement of the
construction contractor, the Executive Director of Resources and the
Director of Land and Property are authorised to award such contracts,
within the +/- 5% budgetary tolerance level.
Reasons for Decisions:
Approving the recommendations in this report will:
a) Support the Council to achieve its strategic ambition of reducing the
number of people with a learning disability and/or autism requiring
support in a traditional residential care home funded by the Council
from 1,075 by 40-50%.
b) Enable residents with learning disabilities and/or autism, who meet the
Council’s eligibility criteria for adult social care funding, to have their
own accommodation and improve their independence and wellbeing.
c) Support Surrey residents with more complex needs to remain in
county, rather than in specialist placements outside of the county.
d) Make an essential contribution towards the Council’s strategic
objective to tackle health inequality, in line with the 2030 Community
Vision.
e) Provide purpose-built accommodation at a level of cost proportionate
to other delivery options such as buying and converting (or
commissioning conversion) stock from the market, therefore
demonstrating value for money.
f) Support the Council’s Greener Futures agenda and Net-Zero Carbon
ambitions by using innovative technologies and smart build in the
schemes design.
g) Address fuel poverty issues, energy efficient homes will reduce
heating costs for vulnerable tenants who pay their own utility bills.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and
Performance Select Committee)

611

Page 214

78/22 HOME TO SCHOOL/COLLEGE TRAVEL ASSISTANCE POLICY REFRESH
[Item 11]
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Education and
Learning who explained that Cabinet were being asked for approval to
implement a refreshed Surrey County Council Home to School/College Travel
Assistance Policy following the conclusion of a 28 working day public
consultation between February and March 2022. All Councils were required
periodically to review and consult on their home to school travel
arrangements. Proactive public engagement and consultation had taken place
with parents, carers, schools and colleges and other stakeholders. A copy of
the consultation document was mailed to all current home to school travel
assistance service users inviting them to respond and four virtual public
engagement events were held as well as a FaceBook Live session with
Family Voice Surrey. The Children, Families, Lifelong Learning and Culture
Select Committee heard in public evidence from expert witnesses in the
Council on the proposals and the consultation responses. The Cabinet
Member talked through in detail each of the decisions Cabinet was being
asked to take.
The Leader explained that the proposals had been considered by Cabinet a
number of times and thanked the Cabinet Member and officers for a fair and
balanced policy. The Vice-Chairman of the Children, Families, Lifelong
Learning and Culture Select Committee stressed the need for the policy
changes to be communicated well with parents and schools. There was a
short discussion around the change to appeals panels. The Leader confirmed
that members would not be removed from the appeals process.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet notes the impacts and mitigations set out in the Equality
Impact Assessment (Annex B)
2. That Cabinet notes the outcomes of the engagement with residents
and the 28 working day public consultation (Annex C)
3. That Cabinet approves changes to the Home to School/College Travel
Assistance policy having considered the above documents (set out in
paragraphs 11-51)
4. That Cabinet approves the revised Home to School/College Travel
Assistance policy (Annex D)
5. That Cabinet agrees the proposal to produce an enhanced Post 16
Policy Statement and agrees that the Cabinet Member has delegated
authority to approve the statement.
Reasons for Decisions:
The H2S TA policy sets out the way in which the Council discharges its
statutory and discretionary powers and responsibilities in relation to school
and college transport assistance available for pupils aged up to 25 years of
age, both with and without additional needs. While Surrey County Council will
continue to support those who most need help, the Council must manage
increasing costs and demand within the overall resources available. The
recommendations set out in this report will increase the options for children
and young people who qualify for H2S TA, encourage people to use

612

Page 215

environmentally friendly travel and support independent travel as a means of
preparing young people for adulthood.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Children, Families, Lifelong
Learning and Culture Select Committee)
79/22 2021/22 MONTH 11 (FEBRUARY) FINANCIAL REPORT [Item 12]
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources
introduced the report explaining that at Month 11 the Council was forecasting
a full year £0.6m forecast surplus against the revenue budget. Despite the
forecast of a balanced outturn, it was still the expectation that Directorates
continue to make efforts to manage spends within their budget envelopes,
particularly where actions will impact on the deliverability of the 2022/23
budget. It was explained that the council was receiving £13m of funding from
Surrey Heartlands CCG which would be transferred to reserves. £9m of this
funding is a contribution towards the c.£12m of additional Adult Social Care
care package expenditure that the Council has incurred in 2021/22 driven by
the Covid-19 pandemic. The Leader explained that this money was owed to
the council from the CCG. The remaining £4m from Surrey Heartlands CCG is
part-match funding for the Council’s £8m increased investment in Mental
Health services for 2022/23.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet notes the Council’s forecast revenue and capital budget
positions.
2. That Cabinet approves that £13m of funding from Surrey Heartlands
Clinical Commissioning Group is transferred to reserves as set out in
paragraphs 15 to 17.
Reasons for Decisions:
This report is to comply with the agreed policy of providing a monthly budget
monitoring report to Cabinet for approval of any necessary actions.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and
Performance Select Committee)
80/22 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 13]
RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Act.
81/22 SUPPORTED INDEPENDENT LIVING PROGRAMME - BATCH 1
DEVELOPMENT [Item 14]
The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste introduced the Part 2 report
which contained information which was exempt from Access to Information
requirements by virtue of Paragraph 3: information relating to the financial or

613

Page 216

business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information).
RESOLVED:
See Exempt Minute [E-13-22]
Reasons for Decisions:
See Exempt Minute [E-13-22]
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and
Performance Select Committee)
82/22 PUBLICITY FOR PART 2 ITEMS [Item 15]
It was agreed that non-exempt information may be made available to the
press and public, where appropriate.
Meeting closed at 15:41
_________________________
Chairman

614

Page 217

This page is intentionally left blank

